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LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN

OUR VISION
“To be the reference in Private and Corporate Banking”

OUR MISSION STATEMENT
Dr. Riad B. Obegi
Chairman of the Board - General Manager

“Live our values while achieving high return on equity,
and offering our customers outstanding quality”

Dear Clients and Shareholders,
Despite the multiple challenges, the past year was good for BEMO. As we enter
into 2018, we have to expect some more turbulence. With our strategy, discipline
and your support we believe we will be able to achieve favorable results.
But as we reflect on the past and look forward to the future, we need to establish
the foundation for a growth that is consistent with our values and our mission.

OUR VALUES
“Family Spirit
Professionalism
Conservatism
Honesty”

This can only be achieved through the right governance.
In our opinion, governance is not a set of best practices but rather a philosophy
that is ingrained into all our actions. We will strive to deepen our understanding
and practice of it because this will help us fend off the adverse winds and take
advantage of the opportunities lying ahead.

OUR POSITIONING STATEMENT
“Consolidating traditional values with a contemporary approach;
offering services that are personal in delivery and global in scope”

In so doing, we also think it is our duty to share our experience of governance
with you and our community at large.
Finally, I would like to express our deep gratitude to our clients, employees and
shareholders without whom nothing would be possible.
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LETTER FROM THE VICE CHAIRMAN GENERAL MANAGER

growth. Given the latter, we expect the revenue growth environment for banking will
continue to be constrained due to the overall political and economic conditions as well
as increasing regulation and intense competition for sources of funds.
With respect to the Bank, this prevailing environment is not new to us and our strategy
is ensuring we focus only on those areas where we can deliver exceptional customer
outcomes, solve real customer needs and, in doing so, make a decent return for our
shareholders. Trust is built by making good decisions; trust is earned by sustained

Mr. Samih H. Saadeh
Vice Chairman of the Board - General Manager

Dear Clients and Shareholders,
Looking at the general economic environment in which the bank operated during
2017, we saw global economies witness a cyclical recovery reflecting a rebound in
investments, manufacturing activity and trade backed by accommodative policies and
rising confidence. While growth in advanced economies rebounded to around 2.2
percent for the year, the economic deadlock accentuated within the local and regional
economies due to the instability and uncertainty prevailing in the political situation and
spillover effects of the Syrian armed conflict.
In Lebanon, the prolonged political stalemate ended with the election of President
Aoun in October 2016 and the subsequent formation of a unity government that was
able during the year 2017 to finalize the long-awaited parliamentary election law, salary
scale adjustment, the public-private partnership law, oil and gas legislation, and most

relationships over time. Since we first opened our doors for business, Banque BEMO
has earned the trust of its customers by demonstrating its strategic commitment to
providing excellence in financial performance and by being client-centric. Today, we
continue to guide our business with a set of principles and values we believe will
ensure our sustainability.
In 2017, Banque BEMO produced good results for shareholders, our customers and
the communities in which we operate:

LBP Billion
ASSETS
DEPOSITS*
LOANS*
EQUITY
NET INCOME
BASEL III CAPITAL ADEQUACY

2016

2017

Growth

2,651
2,189
1,041
243
23.7
15.59%

2,666
2,081
1,150
263
27.8
17.85%

+0.6%
-5.0%
+10.5%
+8.2%
+17.3%

*including related parties’ accounts

importantly the government budget including new taxes with considerable impact on
the banking sector. Despite the numerous developments, significant macro-financial
risks persist as indicated by the World Bank where the protracted Syrian crisis and
the slow pace of structural reforms remain critical impediments to achieving potential
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Our net income reached LBP 27.8 billion, up by 17.3%. Despite a reduction in deposits,

Develop Group Activities and Synergies: We have pursued and developed our close

our sources of funds were sustained during the year especially with a commendable

and constructive cooperation with our subsidiary BSEC, which continues to be the

milestone achieved by end of 2017 namely the successful closing of a USD 35

leader in offering structured products, especially in Securitization. In addition, we are

million -6years Subordinated Bonds Issuance. The oversubscribed issuance was

building on our sister bank ‘Bemo Europe – Banque Privée Luxembourg’ expertise in

a further recognition of the solid financial standing of the Bank and the trust of our

Wealth Management and Wealth Structuring among other services that could be of

customers have privileged us with. The newly-issued subordinated bonds enhanced

benefit to our clients’ contemporary needs.

our overall abidance to the regulatory Basel III capital adequacy prerogatives and set
the foundations for further growth of the Bank in line with the objectives of the 2020

Develop Business Plan for Our Operations in Cyprus: Given the improvement in the

Business Plan.

economic conditions in Cyprus, a comprehensive business plan was set for our branch
in Limassol where quantitative and qualitative KPIs were defined. The objective of the

Our financial achievements were coupled with the following concrete action steps that

business plan is to build on the franchise we have acquired in Cyprus since the branch

will further ensure growth in financial performance and advancement in client servicing:

was established while providing our clients with the ability to benefit from banking
services offered in European territory.

Continue on the Path of Digitalization of the Bank: As part of our digital journey, we
appointed a consultant in order to assess the starting base and advise on this strategic

Proactively Manage Regulatory Change and Emerging Risks: We remain committed

initiative, which is core to our transformation.

to achieving and demonstrating the highest standards of Corporate Governance as well
as effective management of risk and regulation. Our three lines of defense structure

In the meantime, we started improving the standards of our existing digital platforms

and Internal Control Framework are incorporated explicitly into all our policies. During

for clients by launching new corporate and private internet banking services in addition

the year 2017, we have successfully pursued the sound implementation of regulatory

to being the leading Bank in the region to propose a fully-integrated electronic advisory

requirements related to IFRS9.

(Robo-Advisor) platform. As technology expands, customers rely more and more on
its benefits and ability to meet their financial objectives. We remain committed to
delivering new and emerging technological solutions that make it easy for clients to
manage their finances.
Establishment of Client Advisory Unit: Providing customers with outstanding
service is critical to retaining existing as well as attracting new customers. However,
this requires more than just knowledgeable and attentive employees. For this purpose,
a new dedicated Client Advisory unit was established to streamline the overall client
advisory process and activities.
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expectations. Sustaining our momentum, moving forward and capitalizing on our

Commit to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR): At Banque BEMO sal, the

opportunities is the perspective that drives our commitment to consistent growth

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) framework focuses on the following pillars:

and financial excellence. We start a new year in position to accelerate projects, which

economic, environmental and social, whereby several initiatives marked the year 2017,

enhance our clients’ experiences and continue to create long-term growth and value

especially following the Bank’s joining the United Nations Global Compact Network

for our shareholders.

Lebanon as signatory. Banque BEMO had pledged to 3 Sustainable Development
Goals for 2017:

I would like to sincerely thank and acknowledge the contribution and dedication of

SDG8 “Decent Work and Economic Growth”, SDG13 “Climate Action” and SDG15

our Board of Directors and our Chairman Dr. Riad Obegi as well as the hard work and

“Life on Land”.

commitment of every employee to our stated achievements in 2017. Together, we
have already achieved great results and with a continued focus will do so again in 2018.

Follow-up on Our New Headquarters’ Work Contract and Design: During 2017, the
design concept pertaining to our new Headquarters was completed. A state-of-the-

Finally, a special thanks and appreciation to our clients for their trust and support.

art, luxurious and centralized location for the key departments and units of the Bank
that will further enhance our product /service delivery and improve on efficiency and
productivity.
Change and evolution are imperative for a business to continue to grow and succeed.
Our laying of the foundations for the vision set by our Board of Directors coupled with
the 2020 Business and Strategy Plan has become the cornerstone for our successful
achievements. We will continue to enhance our activities to meet our Management’s
Vision and enhance the process and deliverables in line with our values and our clients’
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MAJOR FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

In LBP millions

«WE ARE BOUND BY
SHARED VALUES, STRONG
BUSINESS ETHICS,
TRUST, TRANSPARENCY
AND COMMITMENT
FOR CONTINUOUS
IMPROVEMENT»

CAGR
7.66%
2008 till 2017

In LBP millions

CAGR
10.78%
2008 till 2017

*CAGR (Compound Annual Growth Rate) is the annual growth over a specfic period of time.
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MAJOR FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

In LBP millions

In LBP millions
2500,000,000

2000,000,000

1500,000,000
CAGR
9.52%
2008 till 2017

1000,000,000

CAGR
7.57%
2008 till 2017

In LBP
In LBP millions
1400,000,000
1200,000,000
1000,000,000
CAGR
8.69%
2008 till 2017
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK
1 • BUSINESS MODEL
Governance evolved in the past few years to become a field in its own, with core principles being set
up by the industries to ensure that stakeholders’ interests are safeguarded, especially shareholders’
interests, in light with the rapid evolution of corporate practices. Our region is lagging behind western
countries in that respect. However, many important actors in Lebanon and the Middle East are working
hard to bridge the gap, and significant progress was made in the past couple of years.
Corporate Governance in the Middle East is emerging from being a mere compliance requirement to
becoming a way to attract investors, reassure existing and potential partners and guarantee sustainability
in economies overwhelmingly made of family owned institutions.

• Efforts were exerted, in coordination with Senior Management, to enhance the information provided to
Board Members through ensuring their quality and relevance.
• Our Office also mobilized its resources to grow our relationship with shareholders and other investors,
in order to ensure that they are fully informed of the developments pertaining to the Bank and that the
Board is attentive to their input and requests.

3 • THE ROAD AHEAD
There is a lot to be done, but we are making steady progress. In the foreseeable future, our Corporate
Governance Office will focus on several enhancements which can be summarized as follows:
We will thrive to enhance investors’ participation to the institution’s life to ensure that they grasp the full

As an institution part of the Obegi Group, our Bank inherited a long tradition of ethical conduct, putting

extent of their partnership with the Bank. There are significant synergies with our stakeholders, and we

stakeholders at the center of our business concern. This statement is even more essential when we

are progressing towards generating those mutual benefits.

consider the nature of our activity, the core essence of which is based on trust.
Corporate Governance is one of our main tools in achieving the above statement. Our Bank, including our
Board of Directors, is fully aware of this and is adamant in evolving our governance framework to become
a benchmark of best practices in our economy. Our Corporate Governance Office considers this task as

We are also working on enhancing even more the current workflow, in coordination with our IT Department
to provide our Board Members with access to available information in an easy, secured and flexible way.
Furthermore, we are also working on enhancing Board Members’ onboarding process, through appropriate
training and support, in addition to setting up feedback mechanisms that allow us to learn from our

one of the core missions of our Bank, as we know that it is a pre-condition to achieving continuity and

experiences and further enhance our action.

growth in the region.

With time, investors’ and Board Members’ input will become the cornerstone of our effort in evolving

2 • OPERATIONAL OUTLOOK

our governance structure. Governance at large is now an integral part of our strategy. Our Board is fully
confident that it is both the right thing to do and the most sustainably profitable one.

Our Bank is at the cutting edge of this effort, and it is deploying resources to ensure that its practices
in that respect remain in line with the best available. Our action during the past year focused on the
following topics:
•
The Corporate Governance Office underwent a reorganization effort to streamline its operations,
document its best practices and ensure that all required checks and balances are in place.
• Our Office supported the IFC in conducting a diagnosis of the Bank’s current governance practices, the
outcome of which provided us with a roadmap for improvement for the near future.
• We coordinated with the Bank’s departments, but also with related institutions, to raise awareness on
the importance of governance and to share best practices.
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OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE (AS AT 31.12.2017)

Sharikat Al Istismarat Al Oropia
Lil Sharek Al Aousat (Holding) sal *

61.06%

All Other Shareholders

38.94%

Bemo Securitization SA
(BSEC)

96%

Banque Bemo Saudi Fransi SA (BBSF) - Syria

22%

Limassol Branch
Cyprus

100%

* Sharikat Al Istismarat Al Oropia Lil Sharek Al Aousat (Holding) sal counts among its main founding
shareholders, the Obegi Group and other prominent industrialists.
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2019

Member

2010

2019

Mr. Antoine Youssef Mansour Wakim*

Member

2010

2019

Sheikh Hassan Isam Mohamad Kabbani*

Member

2008

2019

Mrs. Karine S. Mansour Obegi

Member

2015

2019

Dr. Derek Abdelkader El Zein

Member

2015

2019

Mr. Peter Ara Hrechdakian

Member

2015

2019

Corporate Secretary:

Mr. Georges M. Hayek

Legal Advisors:

Dr. Nasri A. Diab

Me. Adel J. Macaron

Auditors:

Deloitte & Touche

DFK Fiduciaire du Moyen Orient

Sharikat Al Istismarat Al Oropia Lil Sharek
Al Aousat Holding s.a.l represented by
Mr. Jean Victor Hajjar

INDEPENDENT

2010

NON EXECUTIVE

Vice Chairman of the Board
& General Manager

EXECUTIVE

Mr. Samih Halim Saadeh

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

2019

BOARD COMPLIANCE
& AML /CFT COMMITTEE

2003

BOARD RISK COMMITTEE

Chairman of the Board &
General Manager

BOARD NOMINATING, REMUNERATION &
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

TERM EXPIRATION

Dr. Riad Bechara Obegi

BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE

INITIAL APPOINTMENT AS BOARD MEMBER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (AS AT 31.12.2017)

* Sheikh Hassan I. Kabbani resigned in March 2018
* Mr. Antoine M. Wakim resigned in May 2018
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Dr. Riad B. Obegi

Mr. Samih H. Saadeh

Executive Board Member/Chairman & General Manager

Executive Board Member/Vice Chairman & General Manager

ACADEMIC QUALIFICATIONS:

ACADEMIC QUALIFICATIONS:

• PHD in Economics from Lyon Lumière University – 2008

• Master’s Degree in Business Administration from the American University of Beirut

• PMD from Harvard Business School – 1997

• Bachelor Degree in Business Administration from the American University of Beirut

• Master’s Degree from IEP – Paris

• Degree in Law from the Lebanese University

• Master’s Degree in Business Administration from Paris IX Dauphine University – 1981
• Bachelor Degree in Business Law from Paris II Panthéon-ASSAS University – 1981

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE:
• Vice Chairman & General Manager at Banque BEMO sal since 2013; re-elected in 2016

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE:

• Managing Director – General Manager and Board Member at Banque BEMO sal

• Chairman of the Board of Directors of Banque BEMO sal since 2010 and member of the Board since

• General Manager at Banque BEMO sal

2003; re-elected in 2016

• Represents Banque BEMO sal in the Board of Directors of Bemo Securitization (BSEC)

• Chairman of Bemo Europe – Banque Privée (formerly Banque de l’Europe Meridionale) since 1994

• Represents Banque BEMO sal in the Board of Directors of Banque Bemo Saudi Fransi SA in Syria

• Chairman of the Board of Directors of Banque Bemo Saudi Fransi SA – Syria

• Member of the Board of an international company

• Chairman of Unifert Holding sal

• F.V.P. Corporate and Private Banking Manager at ABN Amro Bank in Beirut till 2003

• Vice Chairman of Obegi Group SA – Luxembourg

• Senior Credit Manager at Bank of Beirut (1993 – 1994)
• American Express Bank Ltd New York in 1978 then moved to the banks’ branch in Beirut
• Appointed Lecturer at the Lebanese American University (1991)
• Appointed Lecturer at the Association of Banks in Lebanon
• Member of the Deliberating Jury for Masters’ Degree in Banking Studies
• Delivered seminars and courses at the Higher Institute for Banking Studies at St. Joseph University (USJ)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Jean V. Hajjar

Mr. Antoine M. Wakim

Representing Sharikat Al Istismarat Al Oropia Lil Sharek Al Aousat Holding sal*

Independent Board Member

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE:

ACADEMIC QUALIFICATIONS:
• AMP from INSEAD
• ADD from Chartered Insurance Institute – United Kingdom

• Member of the Board of Directors of Banque BEMO sal (2001 – 2015)
• General Manager of Banque BEMO sal – Lebanon (1994 – 2001)
• General Manager at Banque de L’Europe Meridionale in Paris, Brussels and Luxembourg (1986 – 1994)

• Actuary from Lausanne University – Switzerland

• Deputy General Manager at Credit Libanais sal till 1985

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE:
• Member of the Board of Directors of Banque BEMO sal since 2010; re-elected in 2016
• Member of the Board of Directors of Allianz SNA Holding and Allianz SNA Lebanon
• Member of the Board of Directors of Jordan Eagle
• Member of the Board of Directors of Bank of Beirut SAL
• Member of the Board of Directors of the National Social Security Fund in Lebanon
• Member of the Board of Directors of Hotel Dieu de France – Lebanon
• Member of the Board of Directors of Broumana High School
• Member of the Advisory Board of the Business School at the Lebanese American University
• Member of the International Association of Actuaries (IAA)
• Professor of financial and actuarial mathematics at various universities in Lebanon
• Chairman and CEO at Allianz SNA (1987 – 2008)
• Former member of the Swiss Association of Actuaries (SAA)
• Since 1990, committed to issuing a new retirement law and restructuring the National Social Security
Fund in Lebanon

* Sharikat Al Istismarat Al Oropia Lil Sharek Al Aousat Holding sal is a holding company that was established
in 1994. It is the major shareholder at Banque BEMO sal where it owns 61.06% of the Bank’s shares.

AWARDS:
• “Le PRIX de la Francophonie Economique” – Prague in April 2006
• The Lebanese Republic Presidential merit decoration for the social activities performed
* Mr. Antoine M. Wakim resigned in May 2018
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Sheikh Hassan I. Kabbani*

Dr. Derek A. El-Zein

Independent Board Member

Independent Board Member

ACADEMIC QUALIFICATIONS:

ACADEMIC QUALIFICATIONS:

• University studies pursued at Pepperdine University, U.C.L.A. – USA

•Ph.D. in Information and Communication Sciences from University of PARIS 2 – Panthéon ASSAS

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE:
• Member of the Board of Directors of Banque BEMO sal since 2008; re-elected in 2016
• Chairman of IKK Group of Companies since 2015

• Master’s Degree in Media & Multimedia IFP from University of PARIS 2 – Panthéon ASSAS
• Master of Law from University of PARIS 2 – Panthéon ASSAS
• Law Studies from University of PARIS 2 – Panthéon ASSAS

• Member of several Boards of the IKK Group companies

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE:

• Member of the Board of Directors of Ijada Al-Mutahida and Walaa Insurance

• Member of the Board of Directors of Banque BEMO sal since 2015; re-elected in 2016

• Member of the American Businessmen of Jeddah and of the Cercle d’Affaires Français de Jeddah

• Member of the Paris Bar and practicing lawyer since 2003

• Business Development Manager at IKK Group of Companies (1992 – 1998)

• Member of the Central European Academy of Sciences, Humanities and Arts

• Director of Administration and Credit Control in 1998, then Vice Chairman before becoming Acting

• Member of the Geographical Society of Paris

Chairman of the Group

• Senior Lecturer at the Department of Political Science at Paris Descartes University since 2011
• Professor in Media Geopolitics and International Economics at HEI-HEP

* Sheikh Hassan I. Kabbani resigned in March 2018
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Mrs. Karine S. Mansour Obegi

Mr. Peter A. Hrechdakian

Non-Executive Board Member

Non-Executive Board Member

ACADEMIC QUALIFICATIONS:

ACADEMIC QUALIFICATIONS:

• HEC Diploma – Hautes Etudes Commerciales, Jouy en Josas – France (Majeur Entrepreneur)

• Masters in Business Administration from the Harvard Graduate School of Business Administration,

• Ecole Preparatoire Sainte Genevieve (1 year)
PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE:

Boston, Massachusetts, USA (1982-1984)
• Bachelor of Arts in Economics and Philosophy from Cornell University, Ithaca, New York, USA (1976-1980)

• Member of the Board of Directors of Banque BEMO sal since 2015; re-elected in 2016

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE:

• Managing Partner at Obegi Home LLC – UAE and Obegi Better Home SAL – Lebanon since 2006

• Member of the Board of Directors of Banque BEMO s.a.l. since 2015; re-elected in 2016

• General Secretary at Banque Saradar, which later became Bank Audi Saradar (2002 – 2005)

• Chairman of the Board of Directors of Fertitrust S.A. – Luxembourg (2006 – to date)

• Organizational Consultant at Banque Saradar (1998 – 2002)

• CEO at the UNIFERT Group – Brussels/Beirut (2006 – to date)

• Analyst and Junior Engagement Manager at Mckinsey Consulting Firm – France (1995 – 1998)

• Director of Management Control at UNIFERT Group S.A. – Brussels (1991 – 2006)
• Executive Vice President at UNIFERT – USA Inc. (1988 – 1991)
• Vice President – Finance at UNIFERT – USA Inc. (1985 – 1988)
• Credit analyst at Manufacturers Hanover Trust – New York (1980 – 1982)
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REMUNERATION POLICY
BANQUE BEMO DISCLOSURES AS PER CENTRAL BANK BASIC CIRCULAR 133

II. REMUNERATION POLICY

Banque BEMO is committed to the group motto “Business with Ethics”. Not only we preach Family Spirit

Updated to ensure abidance by regulators requirement as well as meeting the Bank strategic orientation

in the way we live the Bank, but also consider our clients as associates and our staff as partners.

such as but not limited to:

For this purpose, and for many years, the Bank’s “Nominating, Remuneration and Corporate Governance

II.1 Comprise all levels and categories of employees working in the Bank and its branches abroad and

Committee” objective has been upgraded to reflect the requirements of the Central Bank as per basic

ensure proportionality among the remunerations granted to different levels of employees

circular 133 dated August 06, 2014.
Following are extracts of main objectives and functions of the Committee:

II.2 Cover all categories of remunerations, the conditions of granting such remunerations, in order to
enhance effective performance and to achieve the purpose for which remunerations are granted

I. COMMITTEE CHARTER
II.3 Make sure that total remunerations granted by the Bank do not affect its current or future capabilities
The Committee’s charter has been amended to include the following prerogatives:
I.1 Ensure adherence to:
a. Corporate Governance Guidelines as approved by the Board of Directors

(in the medium and long-terms), nor its financial position and interests
II.4 Set the remunerations of employees entrusted with control functions in a way that does not hinder
the objective and independent discharge of their duties

b. Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy
II.5 Detail the extra benefits which form an integral part of remunerations and the process of granting them
I.2 Act as remuneration committee for Senior Management as well as for the entire workforce in line with
basic circular 133

II.6 Stipulate the possibility of resorting to clawbacks and deferrals, in cases where this possibility can be
applied, and to specify the conditions and circumstances of such cases

I.3 Evaluate the total granted remunerations and compare against future expected revenues avoiding any
likely negative results
I.4 
Decide on the compensation, merit increases, performance bonuses, succession planning or
replacement of Senior Management

II.7 Specify the cases and conditions for merging cash remunerations with other benefits
II.8 Ensure adherence to:
a. Corporate Governance Manual as approved by the Board of Directors
b. Basic Circular 133 issued by the Central Bank of Lebanon

I.5 Prepare remuneration policy and remuneration system, submit to the Board for approval, supervise
and ensure the proper implementation, devise a procedure for remuneration related to the entire

c. Anti-Bribery and Corruption Manual
d. Non Compliance Policy

workforce, ensure that all the bank employees are aware of BDL circulars related to Remunerations,
and that remuneration policy is in line with Central Bank of Lebanon requirements
I.6 Review and assess the adequacy of the Remuneration policy and Remuneration system and submit
proposals for modification, if any, to the Board for approval.
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III. ELEMENTS ADOPTED AS BASIS FOR REMUNERATION

IV. ITEMS OF FIXED AND VARIABLE REMUNERATIONS

The merit and measurable performance is the drive of this remuneration system applied to the entire

IV.1 Fixed

workforce, whereby the Bank is keen to:

	• Basic: The monthly salary for all staff members subject to annual increase based on merit payable
sixteen times per year, or else as per regulations

III.1 Apply the Competencies Management system to determine the fixed remunerations items such as
merit increases

	• Allowances: The monthly allowances granted to employees in line with Collective Labor Agreement,
Labor Law and regulators requirements
• Guaranteed Bonus: Replacing the amount of annual salary increase reserved for “F” directors level

III.2 
Apply the Performance Management system to determine the variable remunerations of each

whose positions necessitate managerial responsibilities on top of the expertise in the field of their

employee according to the Bank overall performance and to grant these remunerations in light of the

activities, and amount reserved to remunerate high performers/professionals and linked to the

performance of both the concerned employee and its work unit

Bank achievements and objectives
• Representation Allowance: Lumpsum amount granted monthly to employees of “E” and “F” grade

III.3 Have a clear orientation on remuneration structure and underlying granting conditions that enhance

levels, provided it does not exceed 10% of the annual salary of each employee

effective performance
IV.2 Variable
III.4 Encourage the sense of teamwork by linking the individual and department short term objectives to
the overall Bank’s goals and long-term interests

	• Bonus: Amount paid at the end of the year for individual achievements based on their
performance evaluation
• Incentive: Material reward paid against revenues and additional profits generated from activities that are

III.5 Align aggregate compensation structure with the Bank’s performance ensuring that it does not affect

over and above the performance objectives and could be immediate or of long term nature.

the Bank’s current and future capacities, nor its financial position or interests
Our objective is and remains to earn our clients trust and be transparent and fair to earn our colleagues respect.

V. INFORMATION RELATED TO REMUNERATION (2017)

Average Salary per Grade (LBP in thd)
10,000

9.312

9,000
8,000
7,000

5,510

6,000
5,000

3,915

4,000

2,321

3,000
2,000
1,000

F

E

D

C

1,600

1,564

B

A

* Grade specifications from “A” to “F” follow the grading structure of Association of
Banks in Lebanon as per the Collective Labor Agreement
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ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE (AS AT 31.12.2017)

FTE: 234
As at December 31, 2017

Board Compliance &
AML/CFT
Committee

Board of Directors

Audit Committee

Nominating, Remuneration
& Corporate Governance
Committee

Chairman of the Board

Board Risk Committee

Vice Chairman and
General Manager

Human Resources
Management

Internal Audit

Government Entities
Business Development

Organization, Communication
& Quality Management

Corporate Governance
Office

Risk Management
Credit Control
IT Security
Vice Chairman and
General Manager
Temporary
(Private Banking &
Wealth Management)

Assistant General
Manager
Treasury &
Capital Markets

Operations
Management

Financial Institutions/
Correspondent
Banking

PB & WM Consultant

Assistant General
Manager

Corporate Banking

Private Banking

Finance & Facilities
Management
Information
Technology

Cards & Bills
Management

Banks & Financial
Entities

Foreign Exchange

Central Back Offices

Relations with
Affiliates

Money Market

Trade Finance

Asset Management

Treasury &
Securities Support

Private Banking II
PB Business Development
Private Banking
Foreign Clients
Wealth & Investment
Management

Compliance
Corporate Clients
Foreign Clients
(Corporate)

Legal Affairs

Corporate Clients

Family Office

Branches Network
Lebanon
Cyprus

Real Estate Advisory

Central Administration
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BOARD COMMITTEES

(as at 31.12.2017)

BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE

BOARD NOMINATING, REMUNERATION
& CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Purpose

Purpose

The Audit Committee assists the Board of Directors in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities

The purpose of the Nominating, Remuneration & Corporate Governance is to (a) ensure adherence

particularly for (a) the Bank’s internal audit function performance and independent auditors

to Corporate Governance guidelines (b) recommend Director nominees for election to the Bank’s

qualifications, (b) the integrity of the Bank’s financial statements & disclosure standards, (c) the

Board and for filling vacancies occurring between annual meetings of shareholders, and (c) decide

efficiency and soundness of the internal control system, (d) compliance with legal and regulatory

on the compensation, merit increases, performance bonuses, succession planning as well as

requirements, and (e) the follow–up on implementing the required recommendations.

replacement of Senior Management.

Members

Members

Mr. Antoine M. Wakim (Chairperson)*

Mr. Antoine M. Wakim (Chairperson)*

Mr. Jean V. Hajjar (Representing Sharikat Al Istismaret Al Oropia lil Sharek Al Aousat Holding SAL)

Mr. Jean V. Hajjar (Representing Sharikat Al Istismaret Al Oropia lil Sharek Al Aousat Holding SAL)

Mrs. Karine S. Mansour Obegi

Mr. Peter A. Hrechdakian

Meetings held in 2017: 4

Meetings held in 2017: 2

*Mr. Antoine M. Wakim resigned in May 2018

*Mr. Antoine M. Wakim resigned in May 2018

BOARD RISK COMMITTEE

BOARD COMPLIANCE & AML/CFT COMMITTEE

Purpose

Purpose

The risk Committee assists the Board of Directors in fulfilling its risk management, oversight

The purpose of the Compliance & AML/CFT Committee is to assist the Board of Directors in

responsibilities in compliance with the regulatory requirements in addition to the by-laws and

fulfilling its supervisory functions relating to fighting money laundering and terrorist financing in

internal policies. The Committee also reviews and assesses the integrity and adequacy of each of

accordance with the regulatory requirements.

the risk management function’s framework related to market, credit, operational and liquidity and
funding risks in accordance with the prevailing laws and regulations.

Members
Sheikh Hassan I. Kabbani* (Chairperson)

Members

Dr. Riad B. Obegi

Dr. Derek A. El Zein (Chairperson)

Dr. Derek A. El Zein

Dr. Riad B. Obegi
Mr. Peter A. Hrechdakian
Meetings held in 2017: 4

Meetings held in 2017: 3
*Sheikh Hassan I. Kabbani resigned in March 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BUSINESS REVIEWS
CORPORATE BANKING

PRIVATE BANKING

Our “Relationship Management” based Business Model is portrayed by a team of professionals dedicated

The Private Banking Department deploys the strategic vision of the Bank to be a reference for affluent

to optimizing Banque BEMO’s customers’ interest, building up long term relationships based on trust and

families by focusing on the Client Centric philosophy. The dedicated relationship managers and account

transparency while ensuring profit generation to our shareholders.

executives are entrusted with building relationships with our clients by providing personalized solutions

Our model is set to serve the community; through joint efforts with our customers we ensure mutually

in adequacy with the latter’s’ aspirations.

beneficial relationships seeking our client’s business best interests while practicing our Bank’s set of

Our Business model concentrates on long term relations with High Net Worth clients, families and

ethics and values and ensuring all our stakeholders’ economic and financial interests;

entrepreneurs. Our relationship managers are seasoned bankers with numerous years of experience and

Our clientele are Top Tier Clients whom loyalty we have earned. Our tailor made solutions are developed to
meet our clients business objectives while remaining focused on abiding to Compliance and Regulators’
Guidelines.

solid academic backgrounds. They are seconded by talented wealth and financial advisors in addition to
a large array of external consultants in such field as wealth engineering, succession planning, estate and
tax optimization.
We take pride in our legacy and in the outstanding reputation of our Shareholders and Senior Management.

Our Client Centric Approach permits us to effectively expand our offered services providing the right

We cherish the family spirit that prevails inside our organization and is reflected in the relationships with

personalized services to our clients.

our clients built throughout several decades of doing business with ethics.

Our structure permits fast decision making; this fast and sharp response remains a key to our success.

One of our drivers to success is our constant alertness to our clients’ needs, aspirations and concerns. We

We stay close to our Clients to understand their business objectives and financial needs to be able

acknowledge the mentality shift in global Private Banking from the portfolio management and advisory

to promote fitted quality Corporate Finance Solutions. Our model makes us closer to our clients who

approach to the broader and more challenging angle of wealth, estate and succession planning. Our

become part of the BEMO’s family and whom we escort in tackling new opportunities and in confronting

clients benefit from our expertise in the Lebanese fiduciary structures as well as from pan-European

financial challenges. Our model once more allows us to offer our clientele with a variety of services

solutions offered by Bemo Europe – Banque Privée our sister company headquartered in Luxembourg.

including Non-Core Corporate Services.

The digital revolution is reshaping the universe of finance. Block chain technologies, robotization, fintechs

The loyalty of our clients, our business partners, is the result of our dedication to excellence.
Our commitment to enhance Synergy within Bank’s departments is one more time leading to good
results in trade finance activity and hedging products. In parallel, the Synergy with Bank’s affiliates led to
a wider basket of financial solutions to customers.
Our team comprises well trained, experienced and up to date professionals continuously seeking
excellence and distinction. We are enthusiastic to further increasing our expertise and to welcome new
team members that will help us maintain close monitoring and maximize benefits of our relationships.
We remain determined to embrace digital transformation through further venturing into the paperless
era; the New Sophisticated Core System we are installing is one further step in this way.
The team remains dedicated, perseverant and in continuous quest to keep the high momentum. Gradually
we progress towards BEMO 2020 Strategy; all targets/achievements are leading in more determination
to become and act as consultants to our clients and be their advisor in Corporate Finance matters.

and peer to peer solutions are rapidly overtaking conventional banking. Conscious of this irreversible
trend, Banque BEMO is energetically implementing its own digital modernization strategy by embracing
the latest digital technologies: a world class core banking system, innovative client focused solutions
such as Robo-Advisor and portfolio optimization tools, state of the art e-banking platform.
Globalization, geo-political turmoil, fiscal implications of mutual exchange of tax information figure among
the recurrent topics of concern for our clients. These concerns are addressed by the solid synergies we
deploy across the group through our Cyprus branch and through Bemo Europe – Banque Privée.
We look ahead at a challenging business environment and we remain focused on our core values and on
the strategic vision towards 2020. As we start reaping the fruits of our consistent presence in the UAE,
we will expand our overseas prospecting network to cover all the EMEA region and North America. In
parallel, we remain steady in our drive to offer Wealth Management solutions through value propositions
based on our clients’ needs and aspirations.
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TREASURY AND CAPITAL MARKETS
Building on its achievements and accumulated experience throughout the years, the Treasury & Capital

The Foreign Exchange activities cover global FX execution and comprehensive investment services to

Markets Department continues to adhere to the main objectives of sustaining the interests of the Bank’s

cover clients’ hedging and speculative trading needs.

clients and shareholders, strengthen its foundations and maintain its image as a reference within the
local market which was achieved through integrating the merits of dedication, persistence, commitment,
consistency and resilience to its works.
The department’s business model embraces the Bank’s profound belief in the “Client Centricity” approach
which continues to drive the department’s strategy of standing by our clients’ needs and continuing to
cooperate with a continuously growing and diverse base of private, corporate and institutional clients.
The department continues to explore different approaches to enlarge its array of investment products that
would suit the investment needs of the Bank and its clients based on their suitability, objectives and risk
assessments and align it with the Bank’s conservative approach. The department’s team is equipped with
a wealth of knowledge and experience to provide investment solutions for both the Bank’s and client’s
investment needs. Simultaneously, the department continues to develop and review its structures and
policies to meet the local regulators’ conventions and regulations, and the continuous regulatory and
compliance changes facing the financial industry.
The department aims at providing transparent, ethical, and conservative financial solutions and specializes
in investment management, products and services in all major capital markets. It offers a full range of
solutions at the level of asset management, cash & liquidity management, foreign exchange and money

The Money Market activities cover the efficient management of the Bank’s liquidity, the placement of
funds with local, international counterparts, TBs and CDs.
The synergies between Banque BEMO and its sister companies enhance the department’s ability to meet
our clients’ short and long term objectives. The pairing between Banque BEMO and BSEC increases the
variety of our financial products.
As part of its contribution to the 2020 strategy, the department aims to continue its steady, yet controlled
growth and to introduce new and innovative business lines and ideas that would represent a major
contribution to the Bank’s objectives, Client Centric approach and long term strategy. The department is
committed to continue updating its systems and processes with the objective of providing our clients
with the best and most advanced tailored investment services.
The Bank takes pride in its outstanding clients whereby the department will continue to establish
confidence and true partnerships with them. The department will continue boosting its efforts to locate
strategic investments, achieve its short and long term objectives and contribute to bolstering the growth
and development of the Bank while abiding to the Bank’s policies and procedures and the local and
international regulatory requirements.

market services.
The Asset Management activities cover all types of securities and provide execution and comprehensive
investment services across a full range of asset classes and investment products dealt on both the local
and international markets.

45

Banque BEMO Annual Report 2017
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEWS
WEALTH AND INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT
Guided by our Client Centric philosophy and strategic goals, the Wealth & Investment Management has

As the industry witnesses a shift from personal to digital interactions, the Wealth & Investment Management

been instituted to support our clients in reaching their financial aspirations and build their legacy. The

has championed the transition by introducing innovative and new solutions. We have introduced the first

foundational principle of our mandate is to help our clients protect, grow and nurture their family wealth,

Robo-Advisor in the region: The Robo-Advisor is an automated investment advisory solution that helps

manage their investments and provide confidence for their financial future.

our investors determine their risk profile and receive an optimal portfolio allocation based on their risk

To help meet their goals, we aim at offering a holistic proposition through the coordination of an array of
Investment solutions, Wealth Structures, Real Estate Advisory, Alternative Investments, Financial Plans,
and other Consultative services.
From the primary meeting to ongoing reporting, we aim at offering our clients wealth planning and
investment advice to overcome their financial obstacles. This enables us to have a better understanding
as we prepare solutions to achieve their goals and build their personal balance sheet. Our aim is to
develop a truly custom investment strategy that incorporates both financial and non-financial objectives,
assess our clients’ tolerance for risk and evolve as their needs change to potentially transfer their wealth
to their future generations.
As a fundamentally unique profession, wealth management requires a broad skill set of practitioners, we
therefore bring together a team of professionals with academic qualifications, international accreditations
and extensive experience in various disciplines. We believe the strength of client relationships is the key
factor in its success; therefore, we focus on hiring and retaining advisors with a passion for delivering
outstanding client experience and offering category-leading products and services.
The removal of the banking secrecy in offshore centers, the automatic exchange of information and the
recent development in the FinTech space have had significant implications on the industry. The corollaries
of regulation and innovation have led to heightened competition and more transparent commission
schemes. It is therefore imperative for wealth managers to demonstrate clearly how they add value.
Furthermore, the mobile and digital client experience is becoming the new currency of success.

aversion using an advanced in-house developed algorithm. To further inform our clients and present with
more transparency regarding their real estate assets, we are in the process of launching BEMO first real
estate index based on the sole factor of supply, which is aiming to act as a reference at any point of time.
The index has a distinctive approach to collect data and is based on all supply advertisement on the web
covering the entire Lebanese market.
We will continue our endeavor to complement an industry deeply rooted in tradition, with a high-touch,
high-tech model, while maintaining the classic, relationship-driven business model in wealth management.
Our lives are increasingly digital and our finances are no exception, this is why we will continue expanding
our suite of digital wealth management capabilities. Our clear forethought allows us to chart the course
for growth through digitization, while decreasing risk and increasing customer satisfaction and retention.
Furthermore, the Wealth & Investment Management aspires to further expand its advisory platform to
cover new disciplines including philanthropy and investments of passion among others. We also aspire to
introduce new research reports providing our readers with a more in-depth analysis. We believe that the
successful execution of our initiatives and strategies will enhance the quality and diversity of our earnings
while living the bank’s values.
Our strong partnership and complementary services with our sister company Bemo Europe- Banque
Privée allows us to offer our clientele a unique access to a full wealth management suite. We are therefore
able to offer borderless advisory to address most of our clients’ challenges.
With a strong commitment and dedication to serve our clients and their families, our core value proposition

As we navigate through this change, the Wealth & Investment Management has invigorated the research

is to provide the right financial information driving insights and facilitating decision-making. We therefore

publications to allow an easy and continuous access from any personal or mobile platform. Interactive

aim at developing a consolidated wealth balance sheet offering a comprehensive view that provides a

and dedicated online documents have been designed for a meaningful communication with our clients.

holistic assessment of a familiy’s wealth. Reviewing and analyzing the various components of the assets

In order to provide our clientele with a highly sophisticated investment process and reporting capabilities,

and liabilities is an essential step to the effective management, structuring and preservation of wealth.

while maintaining the client-centered responsiveness of a private bank, we have developed an automated
portfolio solution offering a comprehensive and confidential portfolio review & analysis to investors. We
also aim at offering a comprehensive and holistic wealth statement report with specific benchmarks and
covering alternative investments.
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BUSINESS REVIEWS
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

GOVERNMENT ENTITIES BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

The Financial Institutions Department is committed to building and maintaining solid relationships with

The Government Entities Business Development Unit has been pushing forward to anchor the network

correspondents, enabling Banque BEMO clients to access worldwide markets. In addition to its support

it has been working on during the previous years. Awareness acceleration among stakeholders has

function, the Financial Institutions Department has enhanced its business model to a proactive and

contributed to a unique branding and to a singular positioning with positive repercussions on the image

income generating profit center, whereby the team acts as the entry point for developing corporate,

of Banque BEMO. The Unit contributed, among others, to the adhesion of the Bank to the Investors for

private and trade businesses within markets.

Governance & Integrity network.

The Financial Institutions Department implements a strategy that goes with Banque BEMO’s approach of

In addition, the Government Entities Business Development Unit has remained focused on the markets’

client centricity. The team synergizes with the business lines by aiming to supply tailored and personalized

needs. Endeavors to tackle the unresolved Solid Waste (SW) issue were pursued. However, efforts were

financing solutions to the Bank’s clients.

shifted to the study of superstructure projects with municipalities. The approach used was holistic as

The team will continuously strengthen its position by optimizing its worldwide and local relationships to
adhere to the Bank’s vision, mission and values. It is constantly looking to tap into new markets, to seize

not only a blended financial solution was put on the table but also legal and technical propositions were
appended, to the package offered.

potential business opportunities and to diversify its distribution channels as part of its progress towards

In continuation of the adopted line in 2016, NGOs, universities and schools were contacted. Besides the

BEMO 2020 strategy.

above, a Memorandum Of Understanding was signed with Instituto de Empresa (IE University) - Spain:
it covered many topics including formation and training.
Throughout 2018, the Unit aims at expanding its cooperation with other departments within the Bank in
order to achieve preset targets.
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BUSINESS REVIEW
HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT

OUR VISION

OUR MISSION

OUR MOTTO

“To become the EMPLOYER

“Optimizing the Bank results through

“Putting People First”

of choice for EMPLOYEES, the

Clients Satisfaction

CLIENTS want to work with”

Enhancing existing and creating new

The purpose of this program was to materialize and live the Bank value of “Family Spirit” while giving the
chance for our future generation to have a space of coaching and guiding.
This is a continuous program through which we accompany the participants to learn new things, unleash
the potential in them and benefit from a new unique experience.

HR processes

In 2017, the program started by launching the first activity for the most junior team (4 to 7 years old).

Providing an engaging work and culture

It began with a lunch all together for socializing purpose. The core activities consisted of a mental and

of development and growth”

physical journey of investigation, exploration and adults’ role play at an expert center dedicated for these
types of activities. Assigned mentors were responsible to teach the kids how to accept each other’s,
share while playing and develop their self-care skills and areas of interest.

I. HR MANAGEMENT PARTNERSHIP WITH THE BUSINESS

The second activity within the same spirit was to congratulate children with honor grades in their

The HR Management department aims always to approach the employees’ works and efforts to the Bank

scholastic year. All children with exceptional educational results during 2017 were invited to a gathering

strategy and objectives while successfully maintaining the market demands and environment challenges.

in the presence of the Chairman of the Board and the Vice Chairman and General Manager, to felicitate

We always look at promoting the Bank culture and values in all our activities to reflect a proper conduct

them by celebrating their success and giving them gifts as awards from Banque BEMO.

that will assist in the long-term relationship with our stakeholders.

II. 2- Employee Engagement and Satisfaction Survey

During the year, we worked on providing a constant career development to our staff through a set of
learnings sessions that matches with their need to be well equipped to serve and anticipate clients’

Based on our practice of openness and transparency, we designed this year the Employee Engagement

needs with a strong focus on Management and Leadership.

take corrective actions where needed.

We were always committed to attract new talented employees while managing carefully the balance
between the external talent acquisition that gives equal opportunity to candidates who wish to follow
their career ambitions with our Bank (6% of the total workforce), and internal mobility that enables our
employees to expand their knowledge, skills and abilities (2.16% of the total workforce).

and Satisfaction Survey to gain an insight into the level of happiness, commitment and engagement, and

The purpose of this survey was to enhance internal working environment in order to better focus on our
clients’ service and needs. It was accomplished in September 2017, and was addressed to the entire
workforce.

At the HR Management department we ensure the execution of all our actions based on our predefined Principles (Equity, Dignity, Fairness, Credibility, Transparency, Confidentiality) and Belief

A report listing all strength and weak areas identified by employees was communicated to heads of

(Happy Employees = Happy Clients).

and come-up with an action plan for enhancement.

II. HR MANAGEMENT ACTIONS

II. 3- Learning & Development

In 2017, our activities were in line with the Bank values, strategic orientation and 2020 HR Management
business strategy performed through the following:

As we do believe in the importance of supporting the personal and professional development of our

II. 1- “Future Generation” – Staff Children Coaching Program
The HR Management department introduced this year the “Future Generation” program which targets
the children of our staff from 4 to 24 years old split over four teams; whereas we organize activities to

departments who were recommended to hold meetings with their team to discuss the highlighted facts

employees, the HR Management department invested this year in several indoor, outdoor and abroad
trainings; complemented by BEMO E-learning solution.
We covered different type of topics related to soft and technical skills. As well we provided sessions
related to compliance and risk in order to be in line with regulatory requirements.

each team aiming at developing their capacities and exploiting their potential.
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HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT
II. 3.2- BEMO E-Learning Solution

II. 3.1 -Training
The focus in 2017 was diversified, however below details are for two major programs conducted on top
of others:

Following last year start-up of learning digitalization as a new HRM tool, we launched in November 2017
the second year program in which we provided employees with personalized plans designed based on

• Executive Leadership Camp and Tribal Mapping: two workshops conducted by foreign trainers and

their competencies management results and work requirements.

tailored for a total period of four full days in which our Chairman, Vice Chairman and General Manager

In addition, a full access was granted to the MOOC and AML/CFT libraries to benefit from them as a

as well as Directors were completely detached from their work engagements.

space of personal development.

The purpose of these sessions was to stimulate a positive change while triggering systemic thinking
towards people, business and culture management.

Employees’ opinion regarding the importance of E-Learning sessions with respect to their job
requirements was as follows:

• Management Development Program: designed for a period of seven months for a group of managers
and managers to be, to focus on the mindset shifting from individual to collective contributor.
It promoted the learning of Leading Oneself, Leading the Team and Leading the Business.
In addition to all internal and external trainings, our managers attended several abroad trainings and
conferences related to their field of specialization, through which they were exposed to multinational
trends and practices.
Total investment in Learning & Development reached (1.89%) of total basic salaries.
TRAINING BREAKDOWN 2017

In line with the Client Centricity approach, the HR Management team aims at involving our clients in
developmental activities by extending the E-Learning platform for interested clients, and make it
accessible during 2018.
Accordingly, joint effort between Learning and Development team and business lines managers is
envisaged for this purpose.
II. 3.3- On-The-Job Rotation Program
A developmental program launched this year for a large group of employees, selected based on their line
managers recommendations, the gap analysis conducted by the HRM and their need to better perform
Hours of training
Investment

their present job.
The purpose of this program was to provide a hands-on experience on different aspects of the banking
activities, give a comprehensive knowledge of transactions chain, and help employees seeing the impact
of their job on other units and vice versa.
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OPERATIONS MANAGEMENT
The program started by series of presentations conducted by each business owner to describe the main

Our pursuit of Operational Excellence is focused on two main components: systematically managing our

activities and their influence on other business lines.

operational processes and investing in developing the right culture. For us, Operational Excellence is not

II.4- Recruitment and On-Boarding

only in concepts like cost cutting, waste elimination, standardization and efficiency, but it goes beyond
the traditional model: it is a mindset improvement.

Throughout 2017, we were dedicated to attract talented candidates who have the needed skills and
capabilities for our vacant positions.

In 2017, we focused on meeting our customers’ expectations through the continuous improvement of

On top of their education and experience background, HR Management selection was highly based on

our operational processes, aiming to become the best version of our legacy and valuable Bank. Our

the candidates drive for success, cultural fit and mutual interest.

aim is to outperform our standards by maximizing value creation, operational excellence and customer

Our recruitment need for this year was diversified which gave the opportunity to a larger number of

satisfaction. For that, we set the agenda that will put us on the right path of self-improvement.

candidates to post their CVs on the Bank website or via LinkedIn, whereas the topnotch among them
were selected representing 6% of the entire workforce.

Throughout its years of experience, the Operations Management gained ability to quickly adapt, not just
to regulatory changes, but also to cultural, operational, situational and technological changes. For us,

Following the recruitment and in order to ensure a correct integration of newly hired employees with the

everything is a top priority: a perfect outcome with urgent delivery. Most importantly, the flow of value

Bank environment we maintained the process of induction program while initiating a meeting with each

creation is visible to each and every employee within the Operations Management; Each member of

one every quarter to discuss the challenges they are facing, share their success stories, and mitigate

the team has the capacity to identify any possible enhancements that can be performed to the current

obstacles if any.

work flow. Subsequently, our tailored banking services are being shaped by customer demand hence

During the meetings, we make sure that new joiners receive all learning material, and are in the right track

providing our clients with more “right-now” experiences, not only by giving them access to what they

enabling them to work in accordance with the Bank vision, strategies and objectives.

want, whenever they want it, but also by exceeding their expectations.

II.5- Reward of Achievements

As a result of our commitment to excellence, we added more quality to our performance by introducing

Our systematic approach to reward by setting objectives at the beginning of the year, conducting mid-year

new KPIs to fine tune the quality of services delivered to our clients who are the core source of our value

review during the second quarter, and comparing results versus objectives at the end of each year proved

and growth. In fact, our ultimate goal is to provide perfect value to our customers by trying to decrease

to be a successful, fair and transparent method for managing people performance.

our 0.01% error rate even more. As a matter of fact, our error rate decreased steadily from 0.03% in 2014

All the above combined with the 360 degree evaluation for Cadres level employees, were linked to a

to reach 0.01% in 2017. This was the consequence of our deep search for the root cause of such failures

reward scheme to decide on final results.

and brainstorming ways to prevent their recurrence.

II.6- Summer Internship
Banque BEMO highly encourage students’ internships as they believe in the capabilities of young people
and wish always to promote the attractiveness of these people to the banking sector globally and to the
real life jobs specifically.
Accordingly, we hosted sixteen students for an internship period ranging between one and two months
during which they were exposed to several departments concluded by an assigned project in line with
their educational background.

Moreover, we worked directly with our clients towards the quality common goal through the Quality
Performance Award, launched in 2016. This program, which aims to award clients for the operational
efficiency of their commercial orders, improved the operational processes and raised transparency. The
Quality Performance Award program and Incentive program were highly appreciated by clients as per
the KPIs introduced to measure customer satisfaction. Moreover, the quality performance ratio of the
forms and evidence submitted by clients improved significantly which added a more positive impact on
compliance and operational efficiency.
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KEY CONTROL FUNCTIONS
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
In light of the technological wave that is taking the financial sector by storm, the Operations Management

In 2017, the Corporate Social Responsibility unit was committed to put in place the sustainable and

is moving steadily towards automation and digitalization. The Eastnets-en.SafeWatch, which is ranked as

Corporate Social Responsibility framework which focused on three pillars: economic, environmental

a top filtering solution, optimized our transaction processing by automating the escalation process to the

and social, whereby several related initiatives marked the year 2017. Following the Bank’s joining

Compliance Department. Indeed, compliance is no longer an extra duty as it became an embedded task

the United Nations Global Compact Lebanon as signatory, Banque BEMO has pledged to 3

in our daily work hence helping us face the regulatory pressure exercised.

Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) whereby the high-level activities are described as follows:

Moreover, automation projects have been launched in coordination with InformationTechnology department

• SDG 8: Decent Work & Economic Growth

in order to optimize the use of our current resources hence getting our arms around operations.

Actions undertaken in 2017 under SDG 8 included promoting internal talents and sharing the fruits

Our 2020 goals are becoming more and more concrete as we will be working, in 2018, on many
transformation projects that will lead the way into 2019 and 2020. The Operations Management, being
one of the main business owners of these projects will work in close collaboration with all the involved
parties to ensure their success.
Our biggest challenge is to stay engaged with the customer. We listen to our clients’ demands, invest in

of employees’ efforts by rewarding exceptional achievements as well as launching the “Chief of
Happiness” initiative, focusing on making the workplace happiness a priority.
Furthermore, several conferences related to economic issues were organized for a variety of
audiences, delivered by internal speakers as well as external guest speakers.
Banque BEMO remains committed to the Arts and more specifically to the music through its
unconditional support to large festivals, concerts and events.

technologies in order to deliver Operational Excellence and stay ahead in compliance requirements. This
will help us stand tall in front of the regulatory storm as well as the fast pace of change in the banking

• SDG 13: Climate Action

and financial industry without neglecting our client-centric approach.

Under the “Climate Action” pillar, Banque BEMO became a Carbon Neutral Organization,
introducing Carbon footprint analysis and management. This initiative was a key step on the path

The Operations Management’s goal is to be “Future Ready” which will require an accelerated adoption

to a sustainable positive impact on climate change and further fosters Banque BEMO as a socially

of key technologies and look to the growing FinTech ecosystem, delivering the business experiences

responsible business.

our customers want and deserve. Conversely, we need to keep on building and capitalizing on the
sustainable processes already in place. In fact, optimizing our current processes cannot be stopped as

• SDG 15: Life on Land

we are embracing transformational changes.

Banque BEMO supported “Life on Land” in 2017 by offsetting the Bank’s carbon emissions through

This is the powerful balance we strive to achieve: balance between present contentment and future
performance towards the best version of ourselves.

the reforestation of Jabal Moussa (planting and maintenance of 600 trees).
*The detailed CSR activities undertaken under the above 3 SDGs are subject to a Communication
on Progress that shall be issued and published in August 2018.
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KEY CONTROL FUNCTIONS
RISK MANAGEMENT
GENERAL OVERVIEW
BUSINESS MODEL
Risk management is an integral part of Banque BEMO’s daily activities. In line with regulatory requirements,
the Bank adopts an enterprise-wide risk management approach covering an extensive spectrum of risk
areas, including credit risk, market risk, liquidity risk and operational risk. Banque BEMO adopts adequate
measures and is equipped with the necessary tools for identifying all the prevailing and potential key risks
and risk drivers it could be facing; ensuring proper measurement and proactive mitigation techniques are
implemented.

The main objective of this model is the timely recognition of losses, addressing the issue of delayed
recognition of credit losses, which was identified during the 2008 financial crisis.
The adoption of IFRS 9 by the Bank is based on Lebanon’s Central Bank endorsement of the standard and
in line with regulatory requirements namely BDL basic circular no 143.
BUSINESS PLAN: BEMO 2020
Risk Management’s strategy for 2020 falls within the Bank’s business strategic goals, attending to its
growth plans and accommodating to its client centric model.
The Risk Management department’s primary objective is to preserve the Bank’s solid reputation and

The Board of Directors, through its Board Risk Committee sets forth the Bank’s risk appetite & risk

further reinforce its standing and resilience to local and international tremors, building on its strong risk

tolerance statements, specifying the amount and types of risks the Bank is able and willing to accept in

and control culture, which is embedded in all activities.

order to achieve its strategic goals. The principal role of risk management is to ensure that risk-taking
remains within the Bank’s strategy and risk appetite, and that the balance between risk and reward is
maintained in order to maximize shareholders’ value.
Management committees, such as the Asset & Liability Committee or the Credit Committee, assist the

Risk Management’s main focus for the coming years is the development of pre-emptive approaches;
providing insights on emerging risks and the maintenance of an overall control framework allowing for a
healthy long-term sustainable growth

Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities on risk-related matters.
Through the past years, adequate capitalization levels, abundant liquidity buffers, and strong asset quality
were Banque BEMO’s basis of resilience to international shocks, regional unrest and a local challenging
economic and financial environment.
DEVELOPMENTS IN 2017
Increasing regulatory requirements marked the year 2017. Preparing the Bank to the adoption of the
new International Financial Reporting Standards 9 (IFRS 9) starting January 2018, was one of the main
challenges in 2017. On the basis of the asset classification, IFRS9 introduced a single forward-looking
expected credit loss (ECL) model, which is to be applied to all financial instruments that are subject to
impairment accounting.
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KEY CONTROL FUNCTIONS
COMPLIANCE
Banque BEMO endeavors to conform to all applicable international and local laws and regulations,

Regulatory Compliance

prioritizing compliance activities so as to reduce any “compliance risk” the Bank could face.

Due to the innovation of technology and the diversity of financial products and banking services in this

In order to manage its “compliance risk” more effectively, the Bank has an independent compliance

day and age, further elevated by globalization, banks are facing an ever changing and increasingly complex

function in place that is consistent with BDL circular No 128 dated 12/01/2013. Moreover, compliance is

regulatory environment, which Banque BEMO has to adhere to. Non-compliance may result in litigation,

a part of the culture of Banque BEMO where the compliance culture is resilient and robust at every level

penalties and reputational losses. Therefore, the establishment of a legal compliance unit is one of the

of the Bank’s corporate structure.

most essential tasks for a bank in order to secure the soundness of its business and to mitigate financial,

In accordance with BDL circular No 128, the Bank has a designated Compliance Officer with a direct
reporting line to the Board Compliance and AML/CFT committee. The Compliance department upholds
the necessary authority, autonomy and resources to carry out its duties in a transparent manner. Internal
and external auditors inspect compliance and anti-money laundering measures annually. Hence, providing
an independent assurance to the Board of Directors.
Furthermore, Banque BEMO is committed to client centricity, whereas we take the Bank’s integrity

regulatory and reputational risks. The legal compliance unit ensures that all departments are aware of and
adhering to all applicable laws and regulations. In this regard, a series of in-house and external training
courses, e-training sessions and guidelines were developed and provided to the concerned employees.
In addition to the implementation of the U.S. FATCA, the Compliance department took a major undertaking
throughout 2017, in line with the regulations based on OECD Common Reporting Standard (CRS) for the
automatic exchange of information to combat tax evasion, the Bank has amended its systems, processes
and procedure to meet CRS requirements.

and name seriously to sustain the faith entrusted to the Bank by our clients. Therefore, during 2017
the Bank persisted in improving compliance efficiency and awareness within the Bank, which has been
strengthened by the Compliance department following the bank’s ISO 9001:2015 certification thus
extending the credibility of the compliance systems in place.
Anti-Money Laundering and Combating Financing of Terrorism (AML & CFT)
The AML/CFT unit oversees the policy and procedure covering customer due diligence, transactions
monitoring and reporting of suspicious activity. The policy and procedure are reviewed annually and
approved by the Board of Directors. Consequently, the Bank has a thorough approach concerning customer
onboarding, due diligence, know your customer (KYC) and risk classification standards. Our screening
methods abide by all local and international requirements and the Bank’s watch lists are updated on a
regular basis.
All prospect clients are subject to the approval of the “Customer Acceptance Committee” and the
Compliance department is actively involved in the onboarding process. Banque BEMO’s scrupulous
approach is imperative to reduce any money laundering risk the Bank could face. Each employee is
determined to protect the Bank from being used to conceal illicit funds. This responsibility was cultivated
through training and awareness sessions, the trainings conducted vary from internal to external sessions
conducted by various organizations.
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INTERNAL AUDIT

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS

The Internal Audit function independently reviews Banque BEMO activities based on a risk-based audit

The discussion and analysis that follows covers the consolidated performance of Banque BEMO SAL in

approach duly approved by the Board Audit Committee.

2017, based on the audited consolidated financial statements of the Bank as at and for the fiscal years

The independence status of the Internal Audit emanates from the governance structure where the Head
of the Internal Audit reports functionally to the Chairman of the Board Audit Committee.
With strict accountability for confidentiality and safeguarding of records and information, the scope of
audit coverage is Bank-wide embracing branches, subsidiaries in Lebanon and abroad.
The Internal Audit carries out assurance services in line with the Central Bank of Lebanon prerequisites, as

ended December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016. The Bank’s consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with standards issued or adopted by the International Accounting Standards
Board and interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee and
general accounting plan for banks in Lebanon and the regulations of the Central Bank of Lebanon and
the Banking Control Commission, and include the results of the Bank and its consolidated subsidiaries
BEMO Securitization SAL and Depository & Custody Company SAL. Where appropriate in the context,

well as consultancy services in response to the Board of Directors’ increased expectations to anticipate

references to the Bank include the Bank and such consolidated subsidiaries.

emerging risks and providing proactive ways to address them.

All figures are presented in Lebanese Pounds, unless specifically otherwise stated. In each case where

In the call for embracing challenges and seeking innovation for the contribution to the business success,
the Internal Audit workforce capitalize on every opportunity to expand their professional knowledge and
skills with globally recognized certification, training, and other value-driven services.
Furthermore, the Internal Audit operates in close collaboration with other departments, mainly Compliance
and Risk Management in order to (i) promote the synergy among the control functions (ii) improve the
effectiveness of the Bank’s Internal Control System and (iii) enhance customers’ experience.

the US Dollar (USD) currency has been used, the relevant rate for both balance sheet data and income
statement data was LBP 1,507.5 per USD 1.00, as, throughout the periods covered in this section, the
Central Bank has maintained its policy of pegging the value of the Lebanese Pound to the U.S. Dollar at
a fixed rate of LBP 1507.5 per USD 1.00. References to foreign currency translation differences or changes
reflect the impact of the movement of functional currencies in countries of presence against the US Dollar.
Lebanese Banking sector information has been derived from Association of Lebanese Banks reports and
data, Bankdata Financial Services WLL and the Bank’s internal sources.

In 2018, new orientations will be embraced in line with the client centricity approach whereby the
Internal Audit will raise awareness among the stakeholders about the Internal Audit function and provide
consultancy services, whenever needed.

I. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS
The Bank’s consolidated assets grew by 0.60% as at December 31, 2017 in comparison to December 31,

An alliance is anticipated with the Internal Audit at the level of the entire Obegi Group with the main

2016 noting that during the same period and according to data released by the Association of Lebanese

objective to build on the experience of peers to move forward in the profession.

Banks, total assets growth of the Lebanese Banking Sector reached 7.61%. Consolidated Total assets by
end of 2017 reached LBP 2,666,440 million (US$ 1,768.78 million) as compared to LBP 2,650,550 million
(US$ 1,758.24 million) as at December 31, 2016 growing by LBP 15,890 million (US$ 10.54 million).
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Major Balance Sheet Items

Assets Breakdown

			Change
LBP Million

2017

2016

17-16

50.00%
43.11%

30.00%

Cash, compulsory reserve and central banks

632,223

549,560

15.04%

Deposits with banks and financial institutions

138,764

298,217

-53.47%

12,839

17,512

-26.68%

Loans to banks and financial institutions
Loans and advances to customers*

39.26%

40.00%
24.45%

23.71%

20.00%
10.00%

25.65%

20.73%
11.25%

5.20%

0.00%

0.48%

3.05%

1,040,573

10.48%

651,879

679,777

-4.10%

Bank acceptances

12,779

6,937

84.22%

Other assets and investment in associates

68,333

57,974

17.87%

Cash, Reserve & CB

Dep. with banks & FI

Loans to banks

Total Assets

2,666,440

2,650,550

0.60%

Loans to customers

Financial Assets

Other Assets

Customer Deposits*

2,081,306

2,189,145

-4.93%

12,779

6,937

84.22%

184,668

135,967

35.82%

Subordinated Bonds

91,831

37,688

143.66%

Other Liabilities

33,008

38,357

-13.95%

2,403,592

2,408,094

-0.19%

Investment securities and financial assets

Engagement by acceptances
Deposits and borrowings from banks and financial institutions

Total Liabilities

			
Total Shareholders’ Equity

262,848

242,456

8.41%

			
Total Liabilities & Equity

2,666,440

2,650,550

0.60%

2.45%

0.66%

1,149,623

2017

2016

Loans and advances to customers constitute the largest uses of funds in terms of total assets where
their share stood at 43.11% of total assets in 2017 (39.26% in 2016) followed by Financial assets and
Investment securities where the share was equivalent to 24.45% in 2017 (25.65% in 2016). Cash,
compulsory reserve and central banks constituted 23.71% in 2017 as compared to 20.73% in 2016.
Deposits with Banks and Financial Institutions reached 5.20% of total assets in 2017 as compared to
11.25% in 2016. The breakdown of the Bank’s assets and the distribution indicated are in line with the
Bank’s business model.
Loans and advances to customers (including related parties) increased by 10.48% reaching LBP 1,149,623

Net Income for the Year

27,782

23,745

17.00%

million (US$ 762.60 million) as at December 31, 2017 as compared to LBP 1,040,573 million (US$ 690.26
million) as at December 31, 2016. Deposits with banks and financial institutions amounted to LBP 138,764

*Loans and advances to customers as well as customer deposits include related parties accounts.

million (US$ 92.05 million) in 2017 as compared LBP 298,217 million (US$ 197.82 million) in 2016. Other
assets were equivalent to LBP 68,333 million (US$ 45.33 million) in 2017 as compared to LBP 57,974
million (US$ 38.46 million) in 2016. This increase is mainly due to the additions to advances on capital
expenditures during the year 2017 in the amount of LBP 6.5billion, which represents an advance payment
on plot number 660 located in Medawar area where the Bank is acquiring new premises in a building
under construction for the purpose of housing the Bank’s headquarters, and an addition of LBP 3.4 billion
related to expansion and refurbishment works undertaken in Rabieh and Achrafieh branches.
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Loan Portfolio

The Bank’s doubtful and bad loans amounted to LBP 22,325 million (US$ 14.81 million) as at December

The Bank’s loans and advances to customers (excluding related parties) were equivalent to LBP 1,148,538

31, 2017 compared LBP 20,308 million (US$ 13.47 million) as at December 31, 2016 reflecting an increase

million (US$ 761.88 million) as at December 31, 2017 growing from LBP 1,037,927 million (US$ 688.51

of 9.93%. Unrealized interest on doubtful and bad debts totaled LBP 8,120 million (US$ 5.39 million) as at

million) in December 31, 2016 reflecting a year-on-year increase of 10.66%. Loans and advances to

December 31, 2017 compared to LBP 6,200 million (US$ 4.11 million) as at December 31, 2016 reflecting

related parties (as defined by Article 152 of the Code of Money and Credit and governing Central Bank

an increase of 30.97%. The coverage ratio (Unrealized Interest and Provisions/Doubtful and bad loans) for

of Lebanon circulars) are equivalent to LBP 1,085 million (US$719 thousand) as at December 31, 2017

2017 was equivalent to 66.58% as compared to 63.17% for 2016.

decreasing from LBP 2,646 million (US$ 1,755 thousand) in 2016 reflecting a year on year fall of 59.02%.

Substandard Loans net of unrealized interest and provision allowance reached LBP 19,712 million (US$

Analysis of the Loan Portfolio by type of Borrower and Loan Classification (including related parties)
The following table sets forth the breakdown of the bank’s loans (Gross), by classification, as at December
31, 2017 and 2016:

reflecting a 15.74% year-on-year increase.
With respect to the collective provision for loan impairment, it remained the same as in 2016.

			Variation
LBP million

13.08 million) at the end of 2017 as compared to LBP 17,032 million (US$ 11.30 million) at the end of 2016,

2017

2016

17-16

Regular Loans
1,122,922
1,016,929
10.42%
Substandard Loans
21,825
17,475
24.89%
Bad & Doubtful Loans
22,325
20,308
9.93%
Accrued Interest receivable
1,659
1,263
31.35%
Total gross loans
1,168,731
1,055,975
10.68%
			
Unrealized Interest on Substandard Loans
(2,113)
(443)
376.98%
Unrealized Interest on Bad & Doubtful Loans
(8,120)
(6,200)
30.97%
Provision Allowance on Substandard Loans
Provision allowance on Bad & Doubtful Loans
(6,745)
(6,629)
1.75%
Collective Provision for Loan Impairment
(2,130)
(2,130)
0.00%
Total net loans
1,149,623
1,040,573
10.48%
Unrealized interest & Provisions /substandard loans (%)
9.68
2.54
Unrealized interest & Prov/ doubtful and bad loans (%)
66.58
63.17
Net Doubtful & Bad Loans / Total loans (%)
0.65
0.72

The Bank’s conservative and prudent credit policy as well as the continuous monitoring of the Bank’s

Analysis of the Loan Portfolio by Currency
The following table sets forth the breakdown of the Bank’s loan portfolio by currency as at December 31,
2017 and 2016:

Bank’s loan portfolio		December 31, 2017 (C/V in LBP)

Loans and advances to customers
Loans and advances to related parties
Total Loans

LBP (million)

US$ (million)

Euro (million)

Other (million)

48,740
2
48,742

878,873
1,072
879,945

179,217
0
179,217

41,708
11
41,719

Bank’s loan portfolio		December 31, 2016 (C/V in LBP)

Loans and advances to customers
Loans and advances to related parties
Total Loans

LBP (million)

US$ (million)

Euro (million)

Other (million)

60,783
15
60,798

844,379
2,577
846,956

111,527
54
111,581

21,238
0
21,238

asset quality resulted in ameliorating the ratio of “Net doubtful & bad debts/Total loans” at a low of
0.65% by the end of 2017 as compared to 0.72% in 2016 as highlighted in the table above. The share of

The Bank’s loan portfolio is characterized by a high level of dollarization matching the currency composition

net doubtful and bad loans to total loans remains below 1% of the total loan portfolio. It is to be noted that

of the sources of funds. In December 31, 2017, 95.76% of total loans were denominated in foreign

on top of existing provisions, such facilities are secured by prime collateral where necessary foreclosures

currencies versus 94.16% in December 31, 2016 while the Lebanese banking sector average reached

and liquidations are being applied.

70.90% as at December 31, 2017 (as per the figures released by the Association of Banks in Lebanon &
BDL’s December 2017 Economic Bulletin).
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Total loans 2017

The Bank seeks to diversify the credit risk of its loan portfolio by distributing loans among the different

Total loans 2016

sectors of the economy, with a focus on sectors that are considered to be representing acceptable risks.

2%
4% 4%

As at December 31, 2017, up to 43.17% of the loans are extended to businesses with trading activities

6%

in various consumer products, 13.60% to manufacturing, 19.35% to real estate development (including

11%

prime contractors of private residential and commercial buildings duly covered by first degree mortgages

15%

and assignment of project proceeds), and the remaining 23.88 % to other economic sectors.
With respect to the Lebanese Banking Sector, and as per the Central Bank’s December 2017 Economic
Bulletin, 33.0% of the credits are extended to trade and services activities, 10.0% to manufacturing,
16.7% to real estate development and 40.3% to other economic sectors (including individuals) as at

81%

77%

December 31, 2017. The main difference between the Bank and the sector is the Bank’s minimal share
related to retail/individual lending as it does not fall under the Bank’s Target Market Criteria.
Analysis of the Loan Portfolio by Maturity

LBP (million)

Euro (million)

US$ (million)

Other (million)

LBP (million)

Euro (million)

US$ (million)

Other (million)

2017 and 2016:
LBP Million

Analysis of the Loan Portfolio by Economic Sector
The following table sets forth the breakdown of the Bank’s loan portfolio by economic sector as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016 (excluding the collective provision for loan impairment):
Analysis of the Loan Portfolio by Economic Sector
Analysis of the Loan Portfolio by Economic Sector
1,400,000

The following table sets forth the breakdown of the Bank’s loan portfolio by maturity as at December 31,

250.00%

204.98%

1,151,754

1,200,000

1,042,703

Maturity
Accounts with no maturity
Up to 3 months
3 to 12 months
12 months and above
Total

Variation

Share

2017

2016

17-16

2017

2016

660,116
434,882
53,495
1,130
1,149,623

690,093
328,726
20,758
997
1,040,574

-4.34%
32.29%
157.71%
13.24%
10.48%

57.42%
37.83%
4.65%
0.10%
100%

66.32%
31.59%
1.99%
0.10%
100%

200.00%

Similar to the current market practice in Lebanon, the major portion of the Bank’s loan portfolio is of

1,000,000

150.00%

800,000

100.00%

management strategy that aims at matching the maturities of the Bank’s sources of funds and its

50.00%

corresponding uses of funds, while maintaining adequate levels of liquidity.

0.00%

Additionally, more than 95% of loans granted by the Bank carry floating interest rates with minimum floor

6.05%

600,000

200,000
0

222,880
20,351

43.22%

497,261 470,397

13.84%

400,000

5.71%

156,675
195,780
147,757

4.07%

168,795 162,196
85,792 59,900

6,673

10.46%

-50.00%
-100.00%

short-term nature (overdrafts), with maturities rarely exceeding the 12 months period reflecting a credit

rates applied mitigating the bank’s exposure to interest rate risk.
Analysis of the Loan Portfolio by Size (excluding related parties, accrued interest, unearned interest
and collective provisions)
The following table classifies the outstanding loan balances by size as at December 31, 2017 and 2016:

2017

2016

Variation 17-16
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Outstanding Loan Balances

2017

2016

Bracket

# of % to Total LBP million % to Total
Clients
Clients		 Loans
				
Less than LL 500 mln*
937
73.49%
68,435
5.96%
From LL 500 mln – LL 5 bln
282
22.12%
471,523
41.04%
Over LL 5.0 bln
56
4.39%
609,051
53.00%
Total

1,275

100.0%

1,149,009

# of % to Total LBP million % to Total
Clients
Clients		 Loans

100.0%

958
272
57

74.44%
21.13%
4.43%

67,201
456,869
514,724

6.47%
43.98%
49.55%

1,287

100.0%

1,038,794

100.0%

Building on the Bank’s strategic direction to mainly service prime corporations (locally & regionally) –
mainly top ranked tiers in each respective industry – the table above is an indication of the Target Market
Criteria of client selection whereby more than 88% of the overall Loans & Advances exposure is allocated
to corporate customers as at December 31, 2017.
Collateralization of Loans
The following table sets forth the breakdown of the fair value of collateral held by the Bank covering the
performing loans and advances granted to customers as at December 31, 2017 and 2016:
Collateralization of Loans

Collateralization of Loans
*including numerous incidental debtor accounts

400,000

The total loan portfolio (excluding related parties) is spread over 1,275 clients, with 26.51% of the clients
covering 94.04% of the loan portfolio as at December 31, 2017. The Bank manages the diversification of
its portfolio to avoid undue credit risk concentrations.

365,396

350,000

10.00%

250,000
200,000

Analysis of the Loan Portfolio by Counterparty type
The following table sets forth below the outstanding loan balances by counterparty type as at December
31, 2017 and 2016 (carrying amount net of unrealized interest and impairment allowance and excluding

0

150,000
100,000

30.00%
20.00%

27.52%

300,000

Industry and sectorial analyses are also incorporated within the overall credit risk management framework.
In this respect, the Bank seeks to continually update lending and financing guidelines based on periodic
reviews and updates of industry and sectorial risk factors and economic outlooks. This facilitates the
better management of credit concentration risks.

350,029

139,376

199,911

164,507

4.39%

156,767

-9.20%

0.00%
-10.00%

-15.28%

-20.00%

50,000

26,109
Pledged funds

28,755
Equities

-30.00%

Real estate mortgage

2017

2016

Total

17-16

related parties):
LBP Million

Carrying amount net of unrealized interest

Counterparty type
Regular Retail Customers
Mortgage loans
Personal loans
Overdrafts
Other
Regular Corporate Customers
Large enterprises
Small and medium enterprises
Classified Retail Customers
Substandard
Bad & Doubtful
Classified corporate customers
Substandard
Bad & Doubtful
Collective Provision for Loan Impairment
Accrued interest receivable
Total

Variation

Share of
Total Loans

The chart above shows that the bank is still maintaining adequate coverage on loans and advances
extended to customers.
Distribution of Loan Portfolio by Geographical Area
The following Graph shows the distribution of the Bank›s Loan Portfolio (excluding related parties) by

2017

2016

17-16

2017

105,070
45,616
5,335
42,301
11,819
1,016,766
770,180
246,586
1,306
1,306
25,866
18,406
7,460
(2,130)
1,659
1,148,538

111,663
61,204
9,347
32,180
8,932
902,621
632,131
270,490
1,509
1,509
23,001
15,522
7,479
(2,130)
1, 263
1,037,927

-5.90%
-25.47%
-42.92%
31.45%
32.32%
12.65%
21.84%
-8.84%
-13.45%
-13.45%
12.46%
18.58%
-0.25%
0%
31.35%
10.66%

9.15%
3.97%
0.47%
3.68%
1.03%
88.53%
67.06%
21.47%
0.11%
0.11%
2.25%
1.60%
0.65%
(0.18)%
0.14%
100%

geographic area as at December 31, 2017 & 2016:

Loans Breakdown by Geographical Area
Loans Breakdown by Geographical Area

100%

92.96% 92.82%

80%
60%
40%
20%
0%
Lebanon

2.89% 3.18%

4.15% 3.98%

0.00% 0.02%

Middle East
and Africa

Europe

Other

2017

2016
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2016

As per the breakdown of the above table, as at December 31, 2017, the main concentration in terms of
the Loan Portfolio is in Lebanon where 92.96% of loans and advances are granted.
The following tables sets forth the breakdown of the Bank’s investment securities portfolio, by classification

LBP,
26.99%

(amortized cost and trading assets at fair value through profit or loss) as at December 31, 2017 and 2016:
Trading Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) excluding accrued interest:
(LBP Million)
Quoted equity securities
Lebanese treasury bills
Lebanese government bonds
Cert. of deposit issued by Central Bank
Cert. of deposit issued by comm. Banks
Corporate Bonds
Total Trading Assets at FVTPL

2017

Share

2016

Share

10,085
223
7,033
5,907
0
1,257
24,505

41.16%
0.91%
28.70%
24.10%
0%
5.13%
100%

7,099
16,778
20,114
37,568
754
1,885
84,198

8.43%
19.92%
23.89%
44.62%
0.90%
2.24%
100%

Total Trading Assets at FVTPL amounted to LBP 24,505 million (US$ 16.25 million) for the year 2017
compared to LBP 84,198 million (US$ 55.85 million) in 2016 reflecting a decrease of 70.90%.
At the end of 2017, 53.71% of the latter assets are sovereign investments (Lebanese Treasury Bills,
Lebanese Government bonds and Certificates of deposits issued by the Central Bank of Lebanon)
compared to 88.43% at the end of 2016. FVTPL assets represented respectively 0.92% and 3.18% of

Foreign
Currency
73.01%

The Graph above reveals that the share of LBP Base Balances accounted for 0.93% of total trading assets
held at FVTPL in 2017 compared to 26.99% at the end of 2016. In comparison, the share of Foreign

total assets at the end of 2017 and 2016.

Currency Base Balances increased from 73.01% in 2016 to 99.07% by the end of 2017.

With respect to the currency composition of Trading Assets at FVTPL, the latter was as follows as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016:

Financial assets held at Amortized Cost and at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income

2017

LBP,
0.93%

(FVTOCI):
(LBP Million)

2017

Share

Lebanese treasury bills
192,088
30.71%
Lebanese government bonds
101,453
16.22%
Cert. of deposit issued by Central Bank
302,554
48.37%
Corporate Bonds
19,797
3.16%
Accrued interest receivable
9,661
1.54%
				
Total Financial Assets held at Amortized Cost
625,553
100%
Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income
		

2016

Share

149,290
115,685
301,835
19,820
7,255

25.14%
19.48%
50.82%
3.34%
1.22%

593,885

100%

1,606		
639

Foreign
Currency
99.07%
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Total Financial Assets held at Amortized Cost were equivalent to LBP 625,553 million (US$ 414.96 million)

Funding Sources

for the year 2017 compared to LBP 593,885 million (US$ 393.95 million) in 2016 increasing by 5.33%
year-on-year.

90.00%

Around 47% of the latter assets are investments in Lebanese Treasury Bills and Government Bonds,

70.00%

while 48% are investments with the Central Bank of Lebanon (Certificates of Deposits) at the end of

60.00%

2017. Total financial assets held at Amortized Cost represented respectively 23.46% and 22.41% of total

50.00%

assets at the end of 2017 and 2016.

40.00%

With respect to the currency composition of Financial Assets held at Amortized Cost, the latter was as

20.00%

follows as at December 31, 2017 and 2016:

10.00%

82.59%

78.06%

80.00%

30.00%

3.44%

6.93%

1.72%

9.85%

9.15%

5.13%

1.42%

0.00%
2017

1.71%

2016

2016

2017

Banks’ Deposits

LBP,
35.20%

LBP,
42.18%

Customers’ Deposits

Subordinated Dept

Other Liabilities

Shareholders’ equity

The Bank’s funding resources continue to be mainly driven by customers’ deposits accounting for
78.06% of the Bank’s total liabilities and shareholders equity at December 31, 2017, while the remaining
are accounted for by bank deposits (6.93%), subordinated debt (3.44%), other liabilities (1.72%) and
shareholders’ equity (9.85%).
Time Deposits represent the largest portion of the Bank’s deposits, owing to the private and corporates

Foreign
Currency
57.82%

Foreign
Currency
64.80%

that are selected by the nature of the banking operations and the business model of the Bank.
The following graph depicts the breakdown of the Bank’s Customers’ Deposits (excluding related parties
deposits) by currency as at December 31, 2017 and 2016:
Bank’s customer’s Deposits by Currency (Million)

Bank’s customer’s Deposits by Currency (Million)
The graph above reveals that the share of LBP Base Accounts accounted for 42.18% of total financial
assets held at Amortized Cost in 2017 compared to 35.20% at the end of 2016. In comparison, the share
of Foreign Currency Base Accounts decreased to 57.82% in 2017 coming from 64.80% by the end of 2016.
It is to be noted that the bank has documented an investment policy approved and reviewed regularly by

2,000,000
1,500,000

During the year 2017, the Group entered into several sales transactions of Lebanese Treasury bills, Lebanese
Government bonds, certificates of deposit issued by the Central Bank of Lebanon, and Corporate bonds
of aggregate carrying value of LBP47billion, LBP49billion, LBP47billion and LBP1.5billion, respectively.

1,489,145

60.00%

10.77%

500,000

80.00%

78.48%

1,000,000

ALCO and the Board of Directors detailing the investment strategy and subsequent asset allocation and
limits in line with the Supervisory Authorities prerogatives.

100.00%
1,564,102

9.34%

328,975

214,754

186,203

209,801

1.12%

22,276

31,342

0.29%

5,753 18,929

0
LBP

US$

Customers’ Accounts 2017

Euro

GBP

Customers’ Accounts 2016

Other

40.00%
20.00%
0.00%

2017 In %
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Customers’ Deposits in Lebanese Pounds accounted for only 10.77% of total deposits as of December

Short-term deposits with maturities up to 3 months and accounts with no maturity accounted for around

31, 2017, with the remaining balance being in foreign currency deposits. Such an allocation, coupled with

81% of total customers’ deposits while deposits with maturities of up to 12 months exceeded 98% of

the relatively lower interest rates on foreign currency deposits resulted in an acceptable average cost of

total customers’ deposits as at December 31, 2017.

funds.
The average cost of funds on customers’ deposits at amortized cost (including related party deposits)
during the last 3 years was as follows:
Year

Average Rate LBP (%)

Average rate FCY (%)

2017
2016
2015

6.10
6.17
6.17

3.27
3.03
2.86

Capital and Capital Adequacy
The major current components of Tier One and Tier Two Capital of the Bank are as follows:
1. Eligible share capital: The issued and outstanding share capital of the Bank consists of 62 million
nominative common shares authorized and fully paid with a par value of LBP 1,004 per share and divided
as follows:
Listed Shares: 51,400,000
Unlisted Shares: 10,600,000
2. Shareholders’ cash contribution to capital: This caption represents capital injection of USD19,306,789

Customers’ Deposits by Size (excluding related parties)

made by shareholders, in the form of shareholders’ cash contribution to capital, each to the extent of his/

The following table sets forth the Bank’s customers deposits (excluding related parties accounts) by size

her shareholding in the Group’s equity. Effective 2011, the General Assembly of shareholders approved to

as at December 31, 2017 and 2016:

call-off interest on cash contribution to capital.
2017

By size in LBP million
Amount
%
			

This type of equity instrument consists of non-refundable capital injection which could be converted into

2016
% to Total No.
Amount
% % to Total No.
of customers			
of customers

share capital and it has the advantage of being booked and maintained in foreign currencies which allows
for hedging against national currency fluctuation.

< 200 million
200 million – 1.50 Billion
Over 1.5 Billion

145,887
596,629
1,250,572

7.32
29.93
62.75

72.20
22.31
5.49

148,199
622,354
1,307,639

7.13
29.95
62.92

72.66
21.94
5.40

3. Reserves: Reserves consist of the following as at December 31, 2017 and 2016:

Total

1,993,088

100%

100%

2,078,192

100%

100%

Customers’ Deposits by Maturity
The following table sets forth the distribution of the Bank’s customers’ deposits (excluding related
accounts) by initial stated maturity as at December 31, 2017 and 2016:
Maturity

2017

%

2016

%

Accounts with no maturity
Up to 3 months
3 to 12 months
12 months and above

356,067
1,253,001
357,315
26,705

17.86
62.87
17.93
1.34

398,021
1,259,729
359,411
61,031

19.15
60.62
17.29
2.94

Total

1,993,088

100%

2,078,192

100%

(LBP Million)

2017

2016

Legal reserve
Reserve for general banking risks
General reserve for performing loans
Reserve for assets acquired in satisfaction of loans
Reserve from disposal of assets acquired in satisfaction of loans
Free reserves

9,110
35,552
4,069
1,021
182
6,209

6,846
31,904
4,054
870
182
6,209

Total Reserves

56,143

50,065

In accordance with the requirements of the Lebanese Money and Credit Law, the Group transfers since its
inception 10% of its net income to the legal reserve account. This reserve is not available for distribution.
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The reserve for general banking risks is constituted according to local banking regulations from income

Pursuant to Central Bank Decision No 10848 dated December 7, 2011, adopted with respect to the

on the basis of a minimum of 2 per mil and a maximum of 3 per mil of the total risk weighted assets,

application of the Basel III regulation, all banks operating in Lebanon must gradually reach the following

off-balance sheet risk and global exchange position as defined for the computation of the solvency ratio

capital ratios:

at year-end. The cumulative reserve should not be less than 1.25% at the end of the 10th year (2007) and
2% at the end of the 20th year. This reserve is constituted in Lebanese Pounds and in foreign currencies
As per BDL intermediary circular number 436 dated September 30, 2016

to the extent of LBP3.05billion and LBP32.5billion, respectively, in proportion to the composition of the
Bank’s total risk weighted assets and off-balance sheet items. This reserve is not available for distribution

Description

4. Eligible retained earnings: This represents the accumulated undistributed profits

Common Equity Tier 1 Ratio
Tier 1 Ratio
Total Capital Ratio

5. Currency Translation Adjustments: This mainly represents the currency translation adjustment related
to the investment in an associate incorporated in Syria where the carrying value was readjusted for the
effect of prolonged decline in exchange of the Syrian Pound against the US Dollar caused by the ailing

31/12/2016

31/12/2017

31/12/2018

8.5%
11.0%
14.0%

9.0%
12.0%
14.5%

10.0%(*)
13.0%(*)
15.0% (*)

(*) including the Capital Conservation Buffer required by Basel Committee equivalent to 4.5%

economic situation as a result of the hostilities initiated in 2011.
6. Subordinated Bonds (Tier II Capital): The exceptional general assembly of shareholders approved in

Scope of Application of Central Bank Capital Adequacy Calculation

its meeting held on September 5, 2017 the issuance of subordinated bonds in the amount of USD35million

The name of the top corporate entity in the group, to which these regulations apply, is Banque Bemo

divided into 3,500 bonds of USD10,000 nominal value each. These bonds were issued on December 7,

SAL. The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the International Financial

2017 and mature on January 4, 2024 and are subject to an annual interest of 7% payable on June 30 and

Reporting Standards (IFRS). The following entities of the group are fully consolidated with the results of

December 31 of each year.

Banque Bemo SAL for regulatory purposes:

The exceptional general assembly of shareholders approved in its meeting held on October 24, 2014 the
issuance of subordinated bonds in the amount of USD25million divided into 2,500 bonds of USD10,000
nominal value each. These bonds were issued on December 15, 2014 and mature on January 4, 2021 and
are subject to an annual interest rate of 6% payable on December 31 and June 30 of each year.
In accordance with banking laws and regulations, subordinated bonds are considered as Tier II capital
for the purposes of computation of Risk Based Capital Ratio, to be decreased by 20% on a yearly basis.
Minimum capital requirements:
The Group manages its capital to comply with the capital adequacy requirements set by the Central Bank
of Lebanon, the Group’s lead regulator.

1. BEMO Securitization SAL (BSEC): This entity is 96% owned by the Bank. It is regulated by the Central
Bank and Banking Control Commission and undertakes securitization transactions locally and structured
finance deals
2. Bemo Investment Firm Ltd: This entity is fully owned by the Bank. It undertakes investment activities
and is located in Dubai.
3. Depository and Custody Company SAL: This entity is fully owned by the Bank and its subsidiary BEMO
Securitization SAL and it undertakes depository and custody of securities activities.
There are no other group entities for regulatory purposes that are neither consolidated nor deducted.
During December 2016, the wholly owned subsidiary, Ferticed Limited Holding was liquidated.

Central Bank of Lebanon requires each bank or banking group to hold a minimum level of regulatory
capital of LBP10billion for the head office and LBP500million for each local branch and LBP1.5billion for
each branch abroad.
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Eligible Capital for Solvency Calculation

Risk Weighted Assets composition:
The Capital Adequacy measurement after application of corresponding risk weights based on the
aforementioned approaches is detailed in the following table:

(LBP Million)
Components of Eligible Capital

2017

Common Equity Tier 1		
Common stock – Paid in Capital
62,248
Cash Contribution to Capital
29,105
Eligible Reserves
55,153
Retained Earnings
55,963
Minority Interests
0

2016

(LBP million)
62,248
29,105
49,195
43,656
101

Common Equity Tier 1
202,469
Less: Deductions/Regulatory Adjustments		
Less: Treasury Shares
(3,179)
Less: Intangible assets
(1,184)
Less: participations
(1,183)

184,305

NET Common Equity Tier 1

180,385

196,923

Additional Tier 1 		
Perpetual, Non-Cumulative Preferred Shares
52,641
Less: Minority Interests
0

(2,932)
(976)
(12)

52,641
(101)

TOTAL Tier 1 (A)
249,564
Supplementary Capital – Tier 2		
Subordinated Bonds
82,912

232,925

TOTAL Tier 2 (B)
Total Eligible Capital (A+B)

37,688
270,613

82,912
332,476

Capital Adequacy

37,688

2017

2016

1,712,042
492,797
87,176
3
604,665
194,261
37,476
13,288
133,879
15,434
36,462
96,602

1,544,134
424,759
161,032
3
483,725
147,152
28,423
20,767
150,014
15,388
32,836
80,035

Market Risk Weighted Assets – Standard Measurement Approach
39,257
Interest Rate Risk (Trading Book)
18,113
Equity Price Risk (Trading Book)
20,170
FX Risk
974
Commodities Risk (Not applicable)		

88,601
72,085
14,198
2,318

Credit Risk Weighted Assets – Standardized Approach
Sovereign Risk
Banks Risk
Public Sector Entities
Loans to Corporate Clients
Loans to SMEs
Other Retail Loans
Residential Loans
Commercial Real Estate Loans
Securitization
Non-Performing Loans
Other Assets

Operational Risk– Basic Indicator Approach
Total Risk Weighted Assets
Total Capital Ratio
Tier 1 Capital Ratio
Net Common Equity Tier 1

111,144
1,862,443
17.85%
13.40%
10.57%

103,047
1,735,782
15.59%
13.42%
10.39%

The capital base is intended to act as buffer against the risks to which the Bank is exposed to and
comprises the sum of Tier-1 and Tier-2 capital. The purpose of the Bank’s capital management is to ensure
the efficient use of capital in the light of the Bank’s overall capital targets. The Bank takes the capital
targets into account in the determination of its risk profile. This means that the capital level must be
sufficient to cover both organic growth and current fluctuations in the risks taken on.
In addition, the bank has been performing regular stress tests since 2012 guided by the regulatory
authorities to calculate the newly proposed liquidity ratio by the Basel Committee under the new capital
standard (Basel III) namely the Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR). The liquidity position of the Bank is
monitored by the Bank’s ALCO, which aims at minimizing risk, while ensuring the best use of funds in
the prevailing economic conditions. The management’s efforts with regards to the maturities of funding
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sources and uses are reflected in the Bank’s satisfactory liquidity position. Similar to other banks in the

both national and international markets, as well as through other traditional risk management strategies.

sector, the Bank had negative maturity gaps concentrated in maturities of up to 3 months, while the
maturity gaps were positive for maturities of more than 3 months. The table below summarizes the

The Central Bank has in the past used interest rates to stabilize the money markets. In times of political

maturity profile of the Bank’s assets and liabilities and the related maturity gaps for 2017 and 2016:

uncertainty, some investors withdrew time deposits in Lebanese Pounds with a view of exchanging
Lebanese Pounds for US Dollars. This situation created problems for banks which were charged high
rates of interest by the Central Bank on repurchase transactions to meet the funding cost of customer

- For LBP Base Accounts

withdrawals. A number of developments have occurred in the market to mitigate the risk, including
a trend of discouraging customers from breaking term deposits by increasing the associated costs.
In LBP millions
2017 maturity gap
2017 cumulative maturity gap
2016 maturity gap
2016 cumulative maturity gap

Accounts with
no maturity

Up to 3
months

From 3 months
to 1 year

From 1 year
to 3 years

From 3 years
to 5 years

34,024
34,024
64,289
64,289

(71,283)
(37,259)
(118,938)
(54,649)

(15,391)
(52,651)
2,094
(52,555)

61,785
9,135
39,356
(13,199)

12,166
21,301
49,083
35,884

From 5		
to 10 years		
114,178
135,479
95,270
131,154

Customers are generally not permitted to withdraw time deposits prior to their maturity date and the
cost of repurchase transactions is now generally passed on to the customers. In addition, the Bank has
established the Interest Rate Risk Management Policy which provides for the governance of interest
rate whereby sensitivity triggers are applied on earnings for the bank. Stress testing is also performed
regularly to determine the adequacy of capital in meeting the impact of extreme interest rate movements
on the balance sheet. Such tests are also performed to provide early warnings of potential extreme
losses, facilitating proactive management of interest rate in an environment of rapid financial market
changes.

- For Foreign Currency Base Accounts

The interest rate sensitivity position based on contractual re-pricing arrangements for 2017 and 2016 are
shown in the table below (Earnings at Risk Impact for one year only):

In LBP millions
2017 maturity gap
2017 cumulative maturity gap
2016 maturity gap
2016 cumulative maturity gap

Accounts with
no maturity

Up to 3
months

From 3 months
to 1 year

From 1 year
to 3 years

From 3 years
to 5 years

456,358
456,358
412,414
412,414

(650,042)
(193,674)
(616,525)
(204,111)

(275,429)
(469,103)
(269,021)
(473,132)

152,755
(316,348)
72,848
(400,284)

142,521
(173,827)
110,068
(290,216)

From 5		
to 10 years		
301,197
127,370
401,518
111,302

The basis of the remaining period at the relevant balance sheet date is mainly determinant of the contractual
maturities of assets and liabilities not taking into consideration the effective maturities of many of the

Consolidated as at 31/12/2017
(amounts in LBP Millions)

Less than
1 Month

Total Assets
Total Liabilities
TOTAL
Term Position
PERIODIC GAP
CUMULATIVE GAP
Earnings at Risk - 2017

1,165,419
1,387,786
(222,367)
(990)
(223,357)
(223,357)
(186)

Consolidated as at 31/12/2016
(amounts in LBP Millions)

Less than
1 Month

Total Assets
Total Liabilities
TOTAL
Term Position
PERIODIC GAP
CUMULATIVE GAP
Earnings at Risk - 2016

1,148,574
1,344,935
(196,361)
2,540
(193,821)
(193,821)
(162)

From 1
From 3
From 6
to 3 Months to 6 Months to 12 Months
336,589
194,448
142,141
27
142,168
(81,189)
(271)

88,633
133,539
(44,906)
(589)
(45,495)
96,673
725

20,352
218,324
(197,972)
262
(197,710)
(243,205)
(3,648)

Bank’s liabilities indicated by the track record of deposit retention at the Bank and subsequent continuous
availability of liquid funds. The Bank’s foreign currency placements maintained with international banks
carry a maturity of three months or less. Moreover, the Bank’s loans and advances portfolio is mainly of
a short-term nature.
Interest Rate Sensitivity
The Bank is exposed to interest rate risk as a result of mismatches in interest rate repricing of assets
and liabilities and off-balance sheet items that mature or reprice in a given period. The ALCO monitors
interest rate risk through the continual repricing of assets and liabilities on the basis of forecasted rates in

From 1
From 3
From 6
to 3 Months to 6 Months to 12 Months
317,551
190,515
127,036
1,021
128,057
(65,764)
(219)

83,636
125,177
(41,541)
861
(40,680)
87,377
(655)

19,229
232,805
(213,576)
2
(213,574)
(254,254)
(3,814)
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The above shows that the effect of a 200 basis point change in interest rates upwards or downwards on

Interest and Similar Income

the earnings of the Bank for the year ended December 31, 2017 is equivalent to LBP 3.65 billion increase/

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Bank’s interests and similar income for the years ending

decrease as compared to LBP 3.81 billion increase/decrease for the year ended December 31, 2016.

December 31, 2017 and 2016:
				

Financial Results
Net Income

LBP Million

The Bank’s net income reached LBP 27.78 billion (US$ 18.43 a million) in 2017 as compared to LBP 23.75
billion (US$ 15.75 million) in 2016 reflecting an increase of 17%. The rise in net interest income was
mainly due to the following reasons:
A better enhancement growth witnessed in the Interest income (Mainly from term deposits with Central
Banks and loans and advances to customers) as well as gains on financial assets at FVTPL.

From loans and advances to customers
From loans to and deposits with banks,
financial institutions and Central Bank
From investment securities (Amortized cost)
Other
Total

Variation

2017

2016

17-16

70,198

66,701

+5.24%

14,392
39,409
312
124,311

10,263
39,607
184
116,755

+40.23%
-0.50%
+69.57%
+6.47%

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Bank’s net income for the period under analysis:
			Variation
LBP Million
Interest income
Tax on Interest
Interest expense
Net interest income (after provisions)
Net fees and commission income
Gain on exchange and other operating income*
Salaries
General operating expenses
Other expenses (including tax expenses)
Minority interest
Net Income

2017

2016

17-16

124,311
(113)
(82,349)
41,832
9,582
22,236
(24,469)
(15,559)
(5,840)
27,782

116,755
(79,240)
35,909
19,866
14,108
(22,621)
(15,684)
(7,833)
(97)
23,745

+6.5%
+3.9%
+16.5%
-51.8%
+57.6%
+8.2%
-0.8%
-25.4%
+17.00%

* Includes gains/loss on securities and exchange transactions

Total Interest received was equivalent to LBP 124,311 million (US$ 82.46 million) in 2017 as compared to
LBP 116,755 million (US$ 77.45 million) in 2016 reflecting a year-on-year increase of 6.5%. This increase
was primarily due to an increase in the interest received from loans and advances to customers which
reached LBP 70,198 million (US$ 46.57 million) in 2017 and constituted 56.5% of total interest and similar
income as compared to LBP 66,701 million (US$ 44.25 million) and 57.1% in 2016. The increase was also
driven by the interest from loans to and deposits with banks, financial institutions and Central Bank which
amounted LBP 14,392 million (US$ 9.55 million) in 2017 as compared to LBP 10,263 million (US$ 6.81
million) in 2016 augmenting by 40.23%. This was mainly due to the LBP 3,598 million increase in term
deposits with Central Banks.
Interest Received from investment securities remain nearly unchanged with a slight 0.50% drawback. In
2017, the latter amounted to LBP 39,409 million (US$ 26.14 million) as compared to LBP 39,607 million
(US$ 26.27 million) in 2016.
Interest and Similar Charges
The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Bank’s interests and similar charges for the years

Net Interest Income
Interest income increased by 6.5% to LBP 124,311 million (US$ 82.46 million) in 2017 as compared
to LBP 116,755 million (US$ 77.45 million) in 2016, while interest expense increased by 3.9% to LBP

ending December 31, 2017 and 2016:
				

82,349 million (US$ 54.63 million) in 2017 as compared to LBP 79,240 million (US$ 52.56 million) in

LBP Million

2016. As a result, net interest income received by the Bank for 2017 increased by 16.5% as compared to

Banks and financial institutions
Customers’ deposits
Subordinated bonds
Total

2016. The increase was mainly due to the ability of the Bank to enhance its interest earnings from term
deposits with Central Banks and loans and advances to customers while maintaining an adequate cost of
funding enabling a satisfactory rise in overall interest income generated exceeding the growth in interest

Variation

2017

2016

17-16

2,250
77,595
2,504
82,349

3,661
73,312
2,267
79,240

-38.5%
+5.8%
+10.5%
+3.9%

expenses.
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Interest and similar charges reached LBP 82,349 million (US$ 54.63 million) in 2017 as compared to LBP

Total gain on exchange and other operating income rose to LBP 22,236 million (US$ 14.75 million) as

79,240 million (US$ 52.56 million) in 2016 reflecting a year-on-year increase of 3.9%. The increase is

at December, 31 2017 as compared to LBP 14,107 million (US$ 9.36 million) as at December, 31 2016

mainly due to the growth witnessed in interest paid on customers’ deposits which grew from LBP 73,312

reflecting a year-on-year increase of 57.6%.

million (US$ 48.63 million) in 2016 to LBP 77,595 million (US$ 51.47 million) in 2017 constituting 94.2% of
total interest and similar charges compared to 92.5% in 2016.

This was due to the increase in all of its items. Net interest and other (losses)/gains on FVTPL portfolio
which progressed from LBP 4,607 million (US$ 3.1 million) in 2016 to LBP 8,408 million (US$ 5.6 million)
as at December 31, 2017 growing by 82.5%. With respect to the foreign exchange income generated,

Commissions, Fees and Other Revenues
The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Bank’s commissions, fees and other revenues for the
years ending December 31, 2017 and 2016:

the latter increased to LBP 4,406 million (US$ 2.9 million) as at December, 31 2017 reflecting a year-onyear increase of 54.3% as compared to LBP 2,856 million (US$ 1.89 million) in December, 31 2016. Other
operating income followed the same path to reach LBP 9,422 million (US$ 6.25 million) as compared to

				

Variation

LBP Million

2017

2016

17-16

Commissions on documentary credits
Service fees on customers’ transactions and letters of guarantee
Other commissions
Fees and Commissions expenses
Total

659
8,824
463
(364)
9,582

756
19,069
351
(310)
19,866

-12.8%
-53.7%
+31.9%
+17.4%
-51.77%

LBP 6,644 million (US$ 4.41 million) recording a 41.8% increase.
Net loan loss provisions
The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Bank’s net provisions for loans and advances to
customers for the years ending December 31, 2017 and 2016:
LBP Million
Allowance for impairment of loans and advances and other receivables, net

Total commissions, fees and other revenues contracted by 51.77% reaching LBP 9,582million (US$ 6.36
million) in 2017 as compared to LBP 19,866 million (US$ 13.18 million) in 2016. The major contributors to
commissions, fees and other revenues in 2017 were service fees on customers’ transactions representing
92% of the total (96% in 2016), while commissions on documentary credits represented 7% (3.8% in
2016), other commissions were equivalent to 5% (2% in 2016), and fees and commissions expenses
constituted 4% (1.6% in 2016).

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the net profit from financial operations for the years ending
December 31, 2017 and 2016:
				
LBP Million
Net interest and other (losses)/gains on FVTPL portfolio
Foreign exchange income
Other operating income
Total gain on exchange and other operating income

Variation

2017

2016

17-16

8,408
4,406
9,422
22,236

4,607
2,856
6,644
14,107

+82.5%
+54.3%
+41.8%
+57.6%

2016

(16)

(1,606)

General Expenses
The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Bank’s general expenses for the years ending December
31, 2017 and 2016:
				
LBP Million

Net Profit from Financial Operations

2017

Staff costs
Administrative expenses
Depreciation & amortization
Other (income)/expense
Total

Variation

2017

2016

17-16

24,468
15,559
1,873
(443)
41,457

22,621
15,684
1,519
1,524
41,348

+8.2%
-0.8%
+23.3%
-129.1%
+0.3%

The Bank’s total general expenses reached LBP 41,457 million (US$ 27.50 million) in 2017 as compared
to LBP 41,348 million (US$ 27.43 million) in 2016 slightly increasing by 0.3%. Staff costs reached LBP
24,468 million (US$ 16.23 million) in 2017 as compared to LBP 22,621 million (US$ 15.01 million) in 2016
reflecting a year-on-year increase of 8.2%. This increase in cost was compensated by the other income
generated in 2017, 443 million (US$ 29 thousand) while it was an expense in 2016 with LBP 1,524 million
(US$ 1.01 million).
The Bank’s cost-to-income ratio decreased to 56.29% in 2017 compared to 59.06% in 2016.
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DELOITTE REPORT
KEY AUDIT MATTERS
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS
Impairment of loans and advances:
The calculation of the impairment of the loans and advances portfolio is inherently judgmental as it involves
significant subjective assumptions made by the management of the Group. Due to the significance of the loans
and advances portfolio and the related uncertainty estimation associated to the impairment determination,
this is considered a key audit matter.

To the Shareholders
Banque Bemo S.A.L.
Beirut, Lebanon

OPINION
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Banque Bemo S.A.L. (the “Bank”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) , which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
December 31, 2017, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2017, and its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs).

The majority of the Group’s loans and advances consists of corporate loans. Management monitors and
performs an impairment assessment of the loans and advances portfolio on an individual basis and provides
for impaired loans; and for those loans that are considered to be unimpaired, Management performs an
assessment of impairment on a collective basis after segregating the loans portfolio into groups of loans with
similar characteristics.
The assessment on an individual basis relies on management’s knowledge of each debtor. The loan portfolios
that give rise to the greatest uncertainty are typically those where impairment is derived from models for
collective assessment which are subject to Management’s assumptions with respect to industry risk factors,
economic outlook as well as collateral fair value and shortfalls.

HOW OUR AUDIT ADDRESSED THE KEY AUDIT MATTER
The risks outlined were addressed as follows:
We tested the design and operating effectiveness of the relevant controls that Management has put in place
to identify which loans and advances are potentially impaired on an individual basis and the impairment loss
setup against these loans. These tests included testing of:
• Both system-based and manual controls over the timely recognition of impaired loans and advances;

BASIS FOR OPINION

• Controls over the impairment calculation models, including data inputs; and

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities

• Controls over collateral valuation estimates.

under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated

For impairment allowances against collectively assessed loans and advances, we critically assessed

Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the

Management’s assumptions, and estimations, in particular with respect to the inputs into the impairment

International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA

model, the industry risk factors, and economic factors, and historical default rates.

Code) together with the Code of Ethics of the Lebanese Association of Certified Public Accountants that

For non-performing loans, we tested the valuation model used by Management to determine the expected

are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in

recoverable amount, including testing the expected future cash flows, the collateral value and the rate used to

accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

discount these to the present. We examined a sample of loans and advances, which had not been identified

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

by management as potentially impaired and formed our own judgement as to whether that was appropriate.
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OTHER INFORMATION
Management is responsible for the Other Information included in the Annual Report. The Other Information
does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to
be made available to us after the date of this auditors’ report.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the Other Information and we do not express any
form of assurance or conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the Other Information when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether
the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs, within the framework of local banking laws, will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
	

	
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.
	• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
	•Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
	• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
The signing partners in charge of the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report are Nada Maalouf for
Deloitte & Touche and Alfred Nehme for DFK Fiduciaire du Moyen Orient.

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
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BANQUE BEMO S.A.L. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIS AL POSITION
Year Ended December 31,
ASSETS

Notes

2017

2016

		LBP’000

LBP’000

Cash and deposits with central banks

5

632,223,225

549,560,119

Deposits with banks and financial institutions

6

138,763,737

298,217,095

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

7

24,720,123

85,253,068

Loans to banks and financial institutions

8

12,838,776

17,512,310

Loans and advances to customers

9

1,148,538,468

1,037,927,223

Loans and advances to related parties

10

1,084,478

2,646,345

Investment securities

11

627,158,929

594,523,821

Customers’ liability under acceptances

12

12,779,303

6,936,955

Investments in an associate

13

20,994,413

18,052,156

Assets acquired in satisfaction of loans

14

2,073,984

2,046,944

Property and equipment

15

32,957,002

23,967,744

Intangible assets

16

1,185,319

981,680

Other assets

17

11,122,554

12,924,894

Total Assets		

2,666,440,311

2,650,550,354

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE
SHEET RISK:

41

Documentary and commercial letters of credit		

14,729,004

31,295,824

Guarantees and standby letters of credit		

126,423,165

90,464,323

Forward exchange contracts		

284,675,052

246,224,821

FIDUCIARY DEPOSITS AND ASSETS UNDER
MANAGEMENT

42

77,443,805

51,041,716

LIABILITIES

Notes

2017

2016

LBP’000

LBP’000

Deposits and borrowings from banks
and financial institutions

18

115,132,672

126,651,112

Customers’ accounts at amortized cost

19

1,993,088,452

2,078,192,028

Related parties’ accounts at amortized cost

20

88,217,680

110,953,534

Acceptance liability

12

12,779,303

6,936,955

Other term borrowings

21

69,534,833

9,315,863

Other liabilities

22

24,581,603

30,860,467

Provisions

23

8,427,265

7,496,647

		
2,311,761,808
2,370,406,606
Subordinated bonds

24

91,830,511

37,687,500

Total liabilities		

2,403,592,319

2,408,094,106

EQUITY
Share capital

25

62,248,000

62,248,000

Treasury shares

25

(3,179,389)

(2,931,915)

Preferred shares

26

52,641,854

52,641,854

Shareholders’ cash contribution to capital

27

29,104,984

29,104,984

Reserves

28

56,143,182

50,065,272

Retained earnings		

36,625,566

27,384,124

Currency translation adjustment

13

450,312

-

Change in fair value of investment securities

13

1,030,666

-

Profit for the year

30

27,782,456

23,842,788

Equity attributable to the shareholders of the bank		

262,847,631

242,355,107

29

361

101,141

Total equity		

262,847,992

242,456,248

Total Liabilities and Equity		

2,666,440,311

2,650,550,354

Non-controlling interests
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BANQUE BEMO S.A.L. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF PROFIT OR LOSS

BANQUE BEMO S.A.L.CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Year Ended December 31,

Notes

Year Ended December 31,

2017

2016

LBP’000

LBP’000

Interest income

32

124,311,272

116,755,051

Tax on interest

3T

(113,494)

-

Interest expense

33

(82,349,250)

(79,240,335)

Net interest income		

41,848,528

37,514,716

Notes

Profit for the year		

2017

2016

LBP’000

LBP’000

27,782,466

23,745,310

Other comprehensive income (“OCI”):
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Gain/(loss) arising from currency translation

Fee and commission income

34

9,945,639

20,175,935

13

450,312

(667,529)

Fee and commission expense

35

(363,587)

(309,957)

Change in fair value of investment securities		

1,030,666

-

Net fee and commission income		

9,582,052

19,865,978

Net other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year		

1,480,978

(667,529)

36

8,407,866

4,606,999

Total comprehensive income for the year		

29,263,444

23,077,781

Gain on exchange		

4,405,968

2,856,686

Other operating income, (net)

37

9,422,662

6,644,722

Net financial revenues		

73,667,076

71,489,101

29,263,434

23,175,259

9,17

(16,191)

(1,605,560)

Net financial revenues after net impairment charge		

73,650,885

69,883,541

Net interest and other gains on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Allowance for impairment of loans
and advances and other receivables, (net)

Staff costs

38

(24,468,539)

(22,620,527)

Administrative expenses

39

(15,559,442)

(15,684,416)

15,16

(1,872,522)

(1,518,618)

Other income/(expense)		

443,348

(1,524,478)

Depreciation and amortization

adjustment

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Group		

Non-controlling interests
29
10
(97,478)
				

		
29,263,444
23,077,781

		
(41,457,155)
(41,348,039)
Profit before income tax		

32,193,730

28,535,502

Income tax expense

22

(4,411,264)

(4,790,192)

Profit for the year

30

27,782,466

23,745,310

Equity holders of the Group		

27,782,456

23,842,788

Non-controlling interests		

10

(97,478)

Attributable to:

		
27,782,466
23,745,310
Basic and diluted earning per shares

40

393/1

328/28
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BANQUE BEMO S.A.L. CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

												
											
Reserve		
Change
						

Shareholders’		

Reserve			

						

Cash		

for General			

				

or Assets		
Acquired in

Currency

in Fair						
Value of		

Profit		

Non-

for the		

Controlling

Treasury

Preferred

Contribution

Legal

Banking

Other

General

Satisfaction

Translation

Investment

Retained

Capital

Shares

Shares

to Capital

Reserve

Risks

Reserves

Reserves

of Loans

Adjustment

Securities

Earnings

Year

Total

Interest

Total

		 LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

			

Balance at January 1, 2016		

62,248,000

(2,696,018)

52,641,854

29,104,984

5,048,091

26,523,875

5,700,443

1,500,000

767,610

(23,440,267)

-

25,795,153

19,490,701

202,684,426

198,619

202,853,045

Total comprehensive income		

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(667,529)

-

-

23,842,788

23,175,259

(97,478)

23,077,781

year 2015		-

-

-

-

1,798,012

5,380,160

690,234

2,554,500

102,347

-

-

8,965,448

(19,490,701)

-

-

-

Dividends paid (Note 31)		

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(7,376,477)

-

(7,376,477)

-

(7,376,477)

shares (net) (Note 25)		

-

(235,897)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(235,897)

-

(235,897)

Offset (Note 13)		

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

24,107,796

-

-

-

24,107,796

-

24,107,796

Balance at December 31, 2016		

62,248,000

(2,931,915)

52,641,854

29,104,984

6,846,103

31,904,035

6,390,677

4,054,500

869,957

-

-

27,384,124

23,842,788

242,355,107

101,141

242,456,248

Total comprehensive income		

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

450,312

-

-

27,782,456

28,232,768

361

28,233,129

year 2016		
-

-

-

-

2,264,086

3,647,665

-

15,000

151,159

-

-

17,764,878

(23,842,788)

-

-

-

Dividends paid (Note 31)		

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(8,599,028)

-

(8,599,028)

-

(8,599,028)

(net) (Note 25)		

-

(247,474)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(247,474)

-

(247,474)

Other movements (Note 13)		

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

75,592

-

75,592

-

75,592

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,030,666

-

-

1,030,666

-

1,030,666

Bemo Investment		-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(101,141)

(101,141)

(3,179,389)

52,641,854

29,104,984

9,110,189

35,551,700

6,390,677

4,069,500

1,021,116

450,312

1,030,666

36,625,566

27,782,456

262,847,631

361

262,847,992

Allocation of income for the

Acquisition of treasury

Allocation of income for the

Acquisition of treasury shares

Change in fair value of investment
securities (Note 13)		
Minority interest of
Balance at December 31, 2017		

62,248,000
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BANQUE BEMO S.A.L. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS
Year Ended December 31,
			

Notes

2017

Year Ended December 31,

2016

			

Notes

2017

2016

						

						

				

				

LBP’000

LBP’000

Cash flows from operating activities:
32,193,730

28,535,502

Adjustments to reconcile profit to net cash (used in)/provided by
operating activities:

		

Depreciation and amortization

		

LBP’000

(247,474)

(235,897)

15

(10,570,902)

(8,542,556)

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 		

83,398

75,734

16

(533,138)

(683,068)

(11,268,116)

(9,385,787)

Cash flows from investing activities:

Profit before tax 		
		

LBP’000

Acquisition of treasury shares (net) 		
Property and equipment

15,16

1,872,522

1,518,618

Intangible assets

Provision for contingencies

23

887,725

1,976,728

Net cash used in investing activities 		

		

Write back of provision for contingencies

23

(1,151,073)

(452,250)

		

Assets acquired in satisfaction of loans		

(27,040)

-

Cash flows from financing activities:

		

Allowance for impairment of loans and advances and other

		

receivables, (net)

9,17

(16,191)

1,605,560

		

Non-controlling interests 		

(100,790)

-

		

Provision for employees’ end-of-service indemnities

23

1,264,184

941,970

		

Unrealized (gain)/loss on financial assets at fair value

		

through profit or loss

36

(1,551,297)

2,721,584

		

Equity income from investment in associates

37

(1,385,715)

(1,074,343)

		

Gain from sale of property and equipment 		

(44,777)

(1,947)

(Increase)/decrease in deposits with banks and financial institutions 		

(80,364,427)

29,051,215

Decrease in loans to banks and financial institutions		

4,673,534

31,355,173

Decrease/(increase) in trading assets at fair value through profit or loss

62,084,242

(62,274,002)

(Increase)/decrease in investment securities 		

(32,635,108)

44,031,843

Increase in loans and advances to customers and related parties 		

(109,033,187)

(23,766,024)

Net decrease/(increase) in other assets 		

1,815,433

(4,968,615)

with central banks 		

30,161,086

2,444,170

Increase in due to banks and financial institutions 		

48,700,530

17,084,578

(Decrease)/increase in customers’ and related parties ‘ deposits at amortized cost (107,839,430)

150,194,139

Dividends paid

31

(8,599,028)

(7,376,477)

Subordinated bonds

24

54,143,011

-

Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities 		

45,543,983

(7,376,477)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents 		

(126,993,593)

237,816,947

Cash and cash equivalents - Beginning of year 		

433,378,757

195,561,810

Cash and cash equivalents - End of year

306,385,164

433,378,757

44

Increase in non-interest earning compulsory reserve and deposits
		

Net (decrease)/increase in other liabilities 		

(4,319,106)

42,754,099

Net increase/(decrease) in provisions		

46,946

(3,127)

Settlements of provision for contingencies

23

(108,423)

(58,755)

Settlement of employees’ end-of-service indemnity

23

(21,834)

(950,444)

Taxes paid 		

(6,371,022)

(6,086,461)

Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities 		

(161,269,460)

254,579,211
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017
1. GENERAL INFORMATION
Banque Bemo S.A.L. (the “Bank”) is a Lebanese joint-stock company listed on the Beirut Stock Exchange
and registered in the Commercial Register under Number 17837 and on the list of banks published by the
Central Bank of Lebanon under Number 93. The Bank’s headquarters are located in Beirut.
The Bank provides a full range of commercial, corporate and private banking activities through a network
of 8 branches in Lebanon in addition to a branch in Limassol, Cyprus.
Banque Bemo S.A.L. is owned by Sharikat AL Istismarat Al Oropia Lil Shareq Al Aousat (Holding) S.A.L.
to the extent of 61.06%.
These financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Bank and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) Refer to Note 3(A).

IFRS 12 states that an entity need not provide summarised financial information for interests in subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures that are classified (or included in a disposal group that is classified) as held for
sale. The amendments clarify that this is the only concession from the disclosure requirements of IFRS
12 for such interests.
The application of these amendments has had no effect on the Group’s consolidated financial statements
as none of the Group’s interests in these entities are classified, or included in a disposal group that is
classified, as held for sale.
2.2 NEW AND REVISED IFRS IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
The Group has not yet applied the following new and revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

2.APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRS)
2.1 NEW AND REVISED IFRSS APPLIED WITH NO MATERIAL
EFFECT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Effective for
annual periods
New and revised IFRSs

beginning on or after

The following new and revised IFRSs, which became effective for annual periods beginning on or after

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2014 – 2016 Cycle amending IFRS 1 and IAS 28.

January 1, 2018

January 1, 2017, have been adopted in these financial statements.

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015–2017 Cycle amending IFRS 3,

January 1, 2019

Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

IFRS 11, IAS 12 and IAS 23.

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time in the current year. The amendments clarify

The interpretation addresses foreign currency transactions or parts of transactions where:

how an entity should evaluate whether there will be sufficient future taxable profits against which it can

• there is consideration that is denominated or priced in a foreign currency;

utilise a deductible temporary difference.

• the entity recognises a prepayment asset or a deferred income liability in respect

The application of these amendments has had no impact on the Group’s financial statements.

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

of that consideration, in advance of the recognition of the related asset, expense or income; and
• the prepayment asset or deferred income liability is non-monetary.

Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time in the current year. The amendments require

The interpretation addresses the determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases,

an entity to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.

over income tax treatments under IAS 12. It specifically considers:
• Whether tax treatments should be considered collectively;
• Assumptions for taxation authorities’ examinations;

The Group has applied the amendments to IFRS 12 included in the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-

• The determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses,

yet mandatorily effective and they have not been early adopted by the Group (see note 2.2).

January 1, 2019

unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2014–2016 Cycle – Amendments to IFRS 12

2016 Cycle for the first time in the current year. The other amendments included in this package are not

January 1, 2018

unused tax credits and tax rates; and
• The effect of changes in facts and circumstances.

103

Banque BEMO Annual Report 2017
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Effective for
annual periods
New and revised IFRSs
Amendments to IFRS 2 Share Based Payment regarding classification

beginning on or after
January 1, 2018

and measurement of share based payment transactions.
Amendments to IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts: Relating to the different

January 1, 2018

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments that replaces IAS 39
Financial Instruments and all previous versions of IFRS 9 (2009, 2010 and 2013). The standard introduces
new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment, and hedge accounting. The new
version, IFRS 9 (2014) is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The Group
plans to adopt the new standard on the required effective date.
In accordance with the transition provisions of IFRS 9 (2014), the Group will apply this standard

effective dates of IFRS 9 and the forthcoming new insurance contracts standard.
Amendments to IAS 40 Investment Property: Amends paragraph 57

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

January 1, 2018

retrospectively. The changes in measures arising on initial application will be incorporated through an

to state that an entity shall transfer a property to, or from, investment

adjustment to opening retained earnings or reserves (as applicable) as at 1 January 2018. Although IFRS

property when, and only when, there is evidence of a change in use.

9 will be retrospectively applied, the Group is only permitted to restate comparatives if, and only if, it is

A change of use occurs if property meets, or ceases to meet,

possible without the use of hindsight. The Group will not restate comparatives as it does not consider it

the definition of investment property. A change in management’s

possible to do so without the use of hindsight.

intentions for the use of a property by itself does not constitute

During 2017, the Group has performed a detailed impact assessment of all three aspects of IFRS 9. This

evidence of a change in use. The paragraph has been amended to state

assessment is based on currently available information and may be subject to changes arising from

that the list of examples therein is non-exhaustive.
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (revised versions in 2010, 2013 and 2014)

January 1, 2018

IFRS 9 issued in November 2009 introduced new requirements for the

further reasonable and supportable information being made available to the Group in 2018 when the
Group will adopt IFRS 9. Overall, the Group expects no significant impact on its statement of financial
position and equity except for the effect of applying the impairment requirements of IFRS 9. The Group

classification and measurement of financial assets. The Group early

expects an increase in the loss allowance resulting in a negative impact on equity as discussed below:

adopted IFRS 9 (version 2009) effective January 1, 2011. IFRS 9 was
subsequently amended in October 2010 to include requirements for the

Classification
				The Group has early adopted classification and measurement requirements as

classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for

and measurement

issued in IFRS 9 (2009) and IFRS 9 (2010). In the July 2014 publication of IFRS

derecognition, and in November 2013 to include the new requirements

9, the new measurement category FVOCI was introduced for financial assets

for general hedge accounting.

that satisfy the contractual cash flow characteristics (SPPI test). This category is

Amendments to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Relating to prepayment

January 1, 2019

aimed at portfolio of debt instruments for which amortized cost information, as

features with negative compensation. This amends the existing

well as fair value information is relevant and useful. This will be the case if these

requirements in IFRS 9 regarding termination rights in order to allow

assets are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both

measurement at amortised cost (or, depending on the business model,

collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets.

at fair value through other comprehensive income) even in the case
of negative compensation payments.

				At the date of application of IFRS 9 (2014), the Group reassessed the classification
and measurement category for all financial assets debt instruments that satisfy
the contractual cash flow characteristics (SPPI test) and classified them within
the category that is consistent with the business model for managing these
financial assets on the basis of facts and circumstances that existed at that date.
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				The classification and measurement requirements for financial assets that are

				

Key Considerations

equity instruments or debt instruments that do not meet the contractual cash

				Some of the key concepts in IFRS 9 that have the most significant impact and

flow characteristics (SPPI test) and financial liabilities remain unchanged from

require a high level of judgment, as considered by the Group while determining

previous versions of IFRS 9.

the impact assessment, are:

				The Group does not expect a material impact on the classification of the
Group’s financial assets nor their carrying values.

			

Assessment of Significant Increase in Credit Risk

				The assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is done on a relative basis.
To assess whether the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly

Impairment		The standard introduces a new single model for the measurement of impairment

since origination, the Group compares the risk of default occurring over the

losses on all financial assets including loans and debt securities measured at

expected life of the financial asset at the reporting date to the corresponding

amortized cost or at fair value through OCI. The IFRS 9 expected credit loss (ECL)

risk of default at origination, using key risk indicators that are used in the Group

model replaces the current incurred loss model of IAS 39.

existing risk management processes.

				The ECL model contains a three-stage approach, which is based on the change

				The Group’s assessment of significant increases in credit risk will be performed

in credit quality of financial assets since initial recognition. The ECL model is

at least quarterly for each individual exposure based on three factors. If any of the

forward looking and requires the use of reasonable and supportable forecasts of

following factors indicates that a significant increase in credit risk has occurred,

future economic conditions in the determination of significant increases in credit

the instrument will be moved from Stage 1 to Stage 2:

risk and measurement of ECL.
				

Stage 1

				12-month ECL applies to all financial assets that have not experienced a significant

risk based on movement in PDs relative to initial recognition.
				

results and make adjustments, as necessary, to better reflect the

ECL will be computed using a factor that represents the Probability of Default

positions
				

significantly

increased

in

risk.

3.	IFRS 9 contains a rebuttable presumption that instruments which are

assets are credit-impaired as at the reporting date. The determination
of credit-impairment under IFRS 9 will be similar to the individual

impaired, an amount equal to the default probability weighted lifetime ECL will

assessment of financial assets for objective evidence of impairment

be recorded. Provisions are expected to be higher in this stage because of

under IAS 39.

an increase in risk and the impact of a longer time horizon being considered

Stage 3

have

Movements between Stage 2 and Stage 3 are based on whether financial

since initial recognition but the financial instruments are not considered credit

compared to 12 months in Stage 1.

which

30 days past due have experienced a significant increase in credit risk.

Stage 2

				
Under Stage 2, where there has been a significant increase in credit risk

				

2.	Additional qualitative reviews will be performed to assess the staging

increase in credit risk (SICR) since origination and are not credit impaired. The
(PD) occurring over the next 12 months.
				

				1.	The Group has established thresholds for significant increases in credit

				
Macroeconomic Factors, Forward Looking Information (FLI)
				

and Multiple Scenarios

				Under the Stage 3, where there is objective evidence of impairment at the

				The measurement of expected credit losses for each stage and the assessment

reporting date these financial instruments will be classified as credit impaired

of significant increases in credit risk must consider information about past events

and an amount equal to the lifetime ECL will be recorded for the financial assets.

and current conditions as well as reasonable and supportable forecasts of future
events and economic conditions. The estimation and application of forwardlooking information will require significant judgement.
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				PD, Loss Given Default (LGD) and Exposure At Default (EAD) inputs used to

Hedge accounting	IFRS 9 also incorporates new hedge accounting rules that intend to align hedge

estimate Stage 1 and Stage 2 credit loss allowances are modelled based on

accounting with risk management practices. IFRS 9 does not cover guidance on

the macroeconomic variables (or changes in macroeconomic variables) that

macro hedge accounting as IASB is working on it as a separate project. IFRS

are most closely correlated with credit losses in the relevant portfolio. Each

9 includes an accounting policy choice to defer the adoption of IFRS 9 hedge

macroeconomic scenario used in our expected credit loss calculation will have

accounting and to continue with IAS 39 hedge accounting. The Group, however,

forecasts of the relevant macroeconomic variables.

has elected to adopt the new hedge accounting provisions of IFRS 9.

				Scenarios will be probability-weighted according to The Group’s best estimate

				The Group does not have hedging relationships.

of their relative likelihood based on historical frequency and current trends and
conditions. Probability weights will be updated on a quarterly basis. All scenarios

			

considered will be applied to all portfolios subject to expected credit losses with

Financial instruments:

The Group will be amending the disclosures for 2018 to include more extensive

the same probabilities.

disclosures (IFRS 7)

qualitative and quantitative disclosure relating to IFRS 9 such as new classification

				

categories, three stage impairment model, new hedge accounting requirements

				

and transition provisions.

	Definition of default

				The definition of default used in the measurement of expected credit losses and
the assessment to determine movement between stages will be consistent with
the definition of default used for internal credit risk management purposes. IFRS
9 does not define default, but contains a rebuttable presumption that default has
occurred when an exposure is greater than 90 days past due.
				

Furthermore, in accordance with Central Bank of Lebanon’s basic circular 143 dated 7 November 2017,
the Group may use certain non-distributable reserves and deferred liabilities previously appropriated for
regulatory purposes, to cover additional required stock of impairment provisions under IFRS 9.

Expected Life

				When measuring ECL, the Group must consider the maximum contractual period
over which the Group is exposed to credit risk. All contractual terms should be
considered when determining the expected life, including prepayment options
and extension and rollover options. For certain revolving credit facilities that do
not have a fixed maturity, the expected life is estimated based on the period over
which the Group is exposed to credit risk and where the credit losses would not
be mitigated by management actions.
				

Governance

				In addition to the existing risk management framework, the Group has established
an internal Committee to provide oversight to the IFRS 9 implementation. The
Committee is comprised of senior representatives from Finance and Risk
Management and will be responsible for reviewing and approving staging of
financial assets and other key inputs and assumptions used in our expected credit
loss estimates. It also assesses the appropriateness of the overall allowance to
be provided for Expected Credit Losses.
				The expected impact on the Group’s statement of financial position and equity
				

is discussed below.
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In summary, the impact of IFRS 9 adoption is expected to be, as follows:

Effective for
Estimated impact from recognition of
Expected Credit Losses LL million

annual periods
New and revised IFRSs
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Assets			
2,094

Due from banks and financial institutions 		

365

comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue

Loans and advances to customers at amortized cost		

2,098

arising from contracts with customers. IFRS 15 will supersede the

Financial assets at amortized cost 		

1,128

current revenue recognition guidance including IAS 18 Revenue,

Loans and advances to customers at amortized cost (Unutilized)		

IAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

Liabilities			
Regulatory deferred liability

January 1, 2018

In May 2014, IFRS 15 was issued which established a single

Cash and balances with central banks		

			
5,685

beginning on or after

(6,328)

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should recognize

34

revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to

Guarantees		
609
(5,685)

customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:
• Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer.
• Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract.

Management considers that there is no impact of the IFRS9 transitional adjustments on equity.
The excess of regulatory deferred liability in the amount of LBP 4.63 billion will be used according to the
directors of the Intermediary Circular member 446 issued by the Central Bank of Lebanon (Refer to Note 22).
The Group continues to refine the impairment models and related processes leading up to 30 June 2018
reporting.

• Step 3: Determine the transaction price.
• Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligationsin the contract.
• Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.
Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer.
Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in IFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by IFRS 15.
Amendments to IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers to clarify

January 1, 2018

three aspects of the standard (identifying performance obligations, principal
versus agent considerations, and licensing) and to provide some transition
relief for modified contracts and completed contracts.
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New and revised IFRSs

Effective for

Management anticipates that these new standards, interpretations and amendments will be adopted in

annual periods

the Group financial statements as and when they are applicable and adoption of these new standards,

beginning on or after

interpretations and amendments, except for IFRS 9, as highlighted in previous paragraphs, may have no
material impact on the financial statements of the Group in the period of initial application.

IFRS 16 Leases

January 1, 2019

IFRS 16 specifies how an IFRS reporter will recognise, measure,

the annual period beginning January 1, 2018 and that IFRS 16 will be adopted in the Group’s financial

present and disclose leases. The standard provides a single lessee

statements for the annual period beginning January 1, 2019.

accounting model, requiring lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for
all leases unless the lease term is 12 months or less or the underlying asset

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

has a low value. Lessors continue to classify leases as operating or finance,

Statement of Compliance

with IFRS 16’s approach to lessor accounting substantially unchanged

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial

from its predecessor, IAS 17.
Amendments to IAS 28 Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures:

Management anticipates that IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 will be adopted in the Group’s financial statements for

Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).
January 1, 2019

Relating to long-term interests in associates and joint ventures.

Basis of Preparation and Measurement

These amendments clarify that an entity applies IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the

to long-term interests in an associate or joint venture that form part of

following:

the net investment in the associate or joint venture but to which

• Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value.

the equity method is not applied.

• Equity securities at fair value through other comprehensive income are measured at fair value.

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments:

When IFRS 9 is first applied

Assets and liabilities are grouped according to their nature and are presented in an approximate order that

Disclosures relating to disclosures about the initial application of IFRS 9.
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures relating to the additional hedge accounting

When IFRS 9 is first applied

of the hedge accounting chapter in IFRS 9.

IFRS 17 requires insurance liabilities to be measured at a
current fulfillment value and provides a more uniform measurement
and presentation approach for all insurance contracts.

reflects their relative liquidity.
The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below:

disclosures (and consequential amendments) resulting from the introduction

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

• Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value.

A.BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION:
January 1, 2021

The consolidated financial statements of Banque Bemo S.A.L. incorporate the financial statements of the
Bank and the entities controlled by the Bank and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Bank:

These requirements are designed to achieve the goal of a consistent,

• has power over the investee;

principle-based accounting for insurance contracts. IFRS 17 supersedes

• is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts as of January 1, 2021.

• has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Bank reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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When the Bank has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the investee
when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee unilaterally. The Bank considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not
the Bank’s voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:
	• the size of the Bank’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of
the other vote holders;
• potential voting rights held by the Bank, other vote holders or other parties;
• rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
	• any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Bank has, or does not have, the

The consolidated subsidiaries as at December 31, 2017 comprise:
		
Company

Date of

Country of

Acquisition or

Percentage of

Business

Incorporation

Incorporation

Ownership

Activities

			

2017

2016

%

%

		
Bemo Securitization S.A.L.

Lebanon

1998

96.00 96.00

current ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made,

					

including voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Depository & Custody

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Bank obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Bank loses control of the subsidiary. Income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Bank gains control until the date the Bank ceases to control the subsidiary.
Non-controlling interest represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets of subsidiaries not owned
directly or indirectly by the Bank. Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI)

Company S.A.L

.Lebanon

2007

99.90 99.90

				
Bemo Investment Firm Ltd.

Dubai

Securitization &
Structured Finance
Depository and
custody of securities

2013		 100 75.00

Investment

During December 2016, the wholly owned subsidiary, Ferticed Limited Holding was liquidated.
B.BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

are attributed to the equity holders of the Bank and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred

the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

in a business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.
All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:
• Derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary;
• Derecognizes the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests;
• Derecognizes the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
• Recognizes the fair value of the consideration received;
• Recognizes the fair value of any investment retained;
• Recognizes any surplus or deficit in profit or loss; and
	• Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognized in OCI to profit or loss
or retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities.

fair values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities are
generally recognized in profit or loss as incurred.
The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing
relationships. Such amounts are generally recognized in profit or loss.
Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any noncontrolling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed. When the excess is negative the group re-assess whether it has correctly
identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to
measure the amounts to be recognized at the acquisition date. If the assessment still results in an excess
of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, these the gain is
recognized in profit or loss.
Non-controlling interests in the net assets (excluding goodwill) of consolidated subsidiaries and associates
are identified separately from the Group’s equity therein.
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Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognized amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in
another IFRS.
When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its
acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with corresponding adjustments against goodwill. Measurement period
adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during the ‘measurement
period’ (which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that
existed at the acquisition date.
The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that do not
qualify as measurement period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as
an asset or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance with IAS 39, or IAS 37

C.FOREIGN CURRENCIES
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Lebanese Pounds (LBP) which is the Group’s
reporting currency. The primary currency of the economic environment in which the Group operates
(functional currency) is the U.S. Dollars (“USD”). The exchange rate of the USD against the LBP has been
constant for several years.
In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity, transactions in currencies other than
the entity’s reporting currency (foreign currencies) are recognized at the rates of exchange prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.
Exchange differences on monetary items are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise
except for exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge certain foreign currency
risks, and except for exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign
operation for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future, which are
recognized in other comprehensive income, and presented in the translation reserve in equity. These are
recognized in profit or loss on disposal of the net investment.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s

loss being recognized in profit or loss.

foreign operations are translated into U.S. Dollars using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to its acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognized
in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognized in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where such
treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.
If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period
in which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period (see
above), or additional assets or liabilities are recognized, to reflect new information obtained about facts

reporting period. Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the period,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case the exchange rates at
the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognized in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
Such exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign operation is
disposed of.
In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to
non-controlling interests and are not recognized in profit or loss.

and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets and liabilities acquired arising on the acquisition

recognized at that date.

of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognized in equity.
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Cash flows provided by and used in foreign currencies under various activities, as included in the statement

The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,

of cash flows, are converted into Lebanese Pounds at year-end exchange rates, except for cash and cash

cancelled or they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized

equivalents at the beginning of the year which is converted at the prior year closing exchange exchange

and the consideration paid and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed,

rates and the effect of currency fluctuation, if any, is disclosed separately.

is recognized in profit or loss.

D. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES:
Recognition and Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities:
The Group initially recognizes loans and advances, deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated
liabilities on the date that they are originated. All other financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized
on the trade date at which the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recognized immediately in profit or loss.
The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognizes its retained interest in
the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognize the
financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

Repurchase and Reverse Repurchase Agreements:
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase at a specified future date (“repos”) are not derecognized
from the consolidated statement of financial position. The corresponding cash received, including
accrued interest, is recognized on the consolidated statement of financial position reflecting its economic
substances as a loan to the Group. The difference between the sale and repurchase prices is treated as
interest expense and is accrued over the life of the agreement using the effective interest rate method.
Conversely, securities purchased under agreements to resell at a specified date are not recognized in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The consideration paid, including accrued interest is recorded
in the consolidated statement of financial position reflecting the transaction’s economic substance as a
loan by the Group. The difference between the purchase and resale prices is treated as interest income
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and is accrued over the life of the agreement using the
effective interest rate method.
Offsetting:
Financial assets and liabilities are set-off and the net amount is presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position when, and only when, the Group has a legal right to set-off the amounts or intends
either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments:
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortized cost, the difference between the asset’s

transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based

carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognized in profit or loss.

on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

Upon derecognition of a financial asset that is classified as fair value through other comprehensive
income, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revolution reserve is not
reclassified to profit or loss, but is reclassified to retained earnings.
Debt securities exchanged against securities with longer maturities with similar risks, and issued by the
same issuer, are not derecognized because they do not meet the conditions for derecognition. Premiums

•In the principal market for the asset or liability; or
•In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an
asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

and discounts derived from the exchange of said securities are deferred to be amortized as a yield

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to

enhancement on a time proportionate basis, over the period of the extended maturities.

generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient

For certain categories of financial asset, such as loans and advances, assets that are assessed not to

data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing

be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. This provision is

the use of unobservable inputs.

estimated based on various factors including credit ratings allocated to a borrower or group of borrowers,

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair measurement as a whole:

the current economic conditions, the experience the Group has had in dealing with a borrower or group
of borrowers and available historical default information, as well as observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on loans and advances.

• Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

The amount of the impairment loss recognized is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount

	• Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

and the present value of estimated future cash flows reflecting the amount of collateral and guarantee,

value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.
	• Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value

measurement

is

unobservable.

discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the

impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment

Group determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing

at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortized cost would have been had

categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

the impairment not been recognized.

whole) at the end of each reporting period.
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy
as explained above.
Impairment of Financial Assets:
Financial assets that are measured at amortized cost are assessed for impairment at the end of each

Collateral Valuation:
The Group seeks to use collateral, where possible, to mitigate its risks on financial assets. The collateral
comes in various forms, such as cash, securities, letters of credit/guarantees, real estate, other nonfinancial assets and credit enhancements such as netting agreements. The fair value of collateral is
generally assessed, at a minimum, at inception and periodically updated based on the Group’s policies
and type of collateral.

reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence that,

To the extent possible, the Group uses active market data for valuing financial assets held as collateral.

as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial assets, the

Other financial assets which do not have readily determinable market value are valued using models.

estimated future cash flows of the asset have been affected.

Non-financial collateral, such as real estate, is valued based on data provided by third parties, such as

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

independent accredited experts and other independent sources.

•significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
•breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or
•it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organization; or
•the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties;
or
•significant or prolonged decline in fair value beyond one business cycle that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset or group of financial assets which impacted the
estimated future cash flows of the investment.
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E.CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS:

Designation at FVTOCI is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading.

All recognized financial assets are measured in their entirety at either amortized cost or fair value,

A financial asset is held for trading if:

depending on their classification.

	• it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

Debt Instruments:
Non-derivative debt instruments that meet the following two conditions are subsequently measured at
amortized cost less impairment loss (except for debt investments that are designated as at fair value
through profit or loss on initial recognition):
	• They are held within a business model whose objective is to hold the financial assets in order

	• on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or
	• it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial
guarantee.
Reclassification:

to collect the contractual cash flows, rather than to sell the instrument prior to its contractual

Financial assets are reclassified between FVTPL and amortized cost or vice versa, if and only if, the Group’s

maturity to realize its fair value changes, and

business model objective for its financial assets changes so its previous model assessment would no

	• The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

longer apply. When reclassification is appropriate, it is done prospectively from the reclassification date.
Reclassification is not allowed where:

Debt instruments which do not meet both of these conditions are measured at fair value through profit

• the other comprehensive income’ option has been exercised for a financial asset, or

or loss (“FVTPL”). In addition, debt instruments that meet the amortized cost criteria but are designated

• the fair value option has been exercised in any circumstance for a financial instrument.

as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.
Even if a debt instrument meets the two amortized cost criteria above, it may be designated as at
FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognizing
the gains and losses on them on different bases.
Equity Instruments:
Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Group designates an investment
that is not held for trading as at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) on initial
recognition (see below).

Designation at Fair Value through Profit and Loss:
The Group designates financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss when either:
• The assets or liabilities are managed, evaluated and reported internally on a fair value basis; or
	• The designation eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch which would
otherwise arise; or
	• The asset or liability contains an embedded derivative that significantly modifies the cash
flows that would otherwise be required under the contract.
F. LOANS AND ADVANCES:
Loans and advances are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments, other than

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains

investment securities, that are not held for trading. Loans and advances are measured at amortized cost

or losses arising on re-measurement recognized in profit or loss.

net of unearned interest and provision for credit losses where applicable. Bad and doubtful debts are

On initial recognition, the Group can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis)
to designate investments in equity instruments as at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI”). Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are measured at fair value. Gains and losses on
such equity instruments are recognized in other comprehensive income, accumulated in equity and are
never reclassified to profit or loss. Only dividend income is recognized in profit or loss unless the dividend
clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment, in which case it is recognized in other
comprehensive income. Cumulative gains and losses recognized in other comprehensive income are
transferred to retained earnings on disposal of an investment.

carried on a cash basis because of doubts and the probability of non-collection of principal and/or interest.
G. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY INSTRUMENTS ISSUED BY THE GROUP:
Classification as Debt or Equity:
Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.
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An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after

the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch

deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognized at the proceeds

in profit or loss. The remaining amount of change in the fair value of liability is recognized in profit or

received, net of direct issue costs.

loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that are recognized in other

Repurchase of the Group’s own equity instruments is recognized and deducted directly in equity. No
gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue, or cancellation of the Group’s own
equity instruments.
Financial Liabilities at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss:
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for trading or it is
designated as at FVTPL.
A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:
• it has been acquired principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or
	• on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or
	• it is a derivative, except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a designated
and effective hedging instrument.
A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:
	• such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
that would otherwise arise; or
	• the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with

comprehensive income are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Financial Liabilities Subsequently Measured at Amortized Cost:
Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at
amortized cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities
that are subsequently measured at amortized cost are determined based on the effective interest method.
Financial Guarantee Contract Liabilities:
Financial guarantees contracts are contracts that require the Group to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. These contracts can have various judicial forms
(guarantees, letters of credit, credit-insurance contracts).
Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured initially at their fair values and, if not designated at
FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:
	• the amount of the obligation under the contract, as determined in accordance with IAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and
	• the amount initially recognized less, where appropriate, cumulative amortization recognized
in accordance with the revenue recognition policies set out above.
H. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS:

the Group’s documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the

Derivative financial instruments including foreign exchange contracts, currency and interest rate swaps,

grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

(both written and purchased) are initially measured at fair value at the date the derivative contract is entered

	• it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and the entire
combined contract is designated as at FVTPL in accordance with IFRS 9.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value. Any gains or losses arising on remeasurement of heldfor-trading financial liabilities are recognized in profit or loss. Such gains or losses that are recognized in
profit or loss incorporate any interest paid on the financial liabilities and are included in the “Net interest
and gain and loss on liabilities at FVTPL” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

into and are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at each statement of financial position date. All
derivatives are carried at their fair value as assets where the fair value is positive and as liabilities where
the fair value is negative. The resulting gain or loss is recognized in the income statement immediately
unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedge instrument in which event the timing of the
recognition in the statement of profit or loss depends on the hedge relationship. The Group designates
certain derivatives as either hedges of the fair value recognized assets or liabilities or firm commitments
(fair value hedges), hedges of highly probable forecast transactions or hedges of foreign currency risk of

However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of

firm commitments (cash flow hedges), or hedges of net investments in foreign operations.

change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that

Fair values are generally obtained by reference to quoted market prices, discounted cash flow models or

liability is recognized in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in

pricing models as appropriate as indicated under Note 3D.
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Embedded Derivatives:
Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments or other host contracts with embedded derivatives
are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of
the host contracts and the host contract:
• is not measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss.
• is not an asset within the scope of IFRS 9.
Hedge Accounting:
The Group makes use of derivative instruments to manage exposures to interest rate, foreign currency

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relationship, the hedging
instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. The
adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged item arising from the hedged risk is amortized to profit
or loss from that date.
Cash Flow Hedge
The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash
flow hedges are deferred in other comprehensive income. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective
portion is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

and credit risks, including exposures arising from forecast transactions and firm commitments. In order

Amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are reclassified

to manage particular risks, the Group applies hedge accounting for transactions which meet the specified

to profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item is recognized in profit or loss, in the same line of

criteria.

the income statement as the recognized hedged item. However, when the hedged forecast transaction

At inception of the hedge relationship, the Group formally documents the relationship between the
hedged item and the hedging instrument, including the nature of the risk, the objective and strategy
for undertaking the hedge and the method that will be used to assess the effectiveness of the hedging
relationship.
At each hedge effectiveness assessment date, a hedge relationship must be expected to be highly
effective on a prospective basis and demonstrate that it was effective (retrospective effectiveness) for
the designated period in order to qualify for hedge accounting. A formal assessment is undertaken to
ensure the hedging instrument is expected to be highly effective in offsetting the designated risk in the
hedged item, both at inception and at each quarter end on an ongoing basis. A hedge is expected to be
highly effective if the changes in fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk during the period
for which the hedge is designated are expected to offset in a range of 80% to 125% and are expected to
achieve such offset in future periods. Hedge ineffectiveness is recognized in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss in “Net results on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss”. For situations
where that hedged item is a forecast transaction, the Group also assesses whether the transaction is
highly probable and presents an exposure to variations in cash flows that could ultimately affect the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Fair Value Hedge

results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial liability, the gains and losses previously
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are transferred from equity and
included in the initial measurement of the cost of the non-financial asset or non-financial liability.
Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relationship, when the hedging
instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it no longer qualifies for hedge accounting.
Any gain or loss recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity at that time
remains in equity and is recognized when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognized in profit or
loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated in equity
is recognized immediately in profit or loss.
Hedges of Net Investments in Foreign Operations:
Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for similarly to cash flow hedges. Any
gain or loss on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge is recognized in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve. The gain or loss
relating to the ineffective portion is recognized immediately in profit or loss.
Gains and losses accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve are reclassified to profit or loss
on disposal of the foreign operation.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recognized
in profit or loss immediately, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged item that are
attributable to the hedged risk. The change in the fair value of the hedging instrument and the change
in the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk are recognized in the line of the income statement
relating to the hedged item.
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I. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES:
An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint
control over those policies.
The considerations made in determining significant influence are similar to those necessary to determine
control over subsidiaries.
The results and assets and liabilities of associates, except where the Group has control over the associates’
financial and operating policies, are incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting, except when the investment is classified as held for sale, in which case it is
accounted for under IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held-for-Sale and Discontinued Operations. Under the
equity method, an investment in an associate is initially recognized in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognize the Group’s share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the associate. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate exceeds
the Group’s interest in that associate, the Group discontinues recognizing its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognized only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.
Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of an associate recognized at the date of acquisition is recognized
as goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the
cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

relation to that associate on the same basis as would be required if that associate had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognized in other comprehensive
income by that associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets
or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) when the equity method is discontinued.
When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognized in other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or
loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.
When a Group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate are recognized in the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to
the extent of interests in the associate that are not related to the Group.
The financial statements of the associates are prepared for the same reporting period of the Group.
J. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:
Property and equipment are stated at historical cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss,
if any.
Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost or valuation of property and equipment, other than
land and advance payments on capital expenditures, less their residual values, if any, over the estimated
useful lives of the related assets. Depreciation is calculated systematically using the straight-line method
on the basis of the following annual rates:

The entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with IAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of

		

Rate

value in use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount, Any impairment loss recognized

		

%

forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognized
in accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently

Property

increases.

Furniture and fixtures

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the date when the investment ceases to be
an associate or when the investment is classified as held for sale. When the Group retains an interest in
the former associate or joint venture and the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures
the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition. The difference between the carrying amount of the associate at the date the equity method
was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of a part
interest in the associate is included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate.

Equipment
Computer hardware

2.5
7.5 to 8
10 to 12
20

Installations and leasehold improvements

15 to 20

Vehicles

12 to 20

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives
estimated at five years.

In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income in
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An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits

Recoverable amount is defined as the higher of:

are expected from its use or disposal.

	• Fair value that reflects market conditions at the statement of financial position date, less cost
to sell, if any. To determine fair value, the Group adopts the market comparability approach

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in
profit or loss.

using as indicators the current prices for similar assets in the same location and condition.
	• Value in use: the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the
continuing use of the asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life, only applicable
to assets with cash generation units.

K. INTANGIBLE ASSETS:
Intangible assets are stated at cost less any accumulated impairment loss. Intangible assets, other than
goodwill consist of computer software and are amortized over a period of 5 years and are subject to
impairment testing.
L. ASSETS ACQUIRED IN SATISFACTION OF LOANS:

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized immediately
in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating

Policy applicable to Lebanese Group entities: Real estate properties acquired through the enforcement

unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying

of collateral over loans and advances are stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. The

amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment

acquisition of such assets is regulated by the local banking authorities which require the liquidation of

loss been recognized for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss

these assets within 2 years from acquisition. In case of default of liquidation the regulatory authorities

is recognized immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in

require an appropriation of a special reserve from the yearly profits reflected in equity.

which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Upon sale of repossessed assets, any gain or loss realized is recognized in the consolidated statement of

In this connection, the recoverable amount of the Group’s owned properties and of properties acquired in

profit or loss under “Other operating income, (net)”. Gains resulting from the sale of repossessed assets

satisfaction of debts, is the estimated market value, as determined by real estate appraisers on the basis

are transferred to “Reserves from disposal of assets acquired in satisfaction of loans” starting in the

of market compatibility by comparing with similar transactions in the same geographical area and on the

following financial year.

basis of the expected value of a current sale between a willing buyer and a willing seller, that is, other

For assets which were not disposed of within the specified period of two years, an amount computed
as percentage of their gross carrying value is transferred from retained earnings to “Reserves for assets
acquired in satisfaction of loans” in the following financial year.
M. IMPAIRMENT OF TANGIBLE AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS:
At each statement of financial position date, the carrying amounts of tangible and intangible assets are
reviewed to determine whether there is any indication that these assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated in order to determine the extent
of impairment provision required, if any.

than in a forced or liquidation sale after adjustment for illiquidity and market constraints.
The impairment loss is charged to income.
N. EMPLOYEES’ BENEFITS:
Obligations for contributions to defined employees’ benefits are recognized as an expense on a current
basis.
Employees’ End-of-Service Indemnities: (Under the Lebanese Jurisdiction)
The provision for staff termination indemnities is based on the liability that would arise if the employment
of all the staff were terminated at the statement of financial position date. This provision is calculated
in accordance with the directives of the Lebanese Social Security Fund and Labor laws based on the
number of years of service multiplied by the monthly average of the last 12 months remunerations and
less contributions paid to the Lebanese Social Security National Fund and interest accrued by the Fund.
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Defined Benefit Plans: (Under other jurisdictions)

Other net income from financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss, includes:
• Dividend income.

Obligations in respect of defined benefit pension plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating

• Realized and unrealized fair value changes.

the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and

• Foreign exchange differences.

prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and any unrecognized past service
costs and the fair value of any plan assets are deducted.
O. PROVISIONS:
Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and it
is probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation. Provision is measured at the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the obligation at the statement of financial position date.
Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established. Dividends on equity
instruments designated as at fair value through other comprehensive income in accordance with
IFRS 9, are presented in other revenue, unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the
investment, in which case it is presented in other comprehensive income.
Fees and commission income and expense that are integral to the effective interest rate on a financial
asset or liability (i.e. commissions and fees earned on the loan book) are included under interest income
and expense.
Other fees and commission income are recognized as the related services are performed.
Revenue from securitization contracts is recognized based on the following:
	• Where the outcome of a securitization contract can be estimated reliably, revenue and costs
are recognized by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the financial

from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will

position date. This is normally measured by the proportion that contract costs incurred for

be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

work performed to date bear to the estimated total contract costs, except where this would
not be representative of the stage of completion.

P. REVENUE AND EXPENSE RECOGNITION:
Interest income and expense are recognized on an accrual basis, taking account of the principal outstanding

	• Where the outcome of a contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognized
to the extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable. Contract costs

and the rate applicable, except for non-performing loans and advances for which interest income is only

are recognized as expenses in the period in which they are incurred. When it is probable that

recognized upon realization. Interest income include the amortization discounts and premiums.

total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognized as an

Interest income and expense presented in the statement of profit or loss include:
• Interest on financial assets and liabilities at amortized cost.
	• Fair value changes in qualifying derivatives, including hedge ineffectiveness, and related
hedged items when interest rate risk is the hedged risk.
Net trading income presented in the statement of profit or loss includes:
• Interest income and expense on the trading portfolio.
• Dividend income on the trading equities.
• Realized and unrealized gains and losses on the trading portfolio.
Interest income on financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss and interest income on

expense immediately
Q. OPERATING LEASE AGREEMENTS:
Lease agreements which do not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership
of the leased items are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recorded in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on a straight line basis over the lease term.
R. TREASURY SHARES:
Treasury shares are stated at cost. Any gain or loss on sale is reflected as an adjustment to retained
earnings.

the trading portfolio are presented separately in the statement of profit or loss.
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S. FIDUCIARY DEPOSITS:
Fiduciary assets are held or invested on behalf of customers on a non-discretionary basis and related risks
and rewards belong to the account holders. Accordingly, these assets are reflected as off-balance sheet
accounts.
T. INCOME TAX:
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognized in the statement of profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized
directly in other comprehensive income, in which case the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except:
	• When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.
	• In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the
extent that it is possible that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

income.
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable profit for the year, using rates enacted at the
financial position date. Income tax payable is reflected in the statement of financial position net of taxes
previously settled in the form of withholding tax.
Interest earned on part of debt security was subject to withheld tax by the issuer. Up to October 26,
2017, this tax was deducted at year-end from the corporate income tax liability and accounted for as
prepayment on corporate income tax and reflected as a part of income provisions. Effective October
27, 2017, and following the tax amendments to law No. 64, withheld tax on interest earned on inter-bank
deposits and debt security is no more considered as prepayment on corporate income tax, and it is
considered as deductible expense for the purpose of computing the corporate income tax. Withholding

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date.

tax on interest was increased from 5% to 7%.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss. Deferred
tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax is recognized on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable profit, and are
accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for
all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
entity and the same taxation authority.

that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:
	• When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or

recognition at that date, are recognized subsequently if new information about facts and circumstances
change. The adjustment is either treated as a reduction in goodwill (as long as it does not exceed goodwill)
if it was incurred during the measurement period or recognized in profit or loss.
U. EARNINGS PER SHARE:

liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is

affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Bank by the weighted

	• In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,

average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting

associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary

the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary

differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse

shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, which comprise share options

in the foreseeable future.

granted to employees, if applicable.
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V. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:

Going Concern:

Cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with original contractual maturities of three months or less

The Group’s management has made an assessment of the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern

and include: cash and balances with the central banks and deposits with banks and financial institutions.

and is satisfied that the Group has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future.

W. DIVIDENDS ON ORDINARY SHARES:
Dividends on ordinary shares are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity when they are
approved by the Bank’s shareholders. Interim dividends are deducted from equity when they are declared
and no longer at the discretion of the Group.
Dividends for the year that are approved after the reporting date are disclosed as an event after the
reporting date.
X. DEFERRED RESTRICTED CONTRIBUTIONS
Restricted contributions derived from special and non-conventional deals arrangement concluded with the
regulator are deferred until designated conditions for recognition are met. At the time income is received
it is deferred under “regulatory deferred liability” and applied to the designated purpose according to the
regulator’s requirements.
4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in note 3, the directors are

Furthermore, management is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt
upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore the consolidated financial statements
continue to be prepared on the going concern basis.
Classification of Financial Assets:
Business Model:
The business model test requires the Group to assess whether its business objective for financial assets
is to collect the contractual cash flows of the assets rather than realize their fair value change from
sale before their contractual maturity. The Group considers at which level of its business activities such
assessment should be made.
Generally, a business model can be evidenced by the way business is managed and the information
provided to management. However the Group’s business model can be to hold financial assets to collect
contractual cash flows even when there are some sales of financial assets. While IFRS 9 provides some
situations where such sales may or may not be consistent with the objective of holding assets to collect
contractual cash flows, the assessment requires the use of judgment based on facts and circumstances.

required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the reported amounts of revenues,

In determining whether its business model for managing financial assets is to hold assets in order to

expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent

collect contractual cash flows the Group considers:

liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are

• The frequency and volume of sales;

based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may

• The reasons for any sales;

differ from these estimates.

• How management evaluates the performance of the portfolio;

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
A. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS IN APPLYING THE GROUP’S ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect in the amounts

• The objectives for the portfolio.
Characteristics of the Financial Asset:
Once the Group determines that its business model is to hold the assets to collect the contractual cash
flows, it exercises judgment to assess the contractual cash flows characteristics of a financial asset. In
making this judgment, the Group considers the contractual terms of the acquired asset to determine that
they give rise on specific dates, to cash flows that solely represent principal and principal settlement and
accordingly may qualify for amortized cost accounting.

recognized in the financial statements.
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Features considered by the Group that would be consistent with amortized cost measurement include:
• Fixed and / or floating interest rate;
• Caps, floors, collars;
• Prepayment options.
Features considered by the Group that would be inconsistent with amortized cost measurement include:
• Leverage (i.e. options, forwards and swaps);
• Conversion options;
• Inverse floaters;

Impairment of investment in associates:
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is indication that an investment may be
impaired. If any indication exists the Group estimates the investment’s recoverable amount. When the
cost of the investment exceeds the recoverable amount, the investment is considered impaired and
a provision for impairment is setup representing the difference between the investment’s recoverable
amount and its carrying value. The provision is charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Determining Fair Values:

• Variable rate coupons that reset periodically;

The determination of fair value for financial assets for which there is no observable market price requires

• Triggers that result in a significant reduction of principal, interest or both.

the use of valuation techniques as described in Note 3D. For financial instruments that traded infrequently

B. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY:
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the statement of financial position date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

and have little price transparency, fair value is less objective, and requires varying degrees of judgment
depending on liquidity, concentration, uncertainty of market factors, pricing assumptions and other risks
affecting the specific instrument.
Unobservable inputs are used to measure fair value to the extent that observable inputs are not available,
thereby allowing for situations in which there is little, if any, market activity for the asset or liability at the

The Group based their assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated

measurement date. However, the fair value measurement objective should remain the same; that is, an

financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments,

exit price from the perspective of market participants. Unobservable inputs are developed based on the

however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Group.

best information available in the circumstances, which may include the reporting entity’s own data.

Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

5. CASH AND DEPOSITS WITH CENTRAL BANKS
December 31,

Allowances for Credit Losses:
Specific impairment for credit losses is determined by assessing each case individually. This method

2017

2016

LBP’000

LBP’000

9,242,940

9,015,076

130,934,835

86,775,776

416,480

368,681

486,906,140

451,430,265

4,722,830

1,970,321

632,223,225

549,560,119

applies to classified loans and advances, balances placed with banks and other accounts receivable
and the factors taken into consideration when estimating the allowance for credit losses include the
counterparty’s credit limit, the counterparty’s ability to generate cash flows sufficient to settle the
advances and the value of collateral and potential repossession.
Loans and advances that have been assessed individually and found not to be impaired and all individually
insignificant loans and advances are then assessed collectively, in groups of assets with similar risk
characteristics, to determine whether provision should be made due to incurred loss events for which
there is objective evidence but whose effects are not yet evident.
The collective assessment takes account of data from the loan portfolio (such as credit quality, levels of
arrears, credit utilization, loan to collateral ratios, etc…), concentrations of risks, economic data and the

Cash on hand
Current accounts with Central Bank of Lebanon
(of which compulsory reserves LBP22.1billion in
2017 and LBP52.1billion in 2016)
Current accounts with other central banks
Term placements with Central Bank of Lebanon
Accrued interest receivable

performance of different individual groups.
Compulsory deposits with central banks are not available for use in the Group’s day-to-day operations.
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Cash compulsory reserves with Central Bank of Lebanon represent non-interest earning deposits

6. DEPOSITS WITH BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
December 31,

in Lebanese Pounds computed on the basis of 25% and 15% of the average weekly sight and term
customers’ deposits in Lebanese Pounds subject to certain exemptions in accordance with the local
banking regulations.

2017

2016

LBP’000

LBP’000

Current accounts with other central banks include the equivalent in Euro of LBP257million as at December
31, 2017 (LBP276million as at December 31, 2016) deposited in accordance with banking laws and

Checks in course of collection

15,897,315

17,896,839

regulations in Cyprus which require banks to maintain at the Central Bank of Cyprus mandatory interest

Current accounts

55,557,323

136,114,235

earning deposits in Euro to the extent of 1% (1% as at December 31, 2016) of banks’ and customers’

Current accounts - related parties

5,411,036

5,256,064

deposits maturing in less than two years, after deducting a fixed amount of Euro100,000.

Term placements

16,064,708

73,562,537

Margin accounts

45,805,242

65,301,776

28,113

85,644

138,763,737

298,217,095

Term placements with Central Bank of Lebanon include an amount of LBP283billion as at December
31, 2017 (LBP284billion as at December 31, 2016) representing the equivalent in foreign currencies of

Accrued interest receivable

amounts deposited in accordance with local banking regulations which require banks to maintain interest
earning placements in foreign currency to the extent of 15% of customers’ deposits in foreign currencies,

Deposits with banks and financial institutions include deposits in the amount of LBP1.71billion subject to

certificates of deposit and borrowings obtained from non-resident financial institutions.

right of set-off by the related correspondents against trade finance and other facilities at 2017 year end

As at December 31, 2017, placements with the Central Bank of Lebanon includes deposits in USD for

(LBP12.47billion against trade finance and other facilities as at December 31, 2016).

the amount of USD30,750,000 (C/V LBP46billion) which triggered collateralized investment in Lebanese

Margin accounts and pledged deposits are blocked against trade finance and treasury transactions and

Treasury bills in LBP for the amount of LBP57billion originated through soft leverage arrangement in LBP

banking facilities (Refer to Note 45).

for an equivalent amount of LBP57billion, thus significantly enhancing the yield on the initial investment
in USD over coupon rate (refer to Notes 11 and 21).
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7. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

8. LOANS TO BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

December 31, 2017
LBP Base

December 31,

December 31, 2016

Foreign Currency		

LBP Base

Foreign Currency				
Total

2017

2016

LBP’000

LBP’000

12,838,776

9,974,810

-

7,537,500

12,838,776

17,512,310

Accounts

Base Accounts

Total

Accounts

Base Accounts

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

Quoted equity securities

-

10,084,754

10,084,754

-

7,099,123

7,099,123

Lebanese treasury bills

223,268

-

223,268

16,777,541

-

16,777,541

-

7,033,275

7,033,275

-

20,113,835

20,113,835

-

5,907,290

5,907,290

5,910,721

31,657,500

37,568,221

by banks

-

-

-

-

753,750

Corporate bonds

-

1,256,366

1,256,366

-

1,885,186

1,885,186

Interest income for the year ended December 31, 2017 amounted to LBP42million recorded under interest

5,784

209,386

215,170

321,650

733,762

1,055,412

income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss (LBP1.09billion for the year ended December 31,

229,052

24,491,071

24,720,123

23,009,912

62,243,156

85,253,068

Discounted letters of credit and acceptances

Lebanese Government bonds

LBP’000

Certificates of deposit issued by
the Central Bank of Lebanon
Certificates of deposit issued

Accrued interest receivable

753,750

Loans to a resident financial institution

Loans to a resident financial institution outstanding as at December 31, 2016 comprised a 1 year term
loan in the amount of USD5million (LBP7.54billion) originated during the year 2014 and secured by a
pledged deposit in Lebanese Pounds amounting to LBP12.5billion. This term loan was subject to a fixed
annual interest rate of 4.25% and was being renewed on a yearly basis at maturity under the same terms
and conditions during 2015 and 2016. This term loan matured during February 2017.

2016) (Refer to Note 32).

The positive change in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in the amount of
LBP1.55billion (loss of LBP2.72billion in 2016) is recorded under “Net interest and other gains/(losses)
on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” (Note 36) in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.
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The movement of substandard loans with related unrealized interest during 2017 and 2016 is summarized as

9. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS
December 31, 2017
		

follows

December 31, 2016

Gross				
Allowance		

Gross
Amount Net		

2017

		

Amount Net		

Allowance

		

of Unearned

Unrealized

for

Carrying

of Unearned

Unrealized

for

Carrying

		

Interest

Interest

Impairment

Amount

Interest

Interest

Impairment

Amount

		

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000
Balance January 1

Performing Retail
customers:
Mortgage loans
Personal loans
Overdrafts
Other

Withdrawals on existing loans
45,615,453
5,335,319
42,300,862
11,819,320

-

-

45,615,453
5,335,319
42,300,862
11,819,320

61,203,856
9,346,674
32,180,224
8,932,017

-

-

61,203,856
9,346,674
32,180,224
8,932,017

Settlements
Additions to unrealized interest
to income statement
Write-off

customers:

Balance December 31
770,180,490

-

-

770,180,490

632,130,785

-

-

632,130,785

246,586,036

-

-

246,586,036

270,489,706

-

-

270,489,706

Unrealized

Allowance for

Net

Loans

Interest

Impairment

Book Value

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

17,474,492

(442,946)

-

17,031,546

4,067,828

-

-

4,067,828

(1,387,338)

-

-

(1,387,338)

1,674,063

(1,674,063)

-

-

-

20

-

20

(3,927)

3,927

-

-

21,825,118

(2,113,062)

-

19,712,056

Write back of unrealized interest

Performing corporate
Large enterprises

Substandard

Small and medium
enterprises

2016

Non performing -

Substandard

Unrealized

Allowance for

Net

Retail Customers:

Loans

Interest

Impairment

Book Value		

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

8,729,688

(1,031,991)

(753,750)

6,943,947

16,814,417

-

-

16,814,417

397,357

(397,357)

-

-

Transfer to doubtful and bad debts

(8,466,970)

986,402

753,750

(6,726,818)

Balance December 31

17,474,492

(442,946)

-

17,031,546

Substandard
Bad and doubtful

1,576,247

(269,888)

-

1,306,359

1,604,648

(95,148)

-

1,509,500

539,124

(350,349)

(188,775)

-

450,316

(263,113)

(187,203)

Balance January 1

Non performing-

Withdrawals on existing loans

Corporate Customers:
Substandard

20,248,871

(1,843,174)

-

18,405,697

15,869,844

(347,798)

-

15,522,046

Bad and doubtful

21,785,884

(7,770,135)

(6,555,818)

7,459,931

19,857,862

(5,937,330)

(6,441,717)

7,478,815

Corporate loans

-

-

(2,095,422)

(2,095,422)

-

-

(2,095,422)

(2,095,422)

Retail loans

-

-

(34,460)

(34,460)

-

-

(34,460)

(34,460)

1,658,883

-

-

1,658,883

1,263,482

-

-

1,263,482

Additions to unrealized interest

Allowance for impairment
for collectively
assessed loans:

Accrued interest receivable

1,167,646,489 (10,233,546)

(8,874,475) 1,148,538,468

1,053,329,414 (6,643,389)

(8,758,802) 1,037,927,223
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The movement of doubtful and bad loans and related unrealized interest and allowance for impairment during

10. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO RELATED PARTIES

2017 and 2016 is summarized as follows:

December 31,

2017
		

Doubtful		

		

and Bad

		

2016
Allowance

Net

Unrealized

for

Book

Retail loans

Loans

Interest

Impairment

Value

Overdrafts to corporates

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

(6,628,920)

7,478,815

8,670,769

(3,586,105)

(4,837,452)

247,212

-

-

-

1,741,764

-

-

1,741,764

77,707

-

-

77,707

182,545

-

-

182,545

(435,361)

-

-

(435,361)

(282,192)

-

-

(282,192)

2,060,326

(2,060,326)

(111,867)

(111,867)

2,013,980

(2,013,980)

(2,090,728)

(2,090,728)

Write-back

-

311,483

128,873

440,356

-

184,147

772,616

956,763

Write-off

-

-

-

-

(414,755)

166,005

248,750

-

-

-

-

-

8,466,970

(986,402)

(753,750)

6,726,818

314,158

(171,198)

(132,679)

10,281

(70,903)

35,892

31,644

(3,367)

22,325,008

(8,120,484)

(6,744,593)

7,459,931

20,308,178

(6,200,443)

(6,628,920)

7,478,815

		
Balance January 1

Allowance

Net

Doubtful		

Unrealized

for

Book

and Bad

Loans

Interest

Impairment

Value

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

20,308,178

(6,200,443)

-

2017

2016

LBP’000

LBP’000

1,006,336

2,085,613

78,142

560,732

1,084,478

2,646,345

Loans and advances to related parties are partially secured (Refer to Note 43).

Downgraded from
regular loans
Withdrawals on existing
doubtful loans
Settlement of loans
Additions to unrealized
interest and
allowance for impairment

Downgraded from
substandard loans
Effect of exchange
rates changes
Balance December 31

11. INVESTMENT SECURITIES
December 31, 2017

December 31, 2016

		

LBP

C/V of F/Cy

Total

LBP

C/V of F/Cy

Total

		

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

615,120

991,140

1,606,260

615,120

23,346

638,466

615,891,721

205,374,999

381,255,394

9,660,948

3,663,165

3,591,797

263,882,381 361,670,288

625,552,669

209,038,164

384,847,191

593,885,355

264,497,501 362,661,428

627,158,929

209,653,284

384,870,537

594,523,821

Financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive
income
Financial assets at
amortized cost(A)
Accrued interest receivable
		

258,513,883 357,377,838
5,368,498

4,292,450

586,630,393
7,254,962

During November 2017, the Group acquired 3,500 shares of La Banque Outarde in Senegal “LBO S.A”
whose capital is divided into 100,000 shares of CFA100,000 each following the approval of the Central
Bank of Lebanon on March 31, 2016. The total acquisition of the Group amounted to CFA350million
constituting 3.5% of “LBO S.A” capital. The Group recorded the investment in Euro for the equivalent
amount of EUR534,000 (C/V LBP965million) as at December 31, 2017.
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The remaining periods to maturity of financial assets at amortized cost, denominated in Lebanese Pounds
excluding accrued interest, is as follows:

A. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTIZED COST ARE BROKEN DOWN AS FOLLOWS:
December 31, 2017
LBP Base Accounts

December 31, 2017
LBP Base Accounts

C/V of F/Cy Base Accounts

				

Accrued			

Accrued

		

Amortized

Fair

Interest

Amortized

Fair

Interest

		

Cost

Value

Receivable

Cost

Value

		

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

3,585,093

-

-

Lebanese treasury bills
Lebanese Government bonds

192,088,212 189,834,264

Receivable
LBP’000
-

-

-

-

101,452,978

88,756,612

1,932,322

the Central Bank of Lebanon

64,925,671

63,653,614

1,754,724

237,628,082

233,964,000

2,117,549

Corporate bonds

1,500,000

1,500,000

28,681

18,296,778

18,801,205

242,579

5,368,498

357,377,838

341,521,817

4,292,450

Certificates of deposit issued by

258,513,883 254,987,878

December 31, 2016
LBP Base Accounts

C/V of F/Cy Base Accounts

Contractual Maturity
			
Lebanese treasury bills:
Up to 3 months
3 months to 1 year
1 year to 3 years
3 years to 5 years
Beyond 5 years
			
Certificates of deposit issued by
the Central Bank of Lebanon:
3 years to 5 years
5 years to 10 years
			
Corporate bonds:
3 years to 5 years
		
			

Nominal Value

Amortized Cost

Fair Value

Yield

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

%

6,920,000
27,475,000
65,510,000
14,219,900
72,722,050
186,846,950

6,921,651
27,554,497
65,975,447
14,360,321
77,276,296
192,088,212

7,159,440
27,517,942
66,872,382
15,236,620
73,047,880
189,834,264

5.58
6.82
6.95
6.59
6.07

1,000,000
58,000,000
59,000,000

1,034,777
63,890,894
64,925,671

1,026,712
62,626,902
63,653,614

7.54
8.02

1,500,000
1,500,000

1,500,000
1,500,000

1,500,000
1,500,000

8.00

247,346,950

258,513,883

254,987,878

				

Accrued			

Accrued

		

Amortized

Fair

Interest

Amortized

Fair

Interest

December 31, 2016

		

Cost

Value

Receivable

Cost

Value

Receivable

LBP Base Accounts

		

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

2,249,737

-

-

Lebanese treasury bills
Lebanese Government bonds

149,290,331 152,536,263

LBP’000
-

-

-

-

115,685,102

105,933,735

1,403,208

56,084,668

56,677,826

1,413,428

245,750,426

241,501,500

2,001,519

-

-

-

19,819,866

19,874,922

187,070

3,663,165

381,255,394

367,310,157

3,591,797

Certificates of deposit issued by
the Central Bank of Lebanon
Corporate bonds
		

205,374,999 209,214,089

Contractual Maturity
			
Lebanese treasury bills:
Up to 1 year
1 year to 3 years
3 years to 5 years
Beyond 5 years
			
Certificates of deposit issued by
the Central Bank of Lebanon:
3 years to 5 years
5 years to 10 years
			
			

Nominal Value

Amortized Cost

Fair Value

Yield

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

%

36,127,480
35,475,000
39,700,000
35,110,850
146,413,330

36,417,476
35,841,489
40,129,662
36,901,704
149,290,331

38,934,035
36,290,763
40,870,364
36,441,101
152,536,263

7.77
7.63
7.80
8.15

8,000,000
46,000,000
54,000,000
200,413,330

8,060,153
48,024,515
56,084,668
205,374,999

8,174,105
48,503,721
56,677,826
209,214,089

7.50
7.98
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The remaining periods to maturity of financial assets at amortized cost, denominated in Foreign Currencies
excluding accrued interest, is as follows:

Contractual Maturity
		LBP’000

December 31, 2017

December 31, 2016

F/Cy Base Accounts

F/Cy Base Accounts

Nominal Value

Amortized Cost

Fair Value

LBP’000

LBP’000

%

Yield

		LBP’000

Lebanese Government bonds:
Up to 3 months

Contractual Maturity

Nominal Value

Amortized Cost

Fair Value

Yield

LBP’000

LBP’000

%

3,610,463

3,627,505

3,540,486

7.31

Lebanese Government bonds:
3,950,191

3,942,725

3,944,510

4.04

Up to one year

37,688

37,708

37,548

5.15

1 year to 3 years

25,899,391

26,044,415

24,637,491

5.28

1 year to 3 years

21,105,000

21,290,071

20,890,634

5.95

3 years to 5 years

25,627,500

26,155,564

24,725,864

6.16

3 years to 5 years

7,630,965

8,271,575

7,977,382

7.59

5 years to 10 years

37,042,290

36,840,511

33,223,672

6.21

5 years to 10 years

36,496,575

36,557,099

31,758,122

6.31

Beyond 10 years

22,974,300

23,017,107

19,806,222

6.65

Beyond 10 years

31,793,175

31,353,800

24,148,416

6.84

115,153,944

115,685,102

105,933,735

101,013,594

101,452,978

88,756,612

7,537,500

7,537,500

7,537,500

6.20

226,426,500

230,535,419

226,426,500

6.36

7,537,500

7,677,507

7,537,500

6.64

241,501,500

245,750,426

241,501,500

Up to 1 year

7,160,625

7,136,765

7,160,625

5.99

1 year to 3 years

4,661,150

4,629,955

4,661,150

6.55

3 months to 1 year

		

			
Certificates of deposit issued by

Certificates of deposit issued by

the Central Bank of Lebanon:

the Central Bank of Lebanon:

3 years to 5 years

1 year to 3 years

7,537,500

7,537,500

7,537,500

6.20

5 years to 10 years

3 years to 5 years

91,957,500

91,983,161

91,957,500

6.17

Beyond 10 years

5 years to 10 years

111,856,500

115,365,371

111,856,500

6.56

			

22,612,500

22,742,050

22,612,500

7.20

Corporate Bonds:

233,964,000

237,628,082

233,964,000

Beyond 10 years
			
Corporate Bonds:
1 year to 3 years

2,261,250

2,261,250

2,261,250

7.00

3 years to 5 years

3,153,771

3,153,771

3,153,771

7.33

3 years to 5 years

4,899,375

4,880,917

4,899,375

5.52

5 years to 10 years

4,899,375

4,899,375

4,899,376

6.96

5 years to 10 years

11,218,679

11,154,611

11,640,580

6.85

19,874,921

19,819,866

19,874,922

			

18,379,304

18,296,778

18,801,205		

			

353,356,898

357,377,838

376,530,365

381,255,394

367,310,157

341,521,817
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The movement of financial assets at amortized cost, denominated in Lebanese Pounds excluding accrued

The movement of financial assets at amortized cost, denominated in Foreign Currencies excluding

interest, is summarized as follows:

accrued interest, is summarized as follows:
2017

				

2017
				

Certificates

			

Lebanese

of Deposit Issued

			

Treasury

by the Central

Corporate

			

Bills

Bank of Lebanon

Bonds

Total

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

149,290,331

56,084,668

-

205,374,999

85,039,900

51,000,000

1,500,000

137,539,900

Redemptions

(21,127,480)

-

-

(21,127,480)

Sales		

(47,000,000)

(47,000,000)

-

(94,000,000)

23,521,200

1,000,000

-

24,521,200

2,364,261

3,841,003

-

6,205,264

192,088,212

64,925,671

1,500,000

258,513,883

			
Balance January 1
Additions

Reclassification
Net variation in premium
Balance December 31

Certificates

			

Lebanese

of Deposit Issued

			

Government

by the Central

Corporate

			

Bonds

Bank of Lebanon

Bonds

Total

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

115,685,102

245,750,426

19,819,866

381,255,394

84,397,388

15,075,000

2,638,126

102,110,514

Redemptions

(43,740,113)

-

(2,626,242)

(46,366,355)

Sales and exchange

(55,101,657)

(22,612,500)

(1,507,500)

(79,221,657)

212,258

(584,844)

(27,472)

(400,058)

101,452,978

237,628,082

18,296,778

357,377,838

			
Balance January 1
Additions

Net variation in premium
Balance December 31

2016
				

2016
				

Certificates

Certificates

			

Lebanese

of Deposit Issued

			

Lebanese

of Deposit Issued

			

Treasury

by the Central

			

Government

by the Central

Corporate

			

Bills

Bank of Lebanon

Total

			

Bonds

Bank of Lebanon

Bonds

Total

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

170,611,032

187,620,715

358,231,747

151,730,640

82,764,034

34,847,533

269,342,207

54,766,980

34,000,000

88,766,980

42,653,467

22,160,250

11,758,500

76,572,217

(76,000,000)

(156,000,000)

(232,000,000)

Redemptions

(17,758,350)

-

(22,107,003)

(39,865,353)

(87,681)

(9,536,047)

(9,623,728)

Swap and sales

(59,609,827)

140,649,750

(4,611,290)

76,428,633

149,290,331

56,084,668

205,374,999

(1,330,828)

176,392

(17,524)

(1,171,960)

-

-

(50,350)

(50,350)

115,685,102

245,750,426

19,819,866

381,255,394

			
Balance January 1
Additions
Swap and sales
Net variation in premium
Balance December 31

			
Balance January 1
Additions

Net variation in premium
Exchange difference
Balance December 31
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Gain from derecognition of financial assets at amortized cost, (net) consists of the following:

13. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

Year Ended December 31,
2017

2016

LBP’000

LBP’000

Lebanese treasury bills

1,634,446

588,800

Certificates of deposit issued by the Central Bank of Lebanon

1,894,421

1,116,680

(13,585)

203,527

-

25,790

3,515,282

1,934,797

Lebanese Government bonds
Corporate bonds issued by banks

December 31,
					
			
			

2017

2016

Country of

Interest

Carrying

Carrying

Incorporation

Held

Value

Value

%

LBP’000

LBP’000

				

Banque Bemo Saudi Fransi S.A.
Syria
22
20,994,413
18,052,156
							
					

20,994,413

18,052,156

The movement of investment in an associate is as follows:
December 31,

During the year 2017, the Group entered into several sales transactions of Lebanese Treasury bills, Lebanese
Government bonds, certificates of deposit issued by the Central Bank of Lebanon, and Corporate bonds

2017

2016

LBP’000

LBP’000

18,052,156

17,645,342

1,385,715

1,074,343

of aggregate carrying value of LBP47billion, LBP49billion, LBP47billion and LBP1.5billion, respectively.
During the year 2016, the Group entered into several sales transactions of Lebanese Treasury bills,
Lebanese Government bonds, and certificates of deposit issued by the Central Bank of Lebanon and
by banks of aggregate carrying value of LBP33billion, LBP54.4billion, LBP64billion and LBP4.6billion,

Balance January 1
Share in profit of an associate (Note 37)

respectively.

Currency translation adjustment for the year

450,312

(667,529)

Change in fair value of investment securities

1,030,666

-

During the year 2016, the Bank entered into sales transactions of Lebanese Treasury bills and certificates

Other adjustment

75,564

-

of deposit denominated in Lebanese Pounds designated between fair value through profit or loss and

Balance December 31

20,994,413

18,052,156

amortized cost securities and having a nominal value of LBP37billion and LBP80.5billion, respectively
concluded in conjunction with the acquisition of certificates of deposit denominated in U.S. Dollars
with longer maturity designated between fair value through profit or loss and amortized cost with a
nominal value of USD21million and USD57million respectively. The resulting surplus of the inter-related

The movement of the currency translation adjustment for the years 2017 and 2016 is as follows:

transactions derived from the special and non-conventional arrangement with the regulator, in the amount

December 31,

of LBP41.25billion was deferred net of tax in the amount of LP6.19billion under “Regulatory deferred
liability” under “Other liabilities” (Note 22).

2017

2016

LBP’000

LBP’000

-

23,440,267

1,480,978

667,529

-

(24,107,796)

1,480,978

-

12. CUSTOMERS’ LIABILITY UNDER ACCEPTANCES
Acceptances represent documentary credits which the Group has committed to settle on behalf of its
customers against commitments by those customers (acceptances). The commitments resulting from
these acceptances are stated as a liability in the statement of financial position for the same amount.

Balance January 1
Additions
Offset against surplus derived from special and non-conventional
deals arrangement with the regulator (Note 22(b))
Balance December 31
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The summarized consolidated financial statements of the associate, Banque Bemo Saudi Fransi S.A., are
provided below:
December 31,
2017

2016

14. ASSETS ACQUIRED IN SATISFACTION OF LOANS
Assets acquired in satisfaction of loans have been acquired through foreclosure of security over loans
and advances.
The acquisition of assets in settlement of loans in Lebanon is regulated by the banking regulatory

LBP’000

LBP’000

authorities and these assets should be liquidated within 2 years. In case of default of liquidation, a

Total Assets

867,951,074

684,060,771

regulatory reserve should be appropriated from the yearly net profits over a period of 5 years. This reserve

Total Liabilities

772,226,827

601,260,079

is reduced to 5% annually when certain conditions linked to the restructuring of non performing loans’

95,245,403

82,344,672

portfolio are met. This regulatory reserve is reflected under equity. In this connection, an amount of

478,844

456,020

(7,133,089)

30,031,809

(62,345)

98,205

Equity of the group
Equity attributable to non controlling interests
(Loss)/profit for the year of the group
v
(Loss)/profit
attributable to non controlling interests

LBP151million was appropriated in 2017 from 2016 income (LBP102million in 2016).

Summarized consolidated statement of profit or loss:
December 31,
2017

2016

LBP’000

LBP’000

Interest income

30,907,610

19,444,234

Interest expense

(8,869,581)

(5,251,800)

Fees and commission income

6,700,492

4,731,713

Fees and commission expense

(2,539,400)

(200,558)

Administrative expenses

(5,811,986)

(4,619,424)

(12,779,106)

(8,915,273)

62,958

2,341,889

(843,500)

(4,550,565)

(1,678,798)

(1,029,939)

3,609,988

4,169,343

(2,706,070)

(848,625)

(13,248,041)

24,859,019

(7,195,434)

30,130,014

Staff costs
Provision for doubtful debts
Other provisions
Depreciation and amortization expense
Others
Income tax expense
Unrealized (loss)/gain on capital revaluation, net
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15. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

													
								

Installations

Advances				

								

and Leasehold

on Capital

			

Land

Buildings

Furniture

Computer

Vehicles

Improvement

Expenditures

Total

			

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

7,222,927

7,384,604

2,364,316

6,385,640

916,599

9,119,220

206,980

33,600,286

Additions

-

1,008,280

186,871

647,364

131,893

76,414

6,491,734

8,542,556

Disposals

-

-

(34,165)

(273,808)

(113,958)

(6,590)

-

(428,521)

Transfers between categories

-

52,762

-

-

-

-

(52,762)

-

7,222,927

8,445,646

2,517,022

6,759,196

934,534

9,189,044

6,645,952

41,714,321

Additions

-

-

176,966

409,386

66,523

3,386,001

6,532,026

10,570,902

Disposals

-

-

(24,637)

(232,802)

(153,871)

(961,734)

-

(1,373,044)

7,222,927

8,445,646

2,669,351

6,935,780

847,186

11,613,311

13,177,978

50,912,179

Balance, January 1, 2016

-

1,571,441

1,972,879

4,938,645

372,046

8,047,273

-

16,902,284

Additions

-

196,442

111,927

463,401

110,579

316,678

-

1,199,027

Write-off on disposals

-

-

(32,741)

(272,694)

(42,711)

(6,588)

-

(354,734)

Balance, December 31, 2016

-

1,767,883

2,052,065

5,129,352

439,914

8,357,363

-

17,746,577

Additions

-

214,472

82,757

469,274

108,452

668,068

-

1,543,023

Disposals

-

-

(23,750)

(210,521)

(140,447)

(959,705)

-

(1,334,423)

Balance, December 31, 2017

-

1,982,355

2,111,072

5,388,105

407,919

8,065,726

-

17,955,177

December 31, 2017

7,222,927

6,463,291

558,279

1,547,675

439,267

3,547,585

13,177,978

32,957,002

December 31, 2016

7,222,927

6,677,763

464,957

1,629,844

494,620

831,681

6,645,952

23,967,744

Gross Amount:
Balance, January 1, 2016

Balance, December 31, 2016

Balance, December 31, 2017
Accumulated Depreciation:

Carrying Amount:
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The Bank’s Board of Directors approved on July 20, 2016 the acquisition of 5,307m2 of plot number 660

17. OTHER ASSETS

December 31,

located in Medawar for a total consideration of USD20,945,000 (C/V LBP32billion) for the purpose of
building the Bank’s head quarters.
The addition to advances on capital expenditures during the year 2017 in the amount of LBP6.5billion,
represents the second and third payments on plot number 660 as per acquisition contract (LBP6.5billion

Exchange difference on fixed exchange position

as first payment during the year 2016).

Fair value of forward exchange contracts

The addition to the installations and leasehold improvement during 2017 in the amount of LBP3.4billion
relate to expansion and refurbishment works undertaken in Rabieh and Achrafieh branches.

Stamps
Deferred charges

2017

2016

LBP’000

LBP’000

302,578

302,578

-

4,425,698

106,666

86,033

1,706

13,594

Receivables from securitization operations

1,976,254

338,928

The addition to buildings during the year 2016 in the amount of LBP1billion, fully settled during the

Receivables from an associate and a related party bank

1,841,946

1,135,042

year, represents the purchase of plot number 1331 section 5 and 6 located in Rabieh for the purpose of

Prepayments

1,018,956

1,588,510

expanding Rabieh Branch.

Receivables from a financial institution – credit and operations

2,338,920

2,358,635

Receivables from National Social Security Fund (Net of provision)

1,045,225

770,744

Sundry accounts receivable

2,490,303

1,905,132

11,122,554

12,924,894

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
		
		

Purchased Software
LBP’000

Cost:
Balance, January 1, 2016
Acquisitions
Disposals
Balance, December 31, 2016
Acquisitions
Balance, December 31, 2017

4,036,432
683,068
(3,789)
4,715,711
533,138
5,248,849

Amortization of the year
Disposals
Balance, December 31, 2016
Amortization of the year
Balance, December 31, 2017

Receivables from an associate and a related party bank represent amounts paid by the Group on behalf of
these related entities. During 2017, the outstanding receivables became subject to interest at the annual
rates of 6% and 4% respectively. Interest income earned during the year 2017 amounted to LBP185million
recorded under interest income in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for
the year ended December 31, 2017 (Note 32).
18. DEPOSITS AND BORROWINGS FROM BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Amortization:
Balance, January 1, 2016

Provision for doubtful receivables of LBP295thousand was set up during 2017 against receivables from
the National Social Security Fund (LBP287.45million for the year 2016). Total provision as at December 31,
2017 amounts to LBP842.1million (LBP855million as at December 31, 2016).

December 31,

3,418,229
319,591

2017

2016

LBP’000

LBP’000

2,815,876

824,959

Current deposits – Related parties

62,182,609

76,822,551

Money market deposits

11,714,776

9,552,000

Money market deposits - Related parties

37,643,276

25,526,936

(3,789)
3,734,031
329,499
4,063,530

Carrying Amount:

Current deposits of banks and financial institutions

December 31, 2017

1,185,319

Pledged deposits (Note 8)

-

12,530,000

December 31, 2016

981,680

Accrued interest payable

776,135

1,394,666

115,132,672

126,651,112
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December 31, 2016

19. CUSTOMERS’ ACCOUNTS AT AMORTIZED COST
December 31,
		

2017

2016

		

LBP’000

LBP’000

319,049,609

363,660,161

1,496,076,022

1,516,581,105

140,087,339

163,590,275

253,292

224,024

7,342,537

3,917,465

14,325,975

12,472,042

6,826,159

8,573,614

9,127,519

9,173,342

1,993,088,452

2,078,192,028

Deposits from customers:
Current and demand deposits
Term deposits
Collateral against loans and advances

Less than LBP200million
From LBP200million to LBP1.5billion
Over LBP1.5billion

Total
Deposits

% to Total
Deposits

Total No. of
Customers

LBP’000

%

%

148,199,335
622,353,910
1,307,638,783
2,078,192,028

7.13
29.95
62.92
100.00

72.66
21.94
5.40
100.00

Margins and other accounts:
Margins for irrevocable import letters of credit
Margins on letters of guarantee
Other margins
Margins on trading transactions
Accrued interest payable:
Total

Term deposits as at December 31, 2017 include fiduciary deposits received from a non-resident related
party bank in the amount of LBP11.40billion (LBP19.15billion as at December 31, 2016).
The average balances of customers’ deposits at amortized cost, including related party deposits, and
related cost of funds over the last 3 years were as follows:

		
Deposits from customers are allocated by brackets of deposits as follows:

December 31, 2017

Less than LBP200million
From LBP200million to LBP1.5billion
Over LBP1.5billion

Total
Deposits

% to Total
Deposits

Total No. of
Customers

LBP’000

%

%

145,886,620
596,629,553
1,250,572,279
1,993,088,452

7.32
29.93
62.75
100.00

72.20
22.31
5.49
100.00

2017
2016
2015

LBP Base Accounts

F/Cy Base Accounts

Average
Balance of
Deposits

Average
Interest
Rate

Average
Balance of
Deposits

Average
Interest
Rate

Cost
of Funds

LBP’000

%

LBP’000

%

LBP’000

262,476,131
347,215,150
334,869,820

6.10
6.17
6.17

1,861,189,587
1,715,030,692
1,572,101,089

3.27
3.03
2.86

77,595,526
73,312,232
66,431,464

163

Banque BEMO Annual Report 2017
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2016

20. RELATED PARTIES’ ACCOUNTS AT AMORTIZED COST

Total
% to Total
				
		
Deposits
Deposits

December 31,
		

2017

2016
		

		

LBP’000

LBP’000

Deposits from related party customers:
Current and demand deposits

27,070,802

31,453,349

Term deposits

59,818,333

75,715,412

1,131,960

3,501,730

196,585

283,043

88,217,680

110,953,534

Margins and other accounts:
Margins on letters of guarantee
Accrued interest payable
Total

Deposits from related parties at amortized cost are allocated by brackets of deposits as follows:

LBP’000

%

Less than LBP500million

5,776,304

5.21

From LBP500million to LBP1.5billion

9,432,564

8.50

95,744,666

86.29

110,953,534

100.00

Over LBP1.5billion
		

21. OTHER TERM BORROWINGS
December 31,
		

2017

2016

		

LBP’000

LBP’000

Term borrowings (a)

57,346,400

-

Other term borrowings (b)

11,904,958

9,315,863

283,475

-

69,534,833

9,315,863

Accrued interest
		
December 31, 2017
Total
			

% to Total

		

Deposits

Deposits

(a) Term borrowings represent long term loans in Lebanese Pounds granted by the Central Bank of

		

LBP’000

%

Lebanon in the amount of LBP57billion, bearing an annual interest rate of 2% and mature within a

5,622,437

6.37

From LBP500million to LBP1.5billion

12,514,040

14.19

(b) Other term borrowings, represent borrowing from Central Bank of Lebanon in LBP being facilities

Over LBP1.5billion

70,081,203

79.44

in accordance with Central Bank of Lebanon Basic Decision No. 6116 of March 7, 1996 and its

		

88,217,680

100.00

amendments by which the Group benefited from credit facilities granted against loans the Group has

Less than LBP500million

period of 5 to 10 years.

granted, at its own risk, to its customers, pursuant to certain conditions, rules and mechanism.
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The movement of other term borrowings, excluding accrued interest, during 2017 and 2016 is summarized

(a) The determination of income tax of the Group is presented as follows:

as follows:
		

2017

2016

		

LBP’000

LBP’000

9,315,863

7,530,780

Additions

61,084,412

2,907,000

Settlements

(1,148,917)

(1,121,917)

Balance December 31

69,251,358

9,315,863

Balance January 1

		

2017

2016

		

LBP’000

LBP’000

32,193,730

28,535,502

258,549

4,420,961

(3,462,081)

(1,058,902)

(679,213)

(764,718)

Taxable income for the year

28,310,985

31,132,843

Enacted tax rate in Lebanon

15.36%

15%

4,349,032

4,669,926

62,232

120,266

4,411,264

4,790,192

(1,754,413)

(1,992,672)

(47,125)

(102,248)

2,609,726

2,695,272

7,370

7,370

2,617,096

2,702,642

-

6,187,185

2,617,096

8,889,827

Profit before income tax
Add: Non-deductible expenses/losses
Less:
Non-taxable revenues/gains
Income of Cyprus branch and subsidiaries

22. OTHER LIABILITIES

		
Add: Income tax provision - branches and subsidiaries
December 31,

Income tax expense

		

2017

2016

		

LBP’000

LBP’000

2,617,096

8,889,827

Deferred tax liability

501,838

501,838

Withheld tax on salaries

674,951

539,505

Withheld tax on interest

568,151

543,241

Due to the National Social Security Fund

432,254

334,801

Checks and incoming payment orders in course of settlement

178,512

1,808,437

2,553,571

2,410,778

Payable to a related party

87,280

724,854

Sundry accounts payable

2,641,041

2,074,296

Forward exchange contracts

1,288,250

-

10,952,921

10,952,921

2,085,738

2,079,969

24,581,603

30,860,467

Current tax liability (a)

Accrued expenses

Regulatory deferred liability (b)
Other
		

Less: Tax paid during the year in the form of withholding tax
Less: Cyprus income tax paid during the year
		
Brought forward balance from non-resident branch
		
Tax on surplus derived from non-conventional deal
arrangements with the regulator(Note 22(b))
Current tax liability

The outcome of the review of the Bank’s tax returns for fiscal years 2012 and 2013 is still pending.
The Bank’s tax returns for fiscal years 2014 to 2017 remain subject to review and assessment by the tax
authorities. Any additional liability depends on the outcome of these reviews.
The tax returns of the Group’s Lebanese subsidiaries since fiscal year 2013 remain subject to review and
assessment by the tax authorities. Any additional liability depends on the outcome of these reviews.
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(b) In accordance with the Central Bank of Lebanon Intermediary Circular number 446 dated December

The movement of provision for staff end-of-service indemnity is as follows:

30, 2016, banks should record the surplus derived from the sale of treasury bills in Lebanese Pound
against investment in medium and long term certificates of deposit in foreign currency issued by the
Central Bank of Lebanon under deferred liability, which is regulated in nature, and shall be appropriated,
among other things, after deducting the relevant tax liability, to collective provision for credit risks
associated with the loan book at a minimum of 2% of the weighted credit risks, and that in anticipation
of the implementation of IFRS 9 for Impairment, as and when quantified effective January 1, 2018, in
addition to appropriation to offset any impairment losses of goodwill and investments in associates.
	During the year 2016, as a result of several transactions derived from the special and non-conventional
deals arrangement with the Central Bank of Lebanon, the Group received a surplus of LBP41.25billion

		

2017

2016

		

LBP’000

LBP’000

Balance January 1

4,152,995

4,165,596

Additions (Note 38)

1,264,184

941,970

(21,834)

(950,444)

13,093

(4,127)

5,408,438

4,152,995

Settlements
Exchange difference
Balance December 31

recorded under “Regulatory deferred liability”, net of tax in the amount of LBP6.19billion (Note 11).
Furthermore, in accordance with the above mentioned Circular, the Group appropriated an amount
of LBP24.11billion to offset currency translation losses incurred from the investment in an associate
(Note 13). The remaining balance of LBP10.95billion is deferred in accordance with the above-

The movement of the provision for contingencies was as follows:

mentioned circular to be appropriated to the collective provisions for credit risks required by IFRS 9

		

2017

2016

starting January 1, 2018.

		

LBP’000

LBP’000

2,986,452

1,520,729

887,725

1,976,728

(1,151,073)

(452,250)

Settlements

(108,423)

(58,755)

Balance December 31

2,614,681

2,986,452

23. PROVISIONS

Balance January 1
Additions

Provisions consist of the following:

Write-back

December 31,
		

2017

2016

		

LBP’000

LBP’000

Provision for employees’ end-of-service indemnities

5,408,438

4,152,995

Provision for contingencies

2,614,681

2,986,452

404,146

357,200

8,427,265

7,496,647

Provision for loss on foreign currency position
		

24. SUBORDINATED BONDS
This caption consists of the following:

December 31,
		

2017

2016

		

LBP’000

LBP’000

90,450,000

37,687,500

1,380,511

-

91,830,511

37,687,500

Subordinated bonds
Accrued interest
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The exceptional general assembly of shareholders approved in its meeting held on September 5, 2017 the

The movement of treasury shares during 2017 and 2016 was as follows:

issuance of subordinated bonds in the amount of USD35million divided into 3,500 bonds of USD10,000

2017

nominal value each. These bonds were issued on December 7, 2017 and mature on January 4, 2024 and

# of Shares

are subject to an annual interest of 7% payable on June 30 and December 31 of each year.

2016
Amount

# of Shares

The movement of subordinated bonds, excluding accrued interest, during 2017 and 2016 is summarized

		LBP’000		

as follows:

Balance - January 1
Acquisition
Balance - December 31

664,285
115,186
779,471

2,931,915
247,474
3,179,389

568,428
95,857
664,285

Amount
LBP’000
2,696,018
235,897
2,931,915

		

2017

2016

		

LBP’000

LBP’000

Balance January 1,

37,687,500

37,687,500

Additions

52,762,500

-

On December 19, 2013, the Group issued Non-cumulative Perpetual Preferred Shares in the amount of

Balance December 31,

90,450,000

37,687,500

USD35million (LBP52billion) on the basis of 350,000 shares at USD100. The Group offered discounts to

26. PREFERRED SHARES

preferred shares subscribers for the aggregate amount of USD80,960 (LBP122million). These preferred
shares generate dividends at an annual rate of 7%.
The exceptional general assembly of shareholders approved in its meeting held on October 24, 2014 the
issuance of subordinated bonds in the amount of USD25million divided into 2,500 bonds of USD10,000

27. SHAREHOLDERS’ CASH CONTRIBUTION TO CAPITAL

nominal value each. These bonds were issued on December 15, 2014 and mature on January 4, 2021 and

This caption represents capital injection of USD19,306,789 made by shareholders, in the form of

are subject to an annual interest rate of 6% payable on December 31 and June 30 of each year.

shareholders’ cash contribution to capital, each to the extent of his/her shareholding in the Group’s equity.

Interest expense on subordinated bonds for the year ended December 31, 2017 amounting to LBP2.5billion
is recorded under “Interest expense” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss (LBP2.27billion for
the year ended December 31, 2016) (Note 33).
In accordance with banking laws and regulations, subordinated bonds are considered as Tier II capital
for the purposes of computation of Risk Based Capital Ratio, to be amortized over a period of 5 years till

Effective 2011, the General Assembly of shareholders approved to call-off interest on cash contribution
to capital.
This type of equity instrument consists of non-refundable capital injection which could be converted into
share capital and it has the advantage of being booked and maintained in foreign currencies which allows
for hedging against national currency fluctuation.

maturity.
25. SHARE CAPITAL
The Bank’s capital as at December 31, 2017 is composed of 62,000,000 issued shares of LBP1,004 each
(62,000,000 shares of LBP1,004 each as at December 31, 2016) authorized and fully paid and divided as
follows:
• Listed Shares: 51,400,000
• Unlisted Shares: 10,600,000
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28. RESERVES

30. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
December 31,

The consolidated profit for the year is allocated as follows between the Bank and its subsidiaries:

2017

2016

LBP’000

LBP’000

9,110,189

6,846,103

Reserve for general banking risks (b)

35,551,700

31,904,035

General reserve for performing loans

4,069,500

4,054,500

Reserve for assets acquired in satisfaction of loans (Note 14)

1,021,116

869,957

		

182,080

182,080

6,208,597

6,208,597

56,143,182

50,065,272

Profit of the Bank
Profit/(loss) of subsidiaries:
Bemo Securitization S.A.L.
Depository and Custody Company S.A.L.
Bemo Investment Firm Ltd.
Total

Legal reserve (a)

Reserve from disposal of assets acquired in satisfaction of loans (Note 14)
Free reserves

(a) In accordance with the requirements of the Lebanese Money and Credit Law, the Group transfers

Year Ended December 31, 2017
			
Non		
Group’s
Controlling
		
Share
Interests

Total

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

27,699,060

-

27,699,060

18,596
9,876
54,924
27,782,456

10
10

18,596
9,886
54,924
27,782,466

since its inception 10% of its net income to the legal reserve account. This reserve is not available for
distribution.
Year Ended December 31, 2016

(b) The reserve for general banking risks is constituted according to local banking regulations from income
on the basis of a minimum of 2 per mil and a maximum of 3 per mil of the total risk weighted assets,
off-balance sheet risk and global exchange position as defined for the computation of the solvency
ratio at year-end. The cumulative reserve should not be less than 1.25% at the end of the 10th year

			
Non		
Group’s
Controlling
		
Share
Interests

(2007) and 2% at the end of the 20th year. This reserve is constituted in Lebanese Pounds and in

		

foreign currencies to the extent of LBP3.05billion and LBP32.5billion, respectively, in proportion to the

Profit of the Bank
Profit/(loss) of subsidiaries:
Bemo Securitization S.A.L.
Depository and Custody Company S.A.L.
Bemo Investment Firm Ltd.
Total

composition of the Bank’s total risk weighted assets and off-balance sheet items. This reserve is not
available for distribution.
29. NON- CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Total

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

23,752,848

-

23,752,848

363,421
19,009
(292,490)
23,842,788

19
(97,497)
(97,478)

363,421
19,028
(389,987)
23,745,310

December 31,

Equity
Profit/(loss) for the year

2017

2016

LBP’000

LBP’000

351

198,619

10

(97,478)

361

101,141
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33. INTEREST EXPENSE

31. DIVIDENDS PAID
		

2017

2016

		

LBP’000

LBP’000

4,905,653

3,683,102

3,693,375

3,693,375

Borrowings with Central Bank

8,599,028

7,376,477

Deposits and borrowings from banks and financial institutions

LBP80 per common share paid by the Bank in 2017
(LBP60 per share in 2016)
USD7 per preferred share paid by the Bank in 2017
(USD7 per share in 2016)
		

Year Ended December 31,
		

2017

2016

LBP’000

LBP’000

508,419

165,554

1,056,806

2,751,603

684,397

743,501

75,134,615

71,110,425

Related parties’ accounts at amortized cost

2,460,911

2,201,807

Subordinated bonds (Note 24)

2,504,102

2,267,445

82,349,250

79,240,335

		
Interest expense on:

Deposits and borrowings from related party banks and financial institutions
Customers’ accounts at amortized cost

32. INTEREST INCOME
Year Ended December 31,
		

2017

2016

		

LBP’000

LBP’000

11,044,641

7,446,353

2,616,527

1,035,206

433,431

417,962

39,408,876

39,607,051

Loans to banks and financial institutions (Note 8)

41,848

1,091,513

Loans under reverse repurchase agreements (a)

256,504

271,948

70,147,871

66,653,265

50,071

47,606

311,503

184,147

124,311,272

116,755,051

Interest income from:
Term deposits with central banks
Deposits with banks and financial institutions
Deposits with related party banks and financial institutions
Financial assets at amortized cost

Loans and advances to customers
Loans and advances to related parties
Interest realized on impaired loans and advances to customers (Note 9)
		

		

34. FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME
Year Ended December 31,
		

2017

2016

		

LBP’000

LBP’000

Commission on documentary credits

658,548

756,945

Commission on letters of guarantee

1,469,820

1,225,747

-

9,568,516

Commission on other customers’ transactions

1,058,338

1,283,864

Service fees on customers’ transactions

6,296,360

6,990,452

462,573

350,411

9,945,639

20,175,935

Commission on customers’ securities transactions (a)

Other
(a) Loans under reverse repurchase agreement represent short-term loans granted to a resident financial

		

institution, which matured during the years 2017 and 2016 respectively.
Interest income on the Group’s trading portfolio is included under “net interest and other gains/(losses)
on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” (Note 36).

(a) 
During 2016, the Group’s customers entered into sales transaction of certificates of deposit in
Lebanese Pounds against purchase of Lebanese Government bonds in U.S. Dollars with the regulator
and as a result, the Group recorded commissions in the amount of LBP9.57billion,
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35. FEE AND COMMISSION EXPENSE

37. OTHER OPERATING INCOME/(LOSS), (NET)
Year Ended December 31,

		

2017

2016

		

LBP’000

LBP’000

Commission on transactions with banks

236,692

224,899

Other

126,895

85,058

		

363,587

309,957

36. 
NET INTEREST AND OTHER GAINS / (LOSSES) ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Year Ended December 31,
		

2017

2016

		

LBP’000

LBP’000

53,603

53,603

Share in profit of an associate (Note 13)

1,385,715

1,074,343

Revenues and commissions from securitization operations

4,443,807

3,319,930

Gain from derecognition of assets at authorized cost, (net)

3,515,282

1,934,797

24,255

262,049

9,422,662

6,644,722

Dividends on financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Others
		

Year Ended December 31,
		

2017

2016

		

LBP’000

LBP’000

Dividends received on equity securities

477,748

243,218

Interest received on debt securities

3,574,926

4,731,043

Unrealized gain/(loss)

1,551,297

(2,721,584)

Realized gain

2,733,030

2,279,066

70,865

75,256

8,407,866

4,606,999

Recovery of principal of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
		

38. STAFF COSTS

Year Ended December 31,
		

2017

2016

		

LBP’000

LBP’000

Salaries and related charges

20,875,831

19,640,565

Social Security contributions

2,328,524

2,037,992

Provision for employees’ end-of-service indemnities (net) (Note 23)

1,264,184

941,970

24,468,539

22,620,527
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The following table shows the income and share data used in the basic earnings per share calculation:

39. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Year Ended December 31,
		

2017

2016

		

2017

2016

		

LBP’000

LBP’000

		

LBP’000

LBP’000

Travel and entertainment

334,581

257,073

62,000,000

62,000,000

Advertisement and publicity

1,032,763

1,387,628

(706,082)

(621,628)

Professional fees

4,949,519

4,292,888

61,293,918

61,378,372

Maintenance and repairs

1,410,626

1,468,335

Electricity and fuel

191,181

354,564

Telephone expenses

486,815

499,021

Printing and stationary

386,298

325,626

		

2017

2016

1,894,231

2,098,555

257,322

266,995

		

LBP’000

LBP’000

1,574,288

1,574,544

Net profit attributable to equity holders of the Group

27,782,456

23,842,788

122,919

457,136

Less dividends to preferred shares

(3,693,375)

(3,693,375)

Fees and taxes

1,056,194

965,880

Net profit attributable to equity holders of the Group

24,089,081

20,149,413

Other

1,862,705

1,736,171

Basic earnings per share in LBP

393/1

328/28

15,559,442

15,684,416

Diluted earnings per share in LBP

393/1

328/28

Rent and building services
Insurance
Subscriptions
Gifts and donations

		

Number of common shares outstanding during the year
Weighted average number of treasury shares
Weighted average number of common shares adjusted for the effect of treasury shares

40. EARNINGS PER SHARE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISKS

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity

The guarantees and standby letters of credit and the documentary and commercial letters of credit

holders of the Group by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

represent financial instruments with contractual amounts representing credit risk. The guarantees and
standby letters of credit represent irrevocable assurances that the Group will make payments in the event
that a customer cannot meet its obligations to third parties and are not different from loans and advances
on the financial position. However, documentary and commercial letters of credit, which represent
written undertakings by the Group on behalf of a customer authorizing a third party to draw drafts on the
Group up to a stipulated amount under specific terms and conditions, are collateralized by the underlying
shipments documents of goods to which they relate and, therefore, have significantly less risks.
Forward exchange contracts outstanding as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 represent positions held
for customers’ accounts and at their risk. The Group entered into such instruments to serve the needs
of customers.
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Interest rates charged on balances outstanding are the same as applicable rates that would be charged

42. FIDUCIARY DEPOSITS

in an arm’s length transaction. Secured loans and advances are covered by real estate mortgages to the
Year Ended December 31,
		

2017

2016

		

LBP’000

LBP’000

1,591,167

11,213,442

Fiduciary deposits for wealth management

32,407,242

25,683,554

Fiduciary deposits from customers invested in loans granted to other customers

43,445,396

14,144,720

		

77,443,805

51,041,716

Fiduciary deposits from customers invested in other banks

extent of LBP995million as at December 31, 2017 (LBP678million as at December 31, 2016).
The remuneration of executive management amounted to LBP2.69billion during 2017 (LBP2.51billion
during 2016).
44. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the cash flows statement consist of the following:

December 31,
43. BALANCES / TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

		

2017

2016

In the ordinary course of its activities, the Group conducts transactions with related parties including

		

LBP’000

LBP’000

9,242,940

9,015,076

109,139,449

34,771,506

Term placements with Central Bank of Lebanon

98,547,385

161,762,500

Checks for collection and current accounts with banks and financial institutions

76,865,674

159,267,138

Term placements with banks and financial institutions

12,589,716

68,562,537

306,385,164

433,378,757

shareholders, directors, subsidiaries and associates. Balances with related parties excluding accrued
interest and balances eliminated on consolidation consist of the following:

Current accounts with central banks (excluding compulsory reserve)

December 31,
		

2017

2016

		

LBP’000

LBP’000

Direct facilities and credit balances:
Unsecured loans and advances
Deposits

1,000,669

602,802

78,226

1,440,138

17,323,639

42,076,774

Associated companies:

Deposits

5,583

603,405

70,697,456

68,876,760

Indirect facilities:
Letters of guarantee

Term placements with central banks and banks and financial institutions represent inter-bank placements

45. COLLATERAL GIVEN
The carrying values of financial assets given as collateral are as follows:
December 31, 2017
Pledged
Nature of Facility
Amount		

Direct facilities and credit balances:
Unsecured loans and advances

		

with an original term of 90 days or less.

Shareholders, directors and other key management personnel and close family members:
Secured loans and advances

Cash

791,905

2,497,669

Amount
of Facility

LBP’000		LBP’000
Deposits with banks and financial institutions
45,805,242
		
		
45,805,242

Forward contracts
Options and swaps
Acceptances less than one year

119,780,892
35,180,455
3,182,315
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December 31, 2016

December 31, 2016

Pledged
Nature of Facility
Amount		

Amount
of Facility

LBP’000		LBP’000
Deposits with banks and financial institutions
65,301,776
		
		
65,301,776

Forward contracts
Options and swaps
Acceptances less than one year

57,653,925
29,874,806
1,296,318

LBP’000
Fee and commission income
Commission expense
Administrative expenses
Staff costs
Depreciation and amortization

353,418
(4,314)
(463,889)
(274,682)
(521)
(389,988)

47. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
46. PARTLY - OWNED SUBSIDIARY

The Group manages its capital to comply with the capital adequacy requirements set by the Central Bank

Bemo Invest Firm Ltd. was a partly owned subsidiary of the Group up to December 31, 2016. During

of Lebanon, the Group’s lead regulator.

September 2017, the Group acquired the remaining 25% of Bemo Invest Firm Ltd. Financial information of

Central Bank of Lebanon requires each bank or banking group to hold a minimum level of regulatory

the subsidiary are provided below:

capital of LBP10billion for the head office and LBP500million for each local branch and LBP1.5billion for
2016
%

Portion of equity interests held by non-controlling interests

75

each branch abroad.
Pursuant to Central Bank Decision No 10848 dated December 7, 2011, adopted with respect to the
application of the Basel III regulation, all banks operating in Lebanon must gradually reach the following
capital ratios:

The summarized financial information of the subsidiary is provided below. This information is based on
amounts before inter-company eliminations:
Ratio

December 31, 2016
LBP’000
Total Assets
Total Liabilities
Total Equity
Loss

Common Equity Tier 1 ratio
Tier 1 ratio
Total Capital ratio

December 31,
2015

December 31,
2016

December 31,
2017

December 31,
2018

%

%

%

%

8.00
10.00
12.00

8.5
11
14

9
12
14.5

10
13
15

1,443,075
1,039,019
404,056
(389,988)
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The Group’s capital is split as follows:

The Group’s capital strategy is based on the following constraints:

Tier I capital: Comprises share capital after deduction of treasury shares, shareholders’ cash contribution

• Comply with regulatory ratios, on individual and consolidated basis, primarily in respect of the

to capital, non-cumulative perpetual preferred shares, reserves from appropriation of profits, retained

Capital Adequacy Ratio under Central Bank of Lebanon directives and Basle III.

earnings (exclusive of current year’s net profit) and non-controlling interests, intangible assets and

• Ensure a high Return on Equity for the common shareholders.

unfavorable change in fair value of investments at fair value through other comprehensive income are

• Dividends payout policy is consistent to provide shareholders with acceptable dividend yield

deducted from Tier I Capital.

The Group’s total equity funding consists of the following:

Tier II capital: Comprises qualifying subordinated liabilities and 50% of the cumulative favorable change
Balances

in fair value through other comprehensive income and other regulatory reserves.

December 31,

Investments in associates are deducted from Tier I and Tier II capital.

2017

2016

Amount

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

210,205,777

189,713,253

20,492,524

10.80

Preferred shares

52,641,854

52,641,854

-

-

Subordinated bonds

91,830,511

37,687,500

54,143,011

143.66

354,678,142

280,042,607

Furthermore, various limits are applied to the elements of capital base: Qualifying Tier II capital cannot
exceed Tier I capital and qualifying short term subordinated loan capital may not exceed 50% of Tier I
Equity allotted to common shares

capital.
The Group has complied with imposed capital requirements throughout the year.
The Group’s risk based capital ratio according to Central Bank of Lebanon directives and Basel III as of

Variation

Total equity

%

December 31, 2017 and 2016, is as follows:
December 31,
		
		
Risk-weighted assets
Credit risk
Market risk
Operational risk

2017

2016

LBP million

LBP million

1,862,443

1,735,782

1,712,042

1,544,134

39,257

88,601

111,144

103,047

48. SEGMENT INFORMATION
The Group’s operating segments are organized as follows: Lebanon and subsidiaries.
Measurement of segment assets, liabilities, income and expenses is based on the Group’s accounting
policies.
Segment income and expenses include transfers between segments and these transfers are conducted

Common equity Tier I (net)

196,923

180,385

on arm’s length terms and conditions. Shared costs are included in segments on the basis of the actual
recharges made, if any.

Tier I capital (including reserve for assets acquired in satisfaction of loans)

249,564

232,925

82,912

37,688

332,476

270,613

Capital adequacy ratio - Common Equity Tier I

10.57%

10.39%

Capital adequacy ratio - Tier I

13.40%

13.42%

Capital adequacy ratio - Tier I and Tier II

17.85%

15.59%

Tier II capital
Total capital
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The group has two reportable business segments which reflect the basis on which senior management
reviews operations:
December 31, 2017

December 31, 2016

		
		

Lebanon and
Middle East

Cyprus

Inter-Segment

		
		

Lebanon and
Middle East

Cyprus

Inter-Segment

		

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

		

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

Total Assets

2,610,683,672

83,652,028

(27,895,389)

Total Assets

2,604,048,920

58,745,723

(12,244,289)

Total Liabilities

2,335,548,868

68,043,451

-

Total Liabilities

2,367,034,842

43,018,731

(1,959,467)

275,134,804

15,608,577

(27,895,389)

237,014,078

15,726,992

(10,284,822)

27,248,888

533,578

-

23,093,321

651,989

-

Cash and central banks

549,165,457

394,662

-

Deposits with banks and financial institutions

294,335,787

16,125,597

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

85,164,618

88,450

-

Loans to banks and financial institutions

17,512,310

-

-

1,022,637,222

15,290,001

-

2,627,298

19,047

-

568,891,667

25,632,154

-

6,270,234

666,721

-

18,052,156

-

-

2,046,944

-

-

23,520,036

447,708

-

949,140

32,540

-

12,876,051

48,843

-

126,651,112

1,959,467

(1,959,467)

9,315,863

-

-

2,038,099,268

40,092,760

-

110,944,857

8,677

-

6,270,234

666,721

-

30,665,361

195,106

-

7,400,647

96,000

-

37,687,500

-

-

Total Equity
Profit for the year

Cash and central banks

631,791,864

431,361

-

Deposits with banks and financial institutions

121,010,656

45,648,470

(27,895,389)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

24,616,120

104,003

-

Loans to banks and financial institutions

12,838,776

-

-

1,132,077,211

16,461,257

-

1,084,478

-

-

606,994,237

20,164,692

-

Customers› liability under acceptances

12,440,191

339,112

-

Investment in associate

20,994,413

-

-

2,073,984

-

-

32,535,814

421,188

-

1,166,558

18,761

-

11,059,370

63,184

-

Loans and advances to related parties
Investment securities

Assets acquired in satisfaction of loans
Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Other

115,132,672

-

-

69,534,833

-

-

1,925,825,507

67,262,945

-

Related parties› accounts at amortized cost

88,179,701

37,979

-

Acceptance liability

12,440,191

339,112

-

Other liabilities

24,294,965

286,638

-

8,310,488

116,777

-

91,830,511

-

-

Other borrowings
Customers› accounts at amortized cost

Provisions
Subordinated bonds

Loans and advances to customers
Loans and advances to related parties
Investment securities
Customers’ liability under acceptances
Investment in associate
Assets acquired in satisfaction of loans
Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Other

(12,244,289)

LIABILITIES

LIABILITIES
Deposits and borrowings from banks

Profit for the year ASSETS

ASSETS

Loans and advances to customers

Total Equity

Deposits and borrowings from banks
Other borrowings
Customers› accounts at amortized cost
Related parties› accounts at amortized cost
Acceptance liability
Other liabilities
Provisions
Subordinated bonds
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December 31, 2017

December 31, 2016

Lebanon and
Middle East

Cyprus

Inter-Segment

		
		

Lebanon and
Middle East

Cyprus

Inter-Segment

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

		

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

Interest income

122,101,544

2,495,088

(285,360)

Interest income

114,242,753

2,882,594

(370,296)

Interest expense

(81,494,546)

(1,140,064)

285,360

Interest expense

(78,541,791)

(1,068,840)

370,296

(113,494)

-

-

-

-

-

40,493,504

1,355,024

-

Net interest income

35,700,962

1,813,754

-

Fee and commission income

9,464,220

481,419

-

Fee and commission income

19,754,188

421,747

-

Fee and commission expense

(363,119)

(468)

-

(309,340)

(617)

-

Net fee and commission income

9,101,101

480,951

-

19,444,848

421,130

-

4,548,304

58,695

-

Gain on exchange

2,856,741

(55)

-

Other operating income, (net)

6,647,503

(2,781)

-

69,198,358

2,290,743

-

(1,631,622)

26,062

-

67,566,736

2,316,805

-

Staff costs

(22,264,895)

(355,632)

-

Administrative expenses

(14,550,489)

(1,133,927)

-

Depreciation and amortization

(1,460,449)

(58,169)

-

Other income/(expense)

(1,524,478)

-

-

(39,800,311)

(1,547,728)

-

Profit before income tax

27,766,425

769,077

-

Income tax expense

(4,673,104)

(117,088)

-

Profit for the year

23,093,321

651,989

-

		
		
		

Tax on interest
Net interest income

8,153,952

253,914

-

Gain on exchange

4,405,957

11

-

Other operating income, (net)

9,621,105

(198,443)

-

71,775,619

1,891,457

-

Net financial revenues

(111,039)

94,848

-

71,664,580

1,986,305

-

Staff costs

(24,076,269)

(392,270)

-

Administrative expenses

(14,614,903)

(944,539)

-

(1,817,042)

(55,480)

-

443,348

-

-

(40,064,866)

(1,392,289)

-

Profit before income tax

31,599,714

594,016

-

Income tax expense

(4,350,826)

(60,438)

-

Profit for the year

27,248,888

533,578

-

Net financial revenues after net impairment charge

Depreciation and amortization
Other income/(expense)
		

Net fee and commission income

fair value through profit and loss

Net financial revenues
Allowance for impairment of loans and advances

Allowance for impairment of loans and advances
and other receivables, (net)

Fee and commission expense

Net interest and other gain on trading assets at

Net interest and other gain on trading assets at
fair value through profit and loss

Tax on interest

and other receivables, (net)
Net financial revenues after net impairment charge
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49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
• Credit risk
• Liquidity risk
• Market risk
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s
risk management framework. The Board has established a risk management department and various
committees to develop and monitor the Group’s risk management policies and their implementation.
The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the
Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Regular
review of risk management policies and systems to reflect changes in market conditions, products and
services offered is the responsibility of the various committees and the Board of Directors. The Group,
through its management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined control environment,
in which employees understand their roles and obligations.
A. CREDIT RISK
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a counterparty to a financial instrument fails to
discharge an obligation. Financial assets that are mainly exposed to credit risk are deposits with banks,
loans and advances and investment securities. Credit risk also arises from off-balance sheet financial
instruments such as letters of credit and letters of guarantee.

2. Measurement of credit risk
(a) Loans and advances
The Group assesses the probability of default of individual counterparties using internal rating tools. The
Group’s rating scale reflects the range of default probabilities defined for each rating class as explained
below:
• Special Mention /Vulnerable: Loans and advances rated Watch List are loans that are not impaired but
for which the Group determines that they require special monitoring.
• Past due but not impaired: Loans past due but not impaired are loans where contractual interest or
principal are past due but the Group’s management believes that impairment is not appropriate on the
basis of the level of collateral available and the stage of collection of amounts owed to the Group.
• Substandard loans: Substandard loans are loans that are inadequately protected by current sound worth
and paying capacity of the obligor or by any collateral pledged in favor of the group. Exposures where
an indication of the possibility that the Group will sustain a loss if certain irregularities and deficiencies
are not addressed exists are classified under this category.
• Doubtful loans: Doubtful loans have, in addition to the weaknesses existing in substandard loans,
characteristics indicating that current existing facts and figures make the collection in full highly
improbable. The probability of loss is high but certain reasonable and specific pending factors which
if addressed could strengthen the probability of collection, result in the deferral of the exposure as an
estimated loss until a more exact status is determined.
• Loss: Loans classified as loss are considered as uncollectible and of such minimal value that their
classification as assets is not warranted. This does not mean that the loan is absolutely unrecoverable

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business

or has no salvage value. However, the amount of loss is difficult to measure and the Group does not

activities, or activities in the same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause

wish to defer the writing of the loan even partial recovery might occur in the future. Loans are charged

their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or

off in the period in which they are deemed uncollectible and therefore classified as loss.

other conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Group’s performance
affecting a particular industry or geographical location.
1. Management of credit risk

The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in its
loan portfolio. The main component of its allowance are specific loss component that relate to individually
significant exposures, and a minor part of a collective loan loss allowance established for retail and Small

The Group manages credit risk by developing policies and procedures that are regularly reviewed to

and Medium Enterprises (SME’s) where there is objective evidence that unidentified losses exist at

ensure continuous effective credit risk management in light of changes in business strategy.

the reporting date. This provision is estimated based on various factors including the current economic

Credit risk management policies and practices define lending limits, credit approval authorization
matrices, and risk identification and monitoring systems. The Group applies an internal rating system that

conditions, the experience the Group has had in dealing with a borrower or group of borrowers and
available historical default information.

takes into account criteria related to the borrower (e.g. nature of the activity, financial performance and
structure, credit history, cash flows, projected financials and management) and to the credit quality (e.g.
purpose, amount, tenor, collateral presented as a second way out). The Group also sets lending limits to
a single obligor or a related group of obligors.
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(a.2) Loans and advances to customers (excluding collective provision and accrued interest):

3. Risk mitigation policies
Collateral:

December 31, 2017

The Group mainly employs collateral to mitigate credit risk. The principal collateral types for loans and
advances are:

Bracket

No. of Counter Parties

• Pledged deposits
Less than LBP500million
From LBP500million to LBP5billion
Over LBP5billion

• Mortgages over real estate properties (land, commercial and residential properties)
• Bank guarantees
• Financial instruments (equities and debt securities)

937
282
56
1,275

Total Amount

% to Total

LBP’000

%

68,435,073
471,522,998
609,051,396
1,149,009,467

5.96
41.04
53.00
100.00

• Business other assets (such as inventories and accounts receivable)
December 31, 2016

4. Financial assets with credit risk exposure and related concentrations
Bracket

(a) Exposure to credit risk and concentration by counterparty:
The tables below reflect the Group’s exposure to credit risk by counterparty segregated between the
categories of financial assets:
(a.1) Deposits with banks and financial institutions (excluding accrued interest):

No. of Counter Parties

Total Amount

% to Total

		LBP’000

%

Less than LBP500million
From LBP500million to LBP5billion
Over LBP5billion

958
272
57
1,287

67,201,149
456,868,373
514,724,101
1,038,793,623

6.47
43.98
49.55
100.00

December 31, 2017
Bracket

Total
Amount

% to Total
Deposits

LBP’000

%

Less than LBP5billion

33,850,920

24.40

From LBP5billion to LBP15billion

25,281,490

18.22

Over LBP15billion

79,603,214

57.38

138,735,624

100.00

(a.3) Loans and advances to related parties:
December 31, 2017
Bracket

Less than LBP500million

Total
Amount

% to Total
Deposits

LBP’000

%

1,084,478
1,084,478

100.00
100.00

December 31, 2016
Bracket

Total
% to Total
Amount
Deposits
		
Bracket
LBP’000
%
Less than LBP5billion

34,117,340

11.44

From LBP5billion to LBP15billion

90,262,477

30.28

173,751,634

58.28

298,131,451

100.00

Over LBP15billion

Less than LBP500million

December 31, 2016
Total
Amount

% to Total
Deposits

LBP’000

%

2,646,345
2,646,345

100.00
100.00
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Below are the details of the Group’s exposure to credit risk with respect to loans and advances to customers:

December 31, 2017

December 31, 2017
Fair Value of Collateral Held

		
		

Gross
Loans Net of

Allowance		

		

Unrealized

for

Net

Pledged

		

Interest

Impairment

Exposure

Funds

Property

Equities

Total

		

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

1,122,160,592

-

1,122,160,592

139,376,336

199,910,853

26,108,996

365,396,185

Between 30-60 days

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Between 60-90 days

271,415

-

271,415

-

-

-

-		

Between 90-180 days

700,988

-

700,988

-

-

-

-

Beyond 180 days

363,345

-

363,345

-

-

-

-

Substandard debts

19,712,056

-

19,712,056

-

28,363,613

103,050

28,466,663

Doubtful and bad debts

14,204,547

(6,744,593)

7,459,954

-

8,050,050

-

8,050,050

-

(2,129,882)

(2,129,882)

-

-

-

-

1,157,412,943

(8,874,475)

1,148,538,468

139,376,336

236,324,516

26,212,046

401,912,898

Performing Accounts
Past due but not impaired:

Impaired:

Collective provision for loan
impairment
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December 31, 2016

December 31, 2016
Fair Value of Collateral Held

		
		

Gross
Loans Net of

Allowance		

		

Unrealized

for

Net

Pledged

		

Interest

Impairment

Exposure

Funds

Property

Equities

Total

		

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

1,012,555,113

-

1,012,555,113

164,506,928

156,766,732

28,754,822

350,028,482

Between 30-60 days

1,215,799

-

1,215,799

-

-

-

-

Between 60-90 days

407,854

-

407,854

-

-

-

-

2,013,946

-

2,013,946

-

-

-

-

863,532

-

863,532

-

-

-

-

Substandard debts

15,522,046

-

15,522,046

-

26,403,862

138,946

26,542,808

Doubtful and bad debts

14,107,735

(6,628,920)

7,478,815

-

8,050,050

-

8,050,050

-

(2,129,882)

(2,129,882)

-

-

-

-

1,046,686,025

(8,758,802)

1,037,927,223

164,506,928

191,220,644

28,893,768

384,621,340

Performing Accounts
Past due but not impaired

Between 90-180 days
Beyond 180 days
Impaired:

Collective provision for loan
impairment
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(b) Concentration of financial assets by industry or sector (excluding the collective provision for loan
impairment):
December 31, 2017

December 31, 2017

			

Financial

Consumer

Real Estate

		

Sovereign

Services

Development

Manufacturing

Goods Trading

Trading

Services

Private Individuals

Other

Total

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

632,223,225

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

632,223,225

-

138,763,737

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

138,763,737

13,358,579

9,758,479

-

273,004

23,447

1,241,937

64,677

-

-

24,720,123

Loans to banks and financial institutions

-

12,838,776

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

12,838,776

Loans and advances to customers

-

20,350,512

222,880,111

156,673,451

497,260,637

-

85,787,624

167,716,015

-

1,150,668,350

Loans and advances to related parties

-

-

-

1,639

-

-

4,189

1,078,650

-

1,084,478

605,484,631

-

-

-

13,905,013

6,163,026

-

-

-

625,552,670

-

1,504,838

-

-

-

101,421

-

-

-

1,606,259

Customers› Liability under acceptances

-

-

749,766

3,777,572

7,977,795

-

-

274,170

-

12,779,303

Other assets

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

9,692,648

9,692,648

1,251,066,435

183,216,342

223,629,877

160,725,666

519,166,892

7,506,384

85,856,490

169,068,835

9,692,648

2,609,929,569

-

-

182,196

6,823,554

7,723,254

-

-

-

-

14,729,004

Guarantees and standby letters of credit

-

20,776,679

33,212,142

21,037,705

14,860,264

-

35,584,981

951,394

-

126,423,165

Forward Contracts

-

250,774,571

10,336,031

7,480,670

13,699,076

-

-

2,384,704

-

284,675,052

		

Real Estate		

Balance sheet Exposure:
Cash and deposits
with central banks
Deposits with banks
and financial institutions
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortized cost
Financial assets
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

		
Off-Balance sheet Risks:
Documentary and commercial
letters of credit
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December 31, 2016

December 31, 2016

			

Financial

Consumer

Real Estate

		

Sovereign

Services

Development

Manufacturing

Goods Trading

Trading

Services

Private Individuals

Other

Total

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

549,560,119

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

549,560,119

-

298,217,095

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

298,217,095

75,511,132

8,117,181

-

39,673

20,424

1,527,821

36,837

-

-

85,253,068

financial institutions

-

17,512,310

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

17,512,310

Loans and advances to customers

-

6,672,532

195,780,277

147,196,726

470,397,284

-

59,888,364

158,857,983

1,263,939

1,040,057,105

Loans and advances to related parties

-

-

-

560,732

-

-

11,790

2,073,823

-

2,646,345

573,878,419

-

-

-

15,430,530

4,576,406

-

-

-

593,885,355

		

Real Estate		

Balance Sheet Exposure
Cash and deposits with central banks
Deposits with banks
and financial institutions
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Loans to banks and

Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

-

540,120

-

-

-

98,346

-

-

-

638,466

Customers’ liability under acceptances

-

-

1,277,276

1,005,278

4,654,401

-

-

-

-

6,936,955

Other assets

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

10,934,179

10,934,179

1,198,949,670

331,059,238

197,057,553

148,802,409

490,502,639

6,202,573

59,936,991

160,931,806

12,198,118

2,605,640,997

letters of credit

-

39,403

1,046,188

2,114,454

27,817,946

-

-

277,833

-

31,295,824

Guarantees and standby letters of credit

-

20,668,484

20,823,165

11,632,540

15,826,557

-

20,146,537

1,367,040

-

90,464,323

Forward Contracts

-

228,975,174

10,353,753

157,488

3,948,130

-

-

2,790,276

-

246,224,821

		
Off-Balance sheet Risks
Documentary and commercial
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(c) Concentration of assets and liabilities by geographical area:
December 31, 2017

December 31, 2017
		

Middle East		

North

Lebanon

and Africa

Europe

America

Other

Total

ASSETS
Cash and deposits with central banks
Deposits with banks and financial institutions
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Loans to banks and financial institutions
Loans and advances to customers
Loans and advances to related parties
Financial assets at amortized cost
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Customers’ liability under acceptances
Investments in associates
Assets acquired in satisfaction of loans
Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Other assets

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

631,791,712
37,033,291
24,227,235
12,838,776
1,067,675,655
1,084,478
625,552,669
615,120
12,322,192
2,073,984
32,535,814
1,166,559
10,790,572

4,080,670
33,229,939
457,111
20,994,413
-

431,361
59,063,677
289,826
47,624,176
26,421
421,188
18,760
63,185

37,079,232
202,906
8,537
-

152
1,506,867
156
161
964,719
268,797

632,223,225
138,763,737
24,720,123
12,838,776
1,148,538,468
1,084,478
625,552,669
1,606,260
12,779,303
20,994,413
2,073,984
32,957,002
1,185,319
11,122,554

Total Assets

2,459,708,057

58,762,133

107,938,594

37,290,675

2,740,852

2,666,440,311

LIABILITIES
Deposits and borrowings from banks and financial institutions
Customers’ accounts at amortized cost
Related parties’ accounts at amortized cost
Acceptance liability
Other term borrowings
Other liabilities
Provisions
Subordinated bonds

41,092,690
1,361,789,158
45,334,198
773,744
69,534,833
24,079,545
8,044,044
91,830,511

98,071,960
472,565,152
40,284,373
704,612
-

(24,031,978)
77,586,095
2,599,109
8,600,686
286,638
116,777
-

65,965,520
474,561
-

15,182,527
2,225,700
215,420
266,444
-

115,132,672
1,993,088,452
88,217,680
12,779,303
69,534,833
24,581,603
8,427,265
91,830,511

Total liabilities

1,642,478,723

611,626,097

65,157,327

66,440,081

17,890,091

2,403,592,319

11,667,431
83,243,615

3,061,573
14,230,625

28,947,794

1,131

-

14,729,004
126,423,165

105,759,204

38,119,049

140,796,799

-

-

284,675,052

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK
Documentary and commercial letters of credit
Guarantees and standby letters of credit
Forward exchange contracts
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December 31, 2016

December 31, 2016

			
		
Lebanon
		
ASSETS
Cash and deposits with central banks
Deposits with banks and financial
institutions
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Loans to banks and financial institutions
Loans and advances to customers
Loans and advances to related parties
Financial assets at amortized cost
Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income
Customers’ liability under acceptances
Investments in associates
Assets acquired in satisfaction of loans
Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Other assets
Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Deposits and borrowings from banks
and financial institutions
Customers’ accounts at amortized cost
Related parties’ accounts at amortized
cost
Acceptance liability
Other term borrowings
Other liabilities
Provisions
Subordinated bonds
Total liabilities
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK
Documentary and commercial letters of credit
Guarantees and standby letters of Credit
Forward exchange contracts

Middle East
and Africa

North		
America
Europe

Other

Total

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

549,164,133

-

-

394,661

1,325

549,560,119

128,294,416

8,144,990

39,524,014

109,489,907

12,763,768

298,217,095

85,071,504
17,512,310
963,385,390
2,646,345
593,885,355

33,020,867
-

181,564
5,357
-

41,282,231
-

233,378
-

85,253,068
17,512,310
1,037,927,223
2,646,345
593,885,355

615,120
5,803,005
2,046,944
23,520,036
949,140
12,549,332

1,133,950
18,052,156
-

-

23,346
447,708
32,540
48,842

326,720

638,466
6,936,955
18,052,156
2,046,944
23,967,744
981,680
12,924,894

2,385,443,030

60,351,963

39,710,935

151,719,235

13,325,191

2,650,550,354

26,030,655
1,570,955,316

100,025,446
374,348,984

30,674,598

595,011
70,019,272

32,193,858

126,651,112
2,078,192,028

78,892,982
1,169,233
9,315,863
29,863,008
7,163,979
37,687,500

32,056,213
142,896
-

164,318
-

4,339
2,823,505
195,108
96,000
-

2,637,003
802,351
236,668
-

110,953,534
6,936,955
9,315,863
30,860,467
7,496,647
37,687,500

1,761,078,536

506,573,539

30,838,916

73,733,235

35,869,880

2,408,094,106

30,200,261
71,879,791
131,333,987

897,171
4,617,995
56,521,450

58,340
12,214,209
-

140,052
1,752,328
58,369,384

-

31,295,824
90,464,323
246,224,821

205

Banque BEMO Annual Report 2017
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B. LIQUIDITY RISK
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will be unable to meet its net funding requirements. Liquidity risk
can be caused by market disruptions or credit downgrades, which may cause certain sources of funding
to dry up immediately.
1. Management of liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the Group’s ability to ensure the availability of funding to meet commitments, both onbalance and off-balance sheet commitments, at a reasonable cost on time. The management of liquidity
should not lead to threats to the Group’s solvency.
Liquidity risk arises when in case of crisis, refinancing may only be raised at higher market rates (funding
risk), or assets may only be liquidated at a discount to market rates (market liquidity risk). Liquidity risk is
also caused by mismatches in the maturities of assets and liabilities (uses and sources of funds).
Residual contractual maturities of financial assets and liabilities:
The tables below show the Group’s assets and liabilities in Lebanese Pounds & Foreign Currencies base
accounts segregated by maturity:
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December 31, 2017
		

December 31, 2017

Accounts

		

with no

Up to 3

3 Months

1 to 3

3 to 5

5 to 10

Over 10

		

Maturity

Months

to 1 Year

Years

Years

Years

Years

Total

		
ASSETS
Cash and deposits with central banks
Deposits with banks and financial institutions
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Loans to banks and financial institutions
Loans and advances to customers
Loans and advances to related parties
Financial assets at amortized cost
Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Customers’ liability under acceptances
Investments in associates
Assets acquired in satisfaction of loans
Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Other assets
Total Assets

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

145,317,085
80,933,281
10,299,925
659,040,877
1,074,823
9,660,950

98,547,385
51,107,880
75,375
8,628,102
434,872,924
9,045
10,864,375

11,898,405
6,722,576
82,110
4,210,674
53,494,636
610
27,592,205

145,419,525
1,097,258
97,064,267

69,423,450
5,616,357
32,773
122,030,750

137,617,375
2,417,313
304,244,270

24,000,000
6,229,043
54,095,852

632,223,225
138,763,737
24,720,123
12,838,776
1,148,538,468
1,084,478
625,552,669

1,606,260
20,994,413
2,073,984
32,957,002
1,185,319
11,122,554
976,266,473

11,291,099
615,396,185

1,488,204
105,489,420

243,581,050

197,103,330

444,278,958

84,324,895

1,606,260
12,779,303
20,994,413
2,073,984
32,957,002
1,185,319
11,122,554
2,666,440,311

LIABILITIES
Deposits and borrowings from banks
and financial institutions
Customers’ accounts at amortized cost
Related parties’ accounts at amortized cost
Acceptance liability
Other term borrowings
Other liabilities
Provisions
Subordinated Bonds
Total Liabilities

65,774,620
356,067,160
29,257,279
385,673
24,581,603
8,427,265
1,380,511
485,874,111

32,120,276
1,253,001,437
39,787,867
11,291,099
520,951
1,336,721,630

17,237,776
357,315,358
19,172,534
1,488,204
1,096,092
396,309,964

25,950,747
3,090,220
29,040,967

4,729,030
37,687,500
42,416,530

753,750
59,309,933
52,762,500
112,826,183

402,934
402,934

115,132,672
1,993,088,452
88,217,680
12,779,303
69,534,833
24,581,603
8,427,265
91,830,511
2,403,592,319

Maturity Gap

490,392,362

(721,325,445)

(290,820,544)

214,540,083

154,686,800

331,452,775

83,921,961

262,847,992
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December 31, 2016
		

December 31, 2016

Accounts

		

with no

Up to 3

3 Months

1 to 3

3 to 5

5 to 10

Over 10

		

Maturity

Months

to 1 Year

Years

Years

Years

Years

Total

		
ASSETS
Cash and deposits with central banks
Deposits with banks and financial institutions
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Loans to banks and financial institutions
Loans and advances to customers
Loans and advances to related parties
Financial assets at amortized cost
Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Customers’ liability under acceptances
Investments in associates
Assets acquired in satisfaction of loans
Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Other assets
Total Assets

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

98,129,853
159,338,076
8,154,535
688,079,640
2,013,087
12,067,203

161,762,500
102,606,933
41,429
16,066,256
328,156,169
569,777
4,217,383

32,145,846
35,713,384
753,750
1,446,054
20,704,435
53,825
38,152,122

100,073,100
558,702
6,499,749
882,169
9,656
66,515,859

103,178,820
11,734,303
104,810
85,036,650

54,270,000
41,693,840
357,201,524

16,375,462
30,694,614

549,560,119
298,217,095
85,253,068
17,512,310
1,037,927,223
2,646,345
593,885,355

638,466
18,052,156
2,046,944
23,967,744
981,680
12,924,894
1,026,394,278

6,149,582
619,570,029

770,765
129,740,181

16,608
174,555,843

200,054,583

453,165,364

47,070,076

638,466
6,936,955
18,052,156
2,046,944
23,967,744
981,680
12,924,894
2,650,550,354

LIABILITIES
Deposits and borrowings from banks
and financial institutions
Customers’ accounts at amortized cost
Related parties’ accounts at amortized cost
Acceptance liability
Other term borrowings
Other liabilities
Provisions
Subordinated Bonds
Total Liabilities

77,986,926
398,020,648
35,238,122
88,596
30,860,467
7,496,647
549,691,406

46,634,186
1,259,729,484
42,123,789
6,149,582
395,949
1,355,032,990

2,030,000
359,411,209
33,591,623
770,765
864,477
396,668,074

60,019,154
16,608
2,315,701
62,351,463

1,011,533
2,204,529
37,687,500
40,903,562

2,850,214
2,850,214

596,397
596,397

126,651,112
2,078,192,028
110,953,534
6,936,955
9,315,863
30,860,467
7,496,647
37,687,500
2,408,094,106

Maturity Gap

476,702,872

(735,462,961)

(266,927,893)

112,204,380

159,151,021

450,315,150

46,473,679

242,456,248
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Below is the carrying value of assets and liabilities segregated by major currencies to reflect the Group’s
exposure to foreign currency exchange risk at year end:
December 31, 2017

Concentration of Liabilities by counterparty:
Information regarding the concentration of liabilities by counterparty is disclosed under the respective
notes to the financial statements.
C. MARKET RISKS
The market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will be affected
because of changes in market prices such as interest rate, equity prices, foreign exchange and credit
spreads.
1. Management of market risks:
Market risks include interest rate risk and exchange risk.
The Group has established an Assets and Liabilities Management Committee (ALCO) to manage
market risks. ALCO’s primary objective is to maximize interest income spread and trading income while
maintaining market risks at an appropriate level through regular management and measurement of
these risks.
The Group has developed policies and procedures to manage market risks and ensure compliance with
regulatory requirements and limits in addition to internal risk strategies and limits.
2. Foreign exchange risk:
Foreign exchange risk is the risk that changes in foreign currency rates will affect the Group’s income or
the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of foreign currency risk management is
to manage and control foreign currency risk exposure within acceptable parameters while optimizing the
return on risk.
Foreign exchange exposure arises from normal banking activities, primarily from the receipt of deposits
and the placement of funds. Future open positions in any currency are managed by means of forward
foreign exchange contracts. It is the policy of the Group that it will, at all times, adhere to the limits laid
down by the Central Bank as referred to below. It is not the Group’s intention to take open positions on its
own account (proprietary trading) but rather to maintain square or near square positions in all currencies.
The treasury department is responsible for monitoring the compliance with the regulatory ratios set by
the regulatory authorities. ALCO is supported by the finance department by reports of any breach of
these ratios.

						
Other
			
USD
EUR
GBP
Currencies
		
LBP
C/V in LBP
C/V in LBP
C/V in LBP
C/V in LBP

Total

								
		
LBP’000
LBP’000
LBP’000
LBP’000
LBP’000
LBP’000
ASSETS
Cash and deposits with central banks
86,426,958
434,096,740
111,037,515
634,820
27,192
632,223,225
Deposits with banks and
financial institutions
3,627,100
69,017,706
52,885,517
8,664,081
4,569,333
138,763,737
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
229,052
24,108,349
135,705
247,017
24,720,123
Loans to banks and financial institutions
12,838,776
12,838,776
Loans and advances to customers
48,739,718
878,872,631
179,217,170
6,701,469
35,007,481 1,148,538,469
Loans and advances to related parties
2,069
1,071,559
10,849
1,084,477
Financial assets at amortized cost
263,882,381
361,670,288
625,552,669
Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income
615,120
991,140
1,606,260
Customers’ liability under acceptances
6,045,468
6,297,264
436,571
12,779,303
Investment in associate
5,310,593
15,683,820
20,994,413
Assets acquired in satisfaction of loans
27,040
2,046,944
2,073,984
Property and equipment
32,373,224
583,778
32,957,002
Intangible assets
1,164,852
20,467
1,185,319
Other assets
3,148,926
6,870,412
1,101,629
1,587
11,122,554
Total Assets
445,547,033
1,812,926,938
351,665,940
16,258,236
40,042,164 2,666,440,311
LIABILITIES
Deposits and borrowings from banks
and financial institutions
7,366,838
62,797,923
34,298,857
4,866,871
5,802,183
115,132,672
Customers’ accounts at amortized cost
214,754,330
1,564,102,065
186,202,742
22,276,060
5,753,255 1,993,088,452
Related parties’ accounts
at amortized cost
1,864,047
74,207,942
9,896,599
139,286
2,109,806
88,217,680
Acceptance liability
6,045,468
6,297,264
436,571
12,779,303
Other term borrowings
69,534,833
69,534,833
Other liabilities
19,463,773
133,633,888
(113,287,946)
11,101,170
(27,617,532)
23,293,353
Provisions
7,735,005
575,483
116,777
8,427,265
Subordinated bonds
91,830,511
91,830,511
Total Liabilities
320,718,826
1,933,193,280
123,524,293
38,383,387
(13,515,717) 2,402,304,069
Currencies to be delivered
Currencies to be received
		
Net on-balance sheet financial position

-

194,466,486
(65,010,900)
129,455,586

58,723,054
(172,912,417)
(114,189,363)

20,380,981
(9,287,425)
11,093,556

11,104,531
(38,752,560)
(27,648,029)

284,675,052
(285,963,302)
(1,288,250)

124,828,207

9,189,244

113,952,284

(11,031,595)

25,909,852

262,847,992
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December 31, 2016

3. INTEREST RATE RISK

						
Other
			
USD
EUR
GBP
Currencies
		
LBP
C/V in LBP
C/V in LBP
C/V in LBP
C/V in LBP

Interest rate risk arises when there is a mismatch between positions, which are subject to interest rate
Total

								
		
LBP’000
LBP’000
LBP’000
LBP’000
LBP’000
LBP’000
ASSETS
Cash and deposits with central banks
175,643,974
282,239,383
88,774,593
2,888,830
13,339
549,560,119
Deposits with banks and
financial institutions
6,637,863
157,987,863
98,469,012
23,566,997
11,555,360
298,217,095
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
23,009,913
62,243,155
85,253,068
Loans to banks and financial institutions
17,512,310
17,512,310
Loans and advances to customers
60,782,819
844,379,245
111,527,193
5,893,249
15,344,717 1,037,927,223
Loans and advances to related parties
14,907
2,576,868
54,570
2,646,345
Financial assets at amortized cost
209,038,164
384,847,191
593,885,355
Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income
615,120
23,346
638,466
Customers’ liability under acceptances
3,577,187
2,892,540
467,228
6,936,955
Investment in associate
18,052,156
18,052,156
Assets acquired in satisfaction of loans
2,046,944
2,046,944
Property and equipment
23,520,035
447,709
23,967,744
Intangible assets
943,868
37,812
981,680
Other assets
7,095,199
(40,512,208)
53,016,089
(6,725,725)
(4,374,158)
8,499,197
Total Assets
507,301,862
1,735,435,615
354,757,343
25,623,351
23,006,486 2,646,124,657
LIABILITIES
Deposits and borrowings from banks
and financial institutions
23,424,615
Customers’ accounts at amortized cost
328,974,592
Related parties’ accounts at amortized cost 4,621,771
Acceptance liability
Other term borrowings
9,315,863
Other liabilities
3,408,804
Provisions
6,402,691
Subordinated bonds
Total Liabilities
376,148,336
Currencies to be delivered
Currencies to be received
		
Net on-balance sheet financial position

59,860,207
1,489,145,482
94,253,772
3,577,186
8,061,042
997,956
37,687,500
1,693,583,145

27,366,105
209,801,233
8,585,076
2,892,540
29,912,115
96,000
278,653,069

4,428,923
31,342,129
3,237,844
(6,662,790)
32,346,106

11,571,262
18,928,592
255,071
467,229
(3,858,704)
27,363,450

126,651,112
2,078,192,028
110,953,534
6,936,955
9,315,863
30,860,467
7,496,647
37,687,500
2,408,094,106

-

139,492,237
(94,206,024)
45,286,213

73,829,051
(125,789,800)
(51,960,749)

16,098,677
(9,372,952)
6,725,725

16,804,856
(12,430,348)
4,374,508

246,224,821
(241,799,124)
4,425,697

131,153,526

87,138,683

24,143,525

2,970

17,544

242,456,248

adjustment within a specified period. The Group’s lending, funding and investment activities give rise to
interest rate risk. The immediate impact of variation in interest rate is on the Group’s net interest income,
while a long term impact is on Group’s net worth since the economic value of Group’s assets, liabilities
and off-balance sheet exposures are affected.
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will affect the Group’s income or the value of its
holdings of financial instruments. The objective of interest rate risk management is to manage and control
interest rate risk exposure within acceptable parameters while optimizing the return on risk.
Below is a summary of the Group’s interest rate gap position on assets and liabilities reflected at carrying
amounts at year end segregated between floating and fixed interest rate earning and bearing.
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Below is a summary of the Group’s interest rate gap position on assets and liabilities reflected at carrying
amounts at year end segregated between floating and fixed interest rate earning or bearing:
December 31, 2017

December 31, 2017
Fixed Interest Rate

		
		
		
ASSETS
Cash and deposits with central banks
Deposits with banks and financial institutions
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Loans to banks and financial institutions
Loans and advances to customers
Loans and advances to related parties
Financial assets at amortized cost
Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Customers’ liability under acceptances
Investments in associates
Assets acquired in satisfaction of loans
Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Other assets
Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Deposits and borrowings from banks
and financial institutions
Customers’ accounts at amortized cost
Related parties’ accounts at amortized cost
Acceptance liability
Other term borrowings
Other liabilities
Provisions
Subordinated bonds
Total Liabilities
Interest Rate Gap Position

Non-Interest
Bearing

Floating
Interest Rate

Over 3 Months
Less than 1 Year

1 to 3
Years

3 to 5
Years

5 to 10
Years

Over 10		
Years
Total

Grand
Total

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

36,672,046
62,178,302
10,299,925
12,838,776
1,333,725
9,660,950

432,275,554
69,862,859
75,375
1,092,580,076
1,083,868
10,864,375

6,722,576
82,110
53,494,636
610
27,592,205

1,097,258
97,064,267

1,658,250
5,616,357
32,773
122,030,750

137,617,375
2,417,313
304,244,270

24,000,000
6,229,043
54,095,852

163,275,625
6,722,576
14,344,823
54,624,667
610
605,027,344

632,223,225
138,763,737
24,720,123
12,838,776
1,148,538,468
1,084,478
625,552,669

1,606,260
12,779,303
20,994,413
2,073,984
32,957,002
1,185,319
11,122,554
215,702,559

1,606,742,107

87,892,137

98,161,525

129,338,130

444,278,958

84,324,895

843,995,645

1,606,260
12,779,303
20,994,413
2,073,984
32,957,002
1,185,319
11,122,554
2,666,440,311

1,826,377
9,136,241
196,585
12,779,303
385,673
24,581,603
8,427,265
1,380,511
58,713,558

96,068,519
1,599,932,356
68,848,561
520,951
1,765,370,387

17,237,776
357,315,358
19,172,534
1,096,092
394,821,760

25,950,747
3,090,220
29,040,967

4,729,030
37,687,500
42,416,530

753,750
59,309,933
52,762,500
112,826,183

402,934
402,934

17,237,776
384,019,855
19,172,534
68,628,209
90,450,000
579,508,374

115,132,672
1,993,088,452
88,217,680
12,779,303
69,534,833
24,581,603
8,427,265
91,830,511
2,403,592,319

156,989,001

(158,628,280)

(306,929,623)

69,120,558

86,921,600

331,452,775

83,921,961

264,487,271

262,847,992
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December 31, 2016

December 31, 2016
Fixed Interest Rate

		
		

Non-Interest
Bearing

Floating
Interest Rate

Over 3 Months
Less than 1 Year

1 to 3
Years

3 to 5
Years

5 to 10
Years

Over 10		
Years
Total

Grand
Total

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

		
ASSETS
Cash and deposits with central banks
Deposits with banks and financial institutions
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Loans to banks and financial institutions
Loans and advances to customers
Loans and advances to related parties
Financial assets at amortized cost
Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Customers’ liability under acceptances
Investments in associates
Assets acquired in satisfaction of loans
Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Other assets
Total Assets

75,233,223
183,976,326
8,154,535
9,974,810
957,147
12,067,203

420,056,896
77,968,683
41,429
7,537,500
1,015,278,662
2,582,864
4,217,383

35,713,384
753,750
20,704,435
53,825
38,152,122

558,702
6,499,749
882,169
9,656
66,515,859

11,734,303
104,810
85,036,650

54,270,000
41,693,840
357,201,524

16,375,462
30,694,614

54,270,000
36,272,086
77,057,104
21,691,414
63,481
577,600,769

549,560,119
298,217,095
85,253,068
17,512,310
1,037,927,223
2,646,345
593,885,355

638,466
6,936,955
18,052,156
2,046,944
23,967,744
981,680
12,924,894
355,912,083

1,527,683,417

95,377,516

74,466,135

96,875,763

453,165,364

47,070,076

766,954,854

638,466
6,936,955
18,052,156
2,046,944
23,967,744
981,680
12,924,894
2,650,550,354

LIABILITIES
Deposits and borrowings from banks and
financial institutions
Customers’ accounts at amortized cost
Related parties’ accounts at amortized cost
Acceptance liability
Other term borrowings
Other liabilities
Provisions
Subordinated bonds
Total Liabilities

16,041,926
113,561,427
7,138,120
6,936,955
88,596
30,860,467
7,496,647
182,124,138

108,579,186
1,544,188,705
70,223,791
395,949
1,723,387,631

2,030,000
359,411,209
33,591,623
864,477
395,897,309

60,019,154
2,315,701
62,334,855

1,011,533
2,204,529
37,687,500
40,903,562

2,850,214
2,850,214

596,397
596,397

2,030,000
420,441,896
33,591,623
8,831,318
37,687,500
502,582,337

126,651,112
2,078,192,028
110,953,534
6,936,955
9,315,863
30,860,467
7,496,647
37,687,500
2,408,094,106

Interest Rate Gap Position

173,787,946

(195,704,214)

(300,519,793)

12,131,280

55,972,201

450,315,150

46,473,679

264,372,517

242,456,249
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50. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
The following table shows the fair values of financial assets and liabilities (excluding accrued interest)
recognized in the consolidated financial statements, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. It
does not include financial assets and financial liabilities which are not measured at fair value and where
the directors consider that the carrying amounts of these financial assets and liabilities are reasonable
approximations of their fair value.

		
		

December 31, 2017

December 31, 2016

Fair Value

Fair Value

Carrying Value

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

		

Carrying Value

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

LBP’000

Quoted equity securities

7,099,123

7,099,123

-

-

7,099,123

Lebanese treasury bills

16,777,541

-

16,777,541

-

16,777,541

Lebanese Government bonds

20,113,835

-

20,113,835

-

20,113,835

37,568,221

-

37,568,221

-

37,568,221

753,750

-

753,750

-

753,750

1,885,186

1,885,186

-

-

1,885,186

84,197,656

8,984,309

75,213,347

-

84,197,656

Lebanese treasury bills

149,290,331

-

152,536,263

-

152,536,263

Lebanese Government bonds

115,685,102

-

105,933,735

-

105,933,735

		

Financial assets measured

Financial assets measured

at fair value through

at fair value through

profit or loss:

profit or loss:

Quoted equity securities
Lebanese treasury bills
Lebanese Government bonds

10,084,754

10,084,754

-

-

10,084,754

223,268

-

223,268

-

223,268

7,033,275

-

7,033,275

-

7,033,275

Certificates of deposit issued

Certificates of deposit issued

by the Central Bank
of Lebanon
Certificates of deposit issued by banks
Corporate bonds
		

by the Central Bank
5,907,290

-

5,907,290

-

5,907,290

-

-

-

-

-

1,256,366

1,256,366

-

-

1,256,366

24,504,953

11,341,120

13,163,833

-

24,504,953

Financial assets at amortized cost:
192,088,212

-

189,834,264

-

189,834,264

Lebanese Government bonds

101,452,978

-

88,756,612

-

88,756,612

Certificates of deposit issued by
Corporate bonds
		

Certificates of deposit issued by banks
Corporate bonds
		
Financial assets at amortized cost:

Lebanese treasury bills

Central Bank of Lebanon

of Lebanon

Certificates of deposit issued
302,553,753

-

297,617,614

-

297,617,614

by Central Bank

301,835,094

-

298,179,326

-

298,179,326

19,796,778

20,301,205

-

-

20,301,205

Corporate bonds

19,819,866

19,874,922

-

-

19,874,922

615,891,721

20,301,205

576,208,490

-

596,509,695

586,630,393

19,874,922

556,649,324

-

576,524,246

		

Financial liabilities measured

Financial liabilities measured

at amortized cost:

at amortized cost:

Subordinated bonds

90,450,000

-

-

94,129,721

-

Subordinated bonds

37,687,500

-

-

36,894,934

36,894,934

		

90,450,000

-

-

94,129,721

-

		

37,687,500

-

-

36,894,934

36,894,934
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Valuation techniques, significant unobservable inputs, and sensitivity of the input to the fair value
The following table gives information about how the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities,
are determined (Level 2 and Level 3 fair values) and significant unobservable inputs used:
December 31, 2017
			

Date of Valuation

Valuation Technique and key Inputs

Financial Assets
At fair value through profit or loss:

Lebanese treasury bills
December 31, 2017
				
				

DCF at a discount rate determined based on the yield
curve applicable to Lebanese treasury bills adjusted
for illiquidity

Certificates of deposit issued by the
December 31, 2017
		 Central Bank of Lebanon - Local		
		 currency		

DCF at a discount rate determined based on the yield
curve applicable to Lebanese treasury bills, adjusted
for illiquidity

Certificates of deposit issued by the
December 31, 2017
DCF at a discount rate based on observable yield curve
		 Central Bank of Lebanon - foreign		
at measurement date
		 currency			
Lebanese Government bonds
December 31, 2017
				
				

DCF at a discount rate determined based on the yield on
USA treasury bills and the Credit Swap applicable to
Lebanon subject to Illiquidity factor

At amortized cost:

Lebanese treasury bills
December 31, 2017
				
				

DCF at a discount rate determined based on the yield
curve applicable to Lebanese treasury bills, adjusted
for illiquidity

Lebanese Government bonds
December 31, 2017
				
				

DCF at a discount rate determined based on the yield on
USA treasury bills and the Credit Swap applicable to
Lebanon subject to illiquidity factor

Certificates of deposit issued by the
December 31, 2017
		 Central Bank of Lebanon 		
		 Local currency

DCF at a discount rate determined based on the yield
for illiquidity					

Certificates of deposit issued by the
December 31, 2017
		 Central Bank of Lebanon - foreign		
		 currency

DCF at a discount rate based on observable yield curve
at measurement date

December 31, 2016
			

Date of Valuation

Valuation Technique and key Inputs

Financial Assets
At fair value through profit or loss:

Lebanese treasury bills
December 31, 2016
				
				

DCF at a discount rate determined based on the yield
curve applicable to Lebanese treasury bills
adjusted for illiquidity

Certificates of deposit issued by the
December 31, 2016
		 Central Bank of Lebanon - Local		
		 currency		

DCF at a discount rate determined based on the yield
curve applicable to Lebanese treasury bills, adjusted
for illiquidity

Certificates of deposit issued by the
December 31, 2016
DCF at a discount rate based on observable yield curve
		 Central Bank of Lebanon - foreign		
at measurement date
		 currency			
Certificates of deposit issued by banks December 31, 2016
				

DCF at a discount rate based on observable yield curve
at measurement date

Lebanese Government bonds
December 31, 2016
				
				

DCF at a discount rate determined based on the yield on
USA treasury bills and the Credit Swap applicable to
Lebanon subject to Illiquidity factor

Lebanese treasury bills
December 31, 2016
				
				

DCF at a discount rate determined based on the yield
curve applicable to Lebanese treasury bills, adjusted
for illiquidity

Lebanese Government Bonds
December 31, 2016
				
				

DCF at a discount rate determined based on the yield on
USA treasury bills and the Credit Swap applicable to
Lebanon subject to illiquidity factor

Certificates of deposit issued by the
December 31, 2016
		 Central Bank of Lebanon - Local		
		 currency		

DCF at a discount rate determined based on the yield
curve applicable to Lebanese treasury bills, adjusted
for illiquidity

Certificates of deposit issued by the
December 31, 2016
		 Central Bank of Lebanon - foreign		
		 currency

DCF at a discount rate based on observable yield curve
at measurement date

At amortized cost:

Financial Liabilities
At amortized cost:

Subordinated bonds
December 31, 2016
				

DCF at a discount rate determined based on
unobservable input related to risk.

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period.

Financial Liabilities
At amortized cost:

Subordinated bonds
December 31, 2017
				

DCF at a discount rate determined based on
unobservable input related to risk.

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period.

51. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2017 were approved by the Board of Directors
in its meeting held on May 11, 2018.
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BEMO GROUP STRUCTURE & NETWORK
BEMO SECURITISATION SAL- BSEC

BANQUE BEMO SAUDI FRANSI SA-BBSF

Bemo Securitisation SAL (BSEC), the investment banking
arm of Banque BEMO SAL, was established in 1993 as
a regulated financial institution by the Central Bank of
Lebanon, the Capital Markets Authority and the Banking
Control Commission. It is also member of the Association
of Financial Institutions in Lebanon. BSEC provides
innovative solutions to corporates with special funding
requirements and caters to companies in Lebanon and
the MENA region aiming to be the reference financial
advisor in these markets.

Banque Bemo Saudi Fransi (BBSF) was the first private
bank to be established in Syria after almost 40 years
of publically owned and managed banking sector and
remains the pioneer in the private banking sector until
today. Founded in 2004, BBSF adopted the names of its
two founders, Banque Saudi Fransi (BSF) and Banque
Bemo S.A.L., both of which offer extensive experiences
in banking aspects.

3rd Floor, Two Park Avenue Building, Park Avenue
Beirut Central District, Minet El Hosn
Beirut, Lebanon
Tel:
+961 1 997998
Fax:
+961 1 994801
Website: www.bsec-sa.com

BBSF has always been very keen on offering a full range of
banking products and services and to cover all demands
in Syria.

Banque Bemo Saudi Fransi SA - Syria
Head Office
Damascus - Salhia - Cham Palace Hotel
P.O.Box: 31117 Damascus Palace, Syria
Tel: +963 11 93 99
Fax: +963 11 94 99
www.bbsfbank.com

BEMO INVESTMENT FIRM - DUBAI

BEMO EUROPE-BANQUE PRIVÉE

Bemo Investment Firm ltd (BIF) is a Dubai based asset
management company established in 2007 registered
and regulated by the Dubai International Financial Center
(DIFC).
The BEMO vision is to leverage on BIF presence in the
region in line with the group strategy and to put all of its
built relationships at the disposal of the BEMO clients,
in order to help them get access to new products and
markets thereby achieving their financial goals.

BEMO EUROPE – Banque Privée is a Private Bank,
headquartered and registered in Luxembourg and
supervised by the Financial Sector Supervisory
Commission
(CSSF).
Gate Village, Bldg. 1, Level 1, Unit 109, DIFC
PO Box 506671
United Arab Emirates
Tel.:
Fax:

+971 4 3230565
+971 4 3230585

The mission of BEMO EUROPE – Banque Privée is to
offer its Clients the personalized solutions and the best
service to help them preserve and increase their wealth.
The wide range of expertise provided by its team of highly
qualified professionals enables BEMO EUROPE to offer
tailor-made investment advisory and financing and wealth
management solutions guided by the fundamentals of
each client’s specific and needs priorities.

Head Office
Luxembourg
26 Royal Boulevard,
L 2449 Luxembourg
Tel: + 352 22 63211
Fax: + 352 22 632160
www.bemo.lu

Paris Branch
63 Avenue Marceau,
75116 Paris - France
Tel: + 33 1 44 43 49 49
Fax: + 33 1 47 23 94 19
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LIST OF CORRESPONDENT BANKS & CUSTODIANS
CORRESPONDENT BANKS (AS AT 31.12.2017)

CUSTODIANS (AS AT 31.12.2017)

COUNTRY

CITY

CORRESPONDENT BANK

LIST OF CUSTODIANS			

COUNTRY

Austria

Vienna

Unicredit Bank Austria AG

Banque Du Liban		

Lebanon

Belgium

Brussels

KBC Bank NV

Midclear		

Lebanon

China

Beijing

Bank of China Limited

Bank Julius Baer and Co. Ltd		

Switzerland

France

Paris

Natixis

Bemo Europe - Banque Privée

Luxembourg

France

Paris

Union de Banques Arabes et Françaises - UBAF

Credit Suisse AG		

London

Germany

Frankfurt

ABC International Bank plc

KBC Securities NV		

Belgium

Germany

Frankfurt

Commerzbank AG

Saxo Bank		

Denmark

Germany

Frankfurt

Deutsche Bank AG

Bank Audi sal		

Lebanon

Italy

Milan

Intesa Sanpaolo Spa

Arab Finance Corporation		

Lebanon

Italy

Milan

Unicredit Spa

Cedrus Invest Bank sal		

Lebanon

Japan

Tokyo

Deutsche Bank AG

KSA

Riyadh

Banque Saudi Fransi

Luxembourg

Luxembourg

Bemo Europe - Banque Privée

Qatar

Doha

Doha Bank

Spain

Madrid

Banco Sabadell

Spain

Madrid

Caixabank SA

Turkey

Istanbul

Yapi ve Kredi Bankasi AS

UAE

Abu Dhabi

Abu Dhabi Commercial Bank

UAE

Dubai

Mashreqbank Psc

UK

London

Deutsche Bank AG

USA

New York

The Bank of New York Mellon
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BANQUE BEMO NETWORK

HEAD OFFICE
96 Pasteur Building, Pasteur Street,

PRIVATE AND CORPORATE
BANKING

BRANCHES
ASHRAFIEH

ZOUK

Medawar area

96 Pasteur Building, Pasteur Street,

Elias Sarkis Avenue , BEMO Building, Ashrafieh,

Zouk Mekayel Highway, Vega Center, 1st Floor,

Tel: +961 1 568 250/1/2/3/4

Medawar area, 2nd & 3rd floor

Tel:

Tel & Fax: +961 09 211 182

Fax: +961 1 568 266

Tel: + 961 1 568 250/350

Fax: +961 01 217 860 “ATM Machine”

Swift: EUMOLBBE

Fax: +961 1 568 365

P.O.Box: 16-6353 Beirut - Lebanon
Email: bemo@bemobank.com
www.bemobank.com

BRANCH ABROAD

+961 01 200 505 | 01 203 267

VERDUN
RIAD EL SOLH

Ramlet El Baida, Saeb Salam Avenue,

Beirut Central District, Riad El Solh Square,

Al Iwan Building,

Esseily Building, Bloc A, 7th Floor ,

Tel:

Tel: +961 01 992 600

Fax: +961 01 799 427 “ATM Machine”

+961 01 799 420 /1

GENERAL MANAGEMENT

CYPRUS

Beirut Central District, Riad El Solh Square,

Limassol

DORA

93, Charles De Gaulle Avenue, Debahy Center,

Esseily Building, Bloc A, 7th Floor

P.O.Box: 56232-3305 Limassol - Cyprus

Dora Highway, Tashdjian Banking Center,

Tel: +961 01 513 990

Tel: +961 1 992 600

Tel: + 357 25 583 628 / 587 640

Tel:

Fax: +961 01 513 997 “ATM Machine”

Fax: +961 1 983 368

Fax: + 357 25 587 064

Fax: +961 01 257 775 “ATM Machine”

Doma Court, 227 Makarios III Avenue,

Fax: +961 01 983 368
SIN EL FIL

+961 01 257 771 / 2

RABIEH

Swift: EUMOCY2I
GEMMAYZEH

Rabieh Main Road, Lahlouh Center,

Medawar Area,

Tel: +961 04 408 910

96 Pasteur Building

Fax: +961 04 408 917 “ATM Machine”

Tel: +961 01 568 250 /2/3/4
Fax: +961 01 568 360 “ATM Machine”

www.bemobank.com

